AGENDA

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF
MERIDIAN
TOWNSHIP BOARD
REGULAR MEETING
July 7, 2015
6:00 P.M.

CALL MEETING TO ORDER*

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS

ROLL CATT,

SPECIAT, PRESENTATIONS

A. Zachary Reid and Graham Riley — Seasonal Utility Workers

B. Planning Commissioner Tom Deits — Summary of Master Plan Public Input Meeting

PUBLIC REMARKS*

TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT

BOARD COMMENTS & REPORTS

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

CONSENT AGENDA (SALMON)

. Communications

Minutes — June 16, 2015 Regular Meeting

Bills

Newton Road Paving, Special Assessment District No. 43 — Resolutions #1 and #2 (Set Public Hearing
Date for August 4, 2015)

10. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY
11. HEARINGS (CANARY)
A. Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #15014 (Campus Village Development) 2655 Grand River Avenue

12. ACTION ITEMS (PINK)
**Public Comment
A. 2016 Budget Schedule
B. Whitehills Lakes South #2 Final Preliminary Plat Amendment
C. 2015 Township Citizen Survey
D. Fire Truck Purchase
E. Appointments to the Community Resources Commission

13. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS (ORCHID)
**Public Comment
A. Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #15014 (Campus Village Development) 2655 Grand River Avenue
B. Special Use Permit # 15051 (Campus Village Development) 2655 Grand River Avenue
C. Planned Residential Development #15-97015 (SP Investments Limited Partnership) Amendment to the
Planned Residential Development Sketch Plan — Ember Oaks

o=

Voo

vow>

14. PUBLIC REMARKS*

15. FINAL BOARD MEMBER COMMENT
16. ADJOURNMENT

17. POSTSCRIPT- ELIZABETH LEGOFF

*PUBLIC REMARKS (Any topic - 3 minutes per person)
**PUBLIC COMMENT (Agenda item specific - 3 minutes per person)

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Meridian Township Board by writing or calling the following:
Township Manager Frank L. Walsh, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864-1198 (517-853-4258) — Ten Day Notice is Required.

Meridian Charter Township: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864-1198, (517) 853-4000 Township Hall Room; www.meridian.mi.us

* Appointment of President Pro Tem and/or Temporary Clerk if necessary

Meridian Township exists to create a sustainable community through the most
effective use of available resources that achieve the highest quality of life.




TOWNSHIP BOARD REGULAR MEETING COMMUNICATIONS, JULY 7, 2015

(1) Board Information (BI)
BI-1  Holly Rosen, Director, MSU Safe Place, Letter of appreciation for sponsorship and
media coverage for the 21% Annual Race for the Place 5K
BI-2  Teresa Morgan, 4444 Dobie Road, Okemos; RE: Support for rezoning 5458 Okemos
Road from RAAA to RR to allow goats on the property
BI-3  Larry McCurdy, 2710 Sophiea Parkway, Okemos; RE: Petition to rezone 5458 Okemos
Road from RAAA to RR to allow goats on the property

(2) Regional Linkage (RL)
RL-1  Patrick E. Lindemann, Ingham County Drain Commissioner, 707 Buhl Avenue, Mason;
RE: Banta Consolidated Drain Drainage District “Notice of Day of Review of Drainage
District Boundaries” to be held on July 8, 2015 from 9:00 A. M. to 5:00 P.M. at the Drain
Commissioner’s Office

(3) Staff Communications (SC)
SC-1 Martha Wyatt, Associate Planner; RE: Site Plan Review Decisions as of July 1, 2015

(4) On File in the Clerk’s Office (OF)
Material received at the June 16, 2015 Board Meeting
Treasurer Julie Brixie; RE: Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) Response to
questions about funding of the Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)
Lisa M. Hansknecht, 6178 Columbia, Haslett; RE: Support for Township purchase of tax foreclosed
property at 6201 Lake Drive




MEMORANDUM

TO: Township Board
FROM: %) LS Yk '
Mark Kieselbach 7

Director of Commuriity Planning and Development

L9t (Oharcht

Gail Oranchak, AICP"
Principal Planner

DATE: June 30, 2015

RE: May 21, 2015 Master Plan Public Input Work Session Update

Planning Commissioner Tom Deits will attend the July 7, 2015 Township Board meeting to briefly
summarize the Planning Commission’s Master Plan Public Input Meeting held on May 21, 2015.
Attached for the Board’s information are two documents which capture word-for-word all
comments listed on each table’s flip chart (attachment #1) and the “three main ideas” selected by

the participants at each table (attachment #2).

Attachments
1. Complete Public Comments by table/goal - May 21, 2015
2. “Three Main Ideas” by table - May 21, 2015

G:\\Planning\2005 Master Plan Update\6-21-2015 Public Input Meeting\7-7-15 TB Meeting Memo



May 21, 2015

Planning Commission Work Session
MASTER PLAN PUBLIC INPUT MEETING

ALL RECORDED PUBLIC COMMENTS BY GOAL/TABLE

Table 1 - GOAL 1: Preserve and strengthen residential neighborhoods. Richard Honicky

1.
2.
3.

©© NG e

10.

Ensure a variety of housing types.
Single senior housing.
Affordable, owner occupied, single family residences in older, established neighborhoods (to

" attract young families).

Using housing market to maintain density standards at “traditional” levels.
Renters by choice trend needs to be accommodated “across the board”.
Ensure public safety.

Central park in each neighborhood

Neighborhood association in each neighborhood.

Neighborhood code enforcement

Enforce environmental and safety standards in new developments

Table 2 — GOAL 2: Preserve open space and natural areas. Tom Deits

BN e

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.

There is already too much development.
There is already too much pavement.
It’s great to have land preserved purely as natural areas, for nature.
There should be permanent staff to maintain existing natural areas
a. Remove invasive species
b. Trash
c. Debris
Fewer variances that decrease the amount of natural areas when development occurs.
Should implement the Greenspace plan as a requirement
The current state of greenspaces should be evaluated and Greenspace Plan updated based
on the latest science.
Purchase development rights
Use zoning overlays/conservation easements to keep private land undeveloped.
Develop a natural features inventory and implement measures to protect them.
Keep the eastern part of the Township rural.
Create a tree protection ordinance that applies to road projects and new development.
Protect wetlands in their entirety, without modification (no mitigation).
Implement better storm water quality and control to protect the Red Cedar River.
From Williamston to MSU, make Red Cedar a featured/ kayaking and canoeing recreational

area with launch areas and liveries.



May 21, 2015 Work Session
Complete Public Comments

16. Conserve Lake Lansing as a natural area (less chemical control) and increase access points

for nature viewing.

Table 3. — GOAL 3: Enhance the viability of Township business. Christine Tenaglia

1. More commercial zoning along Grand River — change zoning
2. Walkable business district- centered at the mall.
3. Development of Hamilton/Okemos/Marsh restaurants.
4. Traffic consideration Okemos/Jolly.
5. Options for public transportation. Make downtown more accessible without driving.
6. Expansion of bike/walk pathways
- 7. Locally owned business —Look at other communities like Portland. ’
8. Brookfield to Van Atta (?)
9. Local entertainment draw. We need and attraction.
10. Repurpose Land Preservation tax use for walkability. Increasing millage.
11. Rehabilitate small shopping centers. Priority rehabilitation of smaller shops close to
neighborhoods '
12. Downtown Okemos-

a. Restaurants,
b. mixed use,
c. better parking
d. Higher end businesses
e. Outdoor dining.
13. Lost Movie, lost a lot
14. Restaurants starting to suffer
15. More commercial development at Okemos and 1-96 Offices only
16. Grand River compare to other areas
17. Zoning Issues, Change Grand River Zoning
18. Wants walkability-infrastructure. Mall is the hub-Playmakers-Dusty’s downtown
a. Infrastructure problematic
b. Development of Hamilton and Okemos Road
19. No sidewalks
20. Support Commercial development Brookfield to Van Atta
21. Okemos/Haslett-good mid-priced bar restaurant
a. Mixed use
b. Residential above
c. Downtown Brewery- apartments
22. Who are we thinking? What is in Okemos to attract people- higher end fashionc



May 21, 2015 Work Session
Complete Public Comments

Table 4. - GOAL 4: Maintain and expand a diverse park system. Brett DeGroff

1.

©® N T e W

10.
11.
12.

Increase
a. Walkability
b. Connectivity
c. Bikeability

Soccer fields — Haslett

Canoe/Kayak Launch — Harris Nature Center and Wonch Park
Update maps and APPS?

River Clean Up- keep paths clean

Paved internal /loop park trails

Towne Courier —park update

Bike share

Public/private partnership

Adaptive park equipment {swings)

Bike racks — MORE! And Lockers

Facebook/ social media for Parks specifically.

Table 5.- GOAL 5: Maintain essential public services. Joyce Van Covering

© PN A WwN e

[EEY
o

11.

12.

Keep two (2) libraries

Community policing

Shared service model s/ communications/conversations between municipalities
Sewer and water policies to encourage responsible growth

Larger library. LARGE central library.

Police body cameras

Community policing

Assigned police officers to neighborhoods

Proactive involvement. More Township involvement

. Prescription bottles with drugs taken/ allergies, so EMS knows if they come. Taped to side

wall of refrigerator.

Shared services model for Haslett, Okemos, Williamston and East Lansing
a. Mailing surplus

“Conversations” between municipalities

Table 6. — GOAL 6: Provide and support an efficient, safe and environmentally sensitive multi-modal
transportation network. Holly Cordill

AT A

Street lights Marsh Road
Trails

BRT

Public Transit

Local Streets, for pavement



May 21, 2015 Work Session
Complete Public Comments

© ® N o

Bike, complete streets. BIKE LANES.
Traffic

Roads

Redi-Ride

Table 7. — GOAL 7: Promote efficient and sustainable growth principles. Dante lanni

1.
2.
3.

10.

11
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.

Infill and growth up-not out.

Urban services boundaries

Incentives for developers

a. Green based i.e. LED Lighting

Renewable vs. Clean

a. Focus Clean

Sustainability varies in parts of Township

a. Code

Form-based code

Phase Il energy audit

Central person {group) focused on sustainable energy programs
a. Grand River fire stations- using geothermal

b. Integrated into building code

Flexibility in code

Incentives for developers, private citizens and businesses
a. forredevelopment*

b. Contaminated sites

Green energy for Township and other government buildings
Up front tax credits

Good to level playing field

Township taking the lead as an example

Brownfield credits

60/40 Residential/Renters



MAY 21, 2015

Planning Commission Work Session
IMIASTER PLAN PUBLIC INPUT MEETING

“THREE MAIN IDEAS” BY GOAL/TABLE

GOAL 1: Preserve and strengthen residential neighborhoods.

A. Provide a variety of housing (11)

a.
b.
C.

d.
e.

Owner occupied (1)
Senior options (4)
Renters by choice {2)
Aging in place (2)
Appropriate locations (2)

B. Ensure code enforcement (16)

a.
b.
o

Denshy‘
Public Safety
Environmental standards

B. Attract young families

a.
b.

Schools
Affordable housing (20)

GOAL 2: Preserve open space and natural areas.

A. Develop an inventory of greenspace and other natural features; enforce and focus
development and preservation, through: (33)

a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

Purchase development rights

Use zoning overlays

Construction easements

Develop tree protection ordinance (4)
Fewer variances

B. ‘Enhance river quality and access {27)
C. Have permanent township staff who steward or natural areas ( 17 plus township preserves)

(14).

Goal 3: Enhance the viability of Township businesses.

A. Rehabilitation of primary commercial districts ( Grand River Avenue, Okemos/ Marsh/ DDA)

(50)

a.
b.

C.

Flexibility in zoning
Flexibility in ordinances
Include social, meeting space

B. Connectivity for (?) access (traffic, pedestrians, bikes, parking ) (25)

a. Easy -
b. Safe
c. Park once mentality



May 21, 2015
“Three Main ldeas”

C. Entice/Incentivize locally owned businesses to develop in our satellite business districts; i.e.
Carriage Hills, Village Square, Shoptown (23)

Goal 4: Maintain and expand a diverse park system.

A. Trail connectivity (43)
a. Park “Loops”
_b. Bike share as a public/private partnership
c. Riverclean up
B. Communications (16)
A. Applications and maps and weather alerts
B. More use of Towne Courier
C. More Use of Facebook
D. Weather Alerts at every park
C. Park Enhancements
Soccer fields in Haslett (8)
b. Swings —adaptive (2)
¢. Kayak Launch(5)
d. Bike lockers and racks (1)

Q

Goal 5: Maintain essential public services

A. Keep two (2) libraries (9)
B. Community policing (12)

C. Shared services and conversations between municipalities {6)

Goal 6: Provide and support an efficient, safe and environmentally sensitive multi-modal transportation
network.

A. Implement complete streets {(28)
B. Local road maintenance (13)
C. public transit (11)
a. More efficient
b. Crossing township borders (lines)

Goal 7: Promote efficient and sustainable growth principles.

A. Implement Urban Services Boundary (USMA) (35)
a. Utilize infill
b. Utilize form-based code
B. Sustainability Ombudsman (14)
a. Greenand Clean
b. Lead by example within Township
C. Development based on cultural growth and preservation of local culture (3)



9A

CLERK'S OFFICE
BOARD COMMUNICATIONS
JULY 7, 2015

Board Information (BI)




MSU SAFE PLACE

Michigan State University
219 Wilson Rd, Rm G60
East Lansing, Ml
48825-1208

517-355-1100
Fax: 517-432-6193

www.safeplace.msu.edu
noabuse @msu.edu

MSU Is an affirmative-action,
equal-opportunily employer.

MICHIGAN STATE
UNIVERSITY

June 5, 2015

RECEIVED
JUN 16 2015

¢ Township
m&t%aﬁm

Deborah Guthrie
HOMTV

5151 Marsh Road
Okemos, M| 48864

Dear Ms. Guthrie:

It is with great pleasure that | thank you for your sponsorship and contribution of
media coverage (over $1,000 value) for the 215! annual Race for the Place 5K.
Your contribution helps in our continued fight against relationship violence and
stalking. Funds raised through our event will ensure that our program is able to
continue to provide free and confidential support services for those experiencing
relationship violence and/or stalking in the MSU and Greater Lansing area.

Your suppott for our program has been invaluablel

There are many ways in which your support of Race for the Place helps our
program to succeed. The funds raised through this event allow us to offer many
services, such as emergency shelter; support groups; individual counseling;
advocacy support for victims/survivors in obtaining new housing, connecting
with legal resources, safety planning, and meeting other essential needs;
financial assistance, such as paying fees to get a Personal Protection Order
served; transportation for clients to school, work or other appointments;
consultation for family members, friends and colleagues of those affected by
violence; and many other much needed setvices. Without your support we
would not be able to provide such comprehensive services to those in need!

We had a beautiful day and great event with almost 800 walkers and runners
who participated in the 2015 Race for the Place 5K. Additionally, as in previous
years, Sparty and MSU varsity athletes came out to support this family friendly
event, offering medals and support to the 80 children who participated in the
100-yard dash and one mile fun run events.

We are very grateful for your continued support! We look forward to working
with you again for next year’s Race for the Place!

Sincerel

Rosen
Safe Place

JUL 07 2015
51 )

JUL 07 2015




Sandy Otto

From: Teresa (DelLisle) Morgan <tldmorgan@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, July 01, 2015 10:28 AM
To: Board
Subject: McCurdy Goats
Charter Township
of Meridian
Hello,

As a relatively new resident of Meridian Township, I can say that [ was drawn to this area in part because the
people and families who make up the community. One of those families is the McCurdy family. I find their
suburban farm fascinating and a wonderful addition to the fabric of the community. It is creative and
resourceful people like the McCurdy family that really make Meridian Township special and their farm
provides a breath of fresh air amongst the suburban landscape. Based on having a large lot heading away from
town, I feel that re-zoning to allow the goats would be in the best interest of all involved.

Thank you for your consideration.
Teresa Morgan

4444 Dobie Rd.
Okemos, MI 48864

JUL 07 2015

BI-ol

JUL 07 2015




the RAAA zoning rules to allow for goats on appropriately sized parcels.

printed name

address

email

Mo Esser

TUYE Oenmos

heron Freqeomals

!/Ow\/ e Anen

SYo Y (Démos ch

i Ty g fot G

N ke Creen

ST Qenes A

wi(‘f reen i@—}é»”&i""[ LIS
-

§ CD"b 0 é,/{" PGS ZC’)

@ YNy ae e @L’:,Lw O (et

L ahe Mo Nau(\)

(avvx(oo)we;&@ i SU.edhu

Greg Lowdb 5420 Olesnss BA-
) 3 ™~ 7 i "‘ : . ) 14 % ‘I - . " . .(..(/u/fﬂf-, @f;‘(ﬁm;"czyx/‘
:ELB'/FCQ 87((/10\/1{ . 2072 Coamevn Qu. ﬁs’ | JQ e, .S g ’

N O\XV{/ §‘F M_N"X(

P A \
207L  Lawmerom Onks

i 6"\’%0\-:-%@ MSU. € M

ADowg [as /Elécféﬂ A

5270 Q,KC&W/J';’ '/?J /:/é

JtedZ@sEcciobai-rle]

’/

e

f ) \ g

: o A, o LoaLo7am
(@M@ﬂ/\b OMM 537 (9//21/%4(95} EL. D@V/fég@ﬁ/ﬂég/abﬂ{ﬂw* JULf;z?-fms




We the undersigned friends and neighbors of the McCurdy Family at 5458 Okemos Rd. wish to support the
McCurdy’s in their efforts to maintain their goats either through rezoning the property to rural residential or changing
the RAAA zoning rules to allow for goats on appropriately sized parcels.

printed name address email signature
y-.\\{\\"\& \Q&\i\/— SR w\’\ﬁw\k&& 2 Q’\’\‘m \\Qﬁ\k\@(\b\\%%i/\

QLOPy (hawad Rel

JU Lalhe@gmet o

%%u% (o—

Adlier Waller
S

I{J\V‘\ry mu [:mr &4\/
/ v

A7) 10 506) h‘fﬁ@/

/(0 /m yne @ q rier> /'ﬂo i

AR S

Nz ik ludy
-/

./

Jub [] 7 2015

e \"\
/ = : - ,.w":

.anqzmé




9A

CLERK'S OFFICE
BOARD COMMUNICATIONS
JULY 7, 2015

Regional Linkage (RL)




Patrick E. Lindemann

Iingham County Drain Commissioner

Carta Florence: Clos
Depuly Crain Comnassioniel

PO Box 220
707 Buhl Avenue
Mason, MI 48854-0220

Paui C. Prail
Depuly Drawi Commnssiane

David C. Love
Chig! of Enginestng and nspechon

Phone: (517) 676-8395
Fax: (517) 676-8364
http://dr.ingham.org

Sheidon Levas
Adminishative Assistant

June 24, 2015

Re: Banta Consolidated Drain Drainage District
Dear Clerk:

I am sending the enclosed Notice of Day of Review of Drainage Distriet-Boundaries to you in
accordance with Public Act 261 of 2013. The Review will be held on Wednesday, July 8, 2015,
from 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. at my office located at 707 Buhl Avenue, Mason, Michigan, 48854.

The purpose of the Review is to ensure that landowners are only billed for work on drains to
which their lands actually drain. This Review will not decide any assessment. However, it may
establish new drainage district boundaries for the future. Your attendance at the Review is not
required, but is most welcome and appreciated.

A map showing the drainage district is posted on the Ingham County web site
(http://dr.ingham.org) and at my office. A list of Frequently Asked Questions is included with
this mailing.

If you have any questions, please call me. If you choose to attend the Review, I look forward to
meeting with you on July 8. Please know that I consider it a great honor and privilege serving
you and the other citizens of Ingham County.

JUL 07 2015
RI-)

JUL 07 2015



STATE OF MICHIGAN
OFFICE OF THE INGHAM COUNTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER

In the Matter of: Banta Consolidated Drain

Notice is Hereby Given that on Wednesday, July 8, 2015, the Ingham County Drain
Commissioner will hold a Day of Review of Drainage District Boundaries for one day from 9 a.m.
to 5 p.m. at the Office of the Ingham County Drain Commissioner, 707 Buhl Avenue, Mason,
Michigan 48854. At that time and place, the Drain Commissioner will hear the proofs and
allegations and carefully reconsider and review the description of lands comprising the Drainage
District, and determine whether the addition or deletion of lands will more accurately define the
boundaries of the land benefited by the Drain and is just and equitable pursuant to Section 197 of
the Michigan Drain Code of 1956, as amended. The Drain is located and established in Sections 1
and 2 in Delhi Charter Township; Section 36 in Lansing Charter Township; Section 31 in Meridian
Charter Township; Sections 35 and 36 in the City of Lansing, County of Ingham, State of
Michigan. The lands to be added or deleted are located in Sections 1 and 2 in Delhi Charter

Township.

Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in the meeting
should contact the Ingham County Drain Commissioner at (517) 676-8395 or the Michigan Relay
Center at 711 (TTY) at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting to request mobility, visual, hearing,

or other assistance.

You are Further Notified that persons aggrieved by the decision of the Drain Commissioner
to add or delete lands from the Drainage District may seek judicial review in the Ingham County

Circuit Court within ten (10) days of the decision.

(

Dated: June / é , 2015 e

2z

Patrick E. Linde
Ingham County Drain Commissioner
707 Buhl Avenue

Mason; MI 48854

(517) 676-8395

JUL 07 2015
R~

(-page Ae ;\3\.
JuL 0% 2015



=

=

>Q >R ZQ TQ B

=z

zQ =R

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

Why did I receive a notice in the mail?
You received a notice because you own property in a drainage district where changes to the
boundaries of the drainage district are under consideration.

What is a drainage district?

A drainage district is a land area benefitting from an established county drain. Under Michigan
law, a drainage district is a public corporation authorized to build and maintain a drain, and to
own land and hold property rights necessary for that purpose. It is also authorized to assess lands
within its boundaries.

Why is my property in a drainage district?
Generally, a property is determined to be in a drainage district if runoff from that property drains
to, or has the potential to drain to, an established county drain.

Why are changes to the drainage district boundaries being considered?

In many cases, drainage district boundaries were established decades or even a century ago.
Since that time, changes in land use, surface composition, and topography may have occurred
that alter historic drainage patterns. These alterations can change whether, and to what extent,
properties are now benefitted by a county drain.

Is my property affected by the proposed boundary change?

Only a portion of properties are affected by the proposed boundary change. See the map online at
http://dr.ingham.org/ or call (517) 676-8395 to find out whether your property is one of those
proposed to be added to, or deleted from, the drainage district.

What if I don’t see a drain near my property?

Not all county drains are visible. Although county drains can be watercourses and/or manmade
ditches that appear to be creeks or streams, many drains are underground tiles beneath fields or
storm drain pipes below streets or under backyards.

How does my property benefit from the drain?

County drains are an important part of public infrastructure in much the same way as roads,
water mains, and sanitary sewers. Although drains may not be visible, they provide an outlet for
storm water runoff and reduce the risk of property damage caused by flooding.

‘What happens on the Day of Review of Drainage District Boundaries?

On the Day of Review, historical drainage district boundaries will be updated so that all
properties currently benefitting from the drain are included, and the properties not benefitting
from the drain are excluded. The Day of Review of Drainage District Boundaries provides
property owners with an opportunity to talk to Drain Office staff to ensure that their property is

correctly included or excluded from the drainage district. JUL 0 7 20 5
Do I have to attend the hearing? \ )L 3>
You have the right to attend the hearing, but you are not required to attend. Jlﬁ L 7 20 150

How can I get more information?
Visit our website at http://dr.ingham.org/ or call (517) 676-8395 and a member of our Drain

Office staff will be happy to assist you.




9A

CLERK'S OFFICE
BOARD COMMUNICATIONS
JULY 7, 2015

Staff Communications (SC)




DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

SITE PLAN REVIEW DECISIONS E

of Township
cm;} Meridian

Site Plan Review Approvals (as of 7/1/15):

#15-04 (MF Okemos, LLC)
Request to raze the existing building and construct an approximate 6,000 square foot multi-
tenant retail building with one drive-through lane at 2049 Grand River Avenue, Okemos, Ml
Approved: 5121115

#15-03 (BBI Holdings, LLC)

Request to construct an approximate 12,351 square foot child care facility and learning center
(Gilden Woods), to be located at 2190 Association Drive, Okemos, Ml

Approved: 5127115

#15-05 (Kroger)

Request to construct a gasoline station (Kroger) with seven fueling dispensers (14 fuel nozzles),
a 265 square foot transaction kiosk, and a 5,418 square foot canopy structure at 4884 Marsh
Road, Okemos, Ml

Approved: 5/29/15

GACOMMUN PLNG & DEVAPLNG\SITEPLAN\SPR\SPRmtg\SPRdecisions44

JUL 07 2015
SC -

JUL 07 2015



9B

PROPOSED BOARD MINUTES

PROPOSED MOTION:

Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the June 16, 2015 Regular
Meeting as submitted.

ALTERNATE MOTION:

Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the June 16, 2015 Regular
Meeting with the following amendment(s): [insert amendments].

JULY 7, 2015
REGULAR MEETING




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

TOWNSHIP BOARD REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT -
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864-1198

853-4000, Town Hall Room

TUESDAY, JUNE 16, 2015 6:00 P.M.

PRESENT: Supervisor LeGoff, Clerk Dreyfus, Treasurer Brixie, Trustees Scales, Styka, Veenstra

ABSENT: Trustee Wilson

STAFF: Township Manager Frank Walsh, Assistant Township Manager/Director of Public
Works Derek Perry, Director of Community Planning & Development Mark
Kieselbach, Police Chief David Hall, Director of Communications Deborah Guthrie,
Interim Attorney John Dewane

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER
Supervisor LeGoff called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS
Supervisor LeGoff led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. ROLL CALL
The secretary called the roll of the Board.

4. MOMENT OF SILENCE FOR VIRGINIA WHITE
Brian Beauchine offered a few words regarding recently deceased Virginia White, Clerk for Meridian
Township from 1972 to 1997.

5. SPECIAL PRESENTATION
A. Dr. William Porter and Dr. Joanne Crawford — Michigan State University (MSU) Department of
Fisheries and Wildlife

Dr. Joanne Crawford offered a brief update on MSU’s urban deer management for Meridian
Township, explaining the social structure of deer and their family units in suburban landscapes.
She indicated MSU began mapping deer families and their home range area in two focal areas
within the Township in 2013 by collecting approximately 1,000 fecal samples. Dr. Crawford
added those samples (as well as other samples from hunters in the Township’s deer management
program) were taken to MSU’s laboratory from which individual deoxyribonucleic acid (DNA)
fingerprints were constructed through forensics. Dr. Crawford stated once a fingerprint is
constructed, individual deer can be identified, a count can be obtained and relatedness can be
researched, mapping family groups within the Township. She noted preliminary results showed
such a social structure exists in Meridian Township and localized management might be possible.

Dr. Crawford mentioned MSU is finished with the lab analyses and is currently working on the
statistical analyses related to genetics. She confirmed there is evidence to support the theory of
related groups occupying approximately a ' square mile area. Dr. Crawford added when the
chronic wasting disease (CWD) issue surface within Meridian Township, MSU was poised to
assist the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) in providing a preliminary population estimate
for deer as of 2013 (approximately 59 deer per square mile in the focal areas within a 10.5 square
study area).

Board, MSU and DNR representatives’ discussion:

e Study areas were two smaller “circles” within the 10.5 square study area in the Township,
one near the Municipal Building and one south of Grand River Avenue
Study area did not encompass the area where the CWD deer was found
MSU is exploring options with the DNR to collect tissue samples of the harvested deer which
would provide more of the genetic profile of the individual deer than fecal samples

¢ In the last year of the current MSU study which will focus on the statistical analyses and
report writing



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, JUNE 16, 2015 REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT*

If MSU decides to use tissue samples, it will have to contract for “new” work
Desirous to freeze the tissue samples until a decision is made regarding a new contract which
would fund analyzing the samples

e Three major ways for a disease to be introduced into an area

o Infected animal walks over the border — Indiana and Ohio have no reported cases in their
free range deer population

o Deer to deer contact

e Indirect contact primarily through urination and defecation on land which contains the
prions (protein)

Wisconsin has reported many cases of CWD since 2002

Infectious agent is a “mutated” prion with the ability to continually replicate

Prion accumulates within the deer and begins attacking its central nervous system

Deer can shed prions while otherwise appearing healthy

No determination known as to the length of transmission (can exist in the environment for

years)

Appreciation for the study performed by MSU

Appreciation to Jane Greenway by MSU for her assistance in coordinating the effort for

Township hunters to collect samples

6. PUBLIC REMARKS
Supervisor LeGoff opened Public Remarks.

Shari Middlewood, 5562 Canoga Lane, Vice-President of the Haslett Beautification Association
(HBA), voiced her support for Township acquisition of 6201 Lake Drive, offering their assistance
to help maintain the parcel upon Township acquisition,

Henry Kwok, 2643 Melville Drive, East Lansing, introduced himself for Board consideration of
appointment as an alternate to the Zoning Board of Appeals.

Neil Bowlby, 6020 Beechwood Drive, Haslett, voiced concern the public notices which were
published in the June 14, 2015 edition of the Towne Courier were premature and requested
clarification on whether a motion to approve which fails to pass constitutes a denial. He addressed
information included in a press release regarding a recent home invasion/robbery in the Township,
questioning whether the included information violated the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act
(MMMA).

Supervisor LeGoff closed Public Remarks.

7. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT
Manager Walsh reported on the following:
¢ Opening of the Okemos Pedestrian Pathway Bridge at 11:00 AM tomorrow
o 24 deer removed through the hunt to address the CWD, all of which have tested negative
e Deer taken through road kill and other means all have tested negative
o Okemos Boys LaCrosse Team played in the state championship title and will be invited to
receive acknowledgment at a Board meeting
Kinawa Pedestrian Safety Project is underway with contracted work to begin soon
Central Fire Station is on schedule and under budget, with commencement of vertical
construction
Rain has had an impact on the central fire station’s December 15" opening
Update on the 2015 infrastructure improvements approved by the Township Board
e New roof on the Service Center is complete
¢ Bids for the north central fire station roof have been opened and one bid is under the
budgeted amount
e 90-120 days for completion of the Municipal parking lot repavement areas and streetlight
replacement
e Township Hall renovation to begin tomorrow with a finish date by July 7®

Board and staff discussion:

PAGE 2




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, JUNE 16, 2015 REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT*
e Review of the level of achievement for sports teams to be acknowledged before the Board

8. BOARD COMMENTS & REPORTS
Treasurer Brixie announced summer tax bills are being prepared and will be mailed out July 1*.
She noted there is an option for automatic electronic payment, with signup information on the
Township’s website, www.meridian.mi.us. She reminded residents the white drop box in front of
the Meridian Municipal Building is available for 24 hour drop off of tax payments. Treasurer
Brixie urged residents not to mail their tax bill at the post office the day before tax bills are due, as
it can take up to 10 days to arrive at the Township.

Clerk Dreyfus announced he received his Certified Michigan Municipal Clerk (CMMC)
certification, a three year process through the Clerk’s Institute. He reported his attendance at a
June 3" legislative reception sponsored by the Michigan Association of Municipal Clerks (MAMC)
to discuss issues relevant to Clerks with various state legislators. Clerk Dreyfus noted
Representative Sam Singh shared with him the Michigan Legislature allocated $5 million to update
election equipment, with Meridian Township to receive a small portion of the state-wide
distribution. He stated Representative Singh indicated the state legislature plans to introduce
legislation to obtain an additional $10 million to fund more of the turnover in equipment which will
occur in 2016 and 2017. Clerk Dreyfus indicated a decision was made not to have Meridian
Township sign up for the pilot program to test the new equipment in order to avoid potential risk.

Clerk Dreyfus reported his attendance at the June 4™ Meridian Economic Development Corporation
(MEDC) meeting where business development topics were discussed, including the future of the
Meridian Area Resource Center (MARC), how to improve the Celebrate Okemos event and
improvements to the Okemos and Haslett downtown areas as well as the Grand River corridor. He
noted his attendance at the Tri County Regional Planning Commission’s (TCRPC) Urban Services
Management Subcommittee where information was shared that the Tri-County region (including
Meridian Township) will have a one-year access to receive assistance through an urban
sustainability partnership on targeted ways to develop public/private partnerships. He added
assistance would also be available during that one year period to develop partnerships with non-
profits, work on the Master Plan, evolution of retail corridors, complete street analyses, adaptive
reuse of buildings and issues relative to parking constraints. He also reported his attendance at the
Harris Nature Center’s (HNC) annual Nature Friend’s barbeque on June 10™ which honored
volunteers.

Trustee Styka voiced his pleasure at the success of the Celebrate Downtown Okemos Event. He
reported Music in the Village begins Wednesday, June 16™ for six (6) Wednesdays at 7:00 P.M. in
the Historical Village. Trustee Styka announced the Farmers Market will open on Wednesdays
beginning July 1%. He reported the annual Meridian Township fireworks display will take place on
July 4™, adding Culvers will host a fundraiser on June 24™ with a percentage of the proceeds to be
donated to the fireworks event.

Trustee Veenstra addressed the communication contained in the Board packet from Noel Walker
regarding the improved appearance of the face of the former’s Travelers Club. He spoke to the
issue of whether a failure to approve is or is not a denial, requesting an opinion from the new
Township attorney. Trustee Veenstra requested an explanation as to the purpose of revealing in a
recent press release regarding a home invasion that the home housed a medical marihuana
caregiver operation. He offered his opinion on a recent Township press release regarding grass
height, stating the Township’s vegetation ordinance is poorly written. Trustee Veenstra critiqued
the verbiage “other vegetation” by stating trees, shrubs and flowers would not be subject to the
eight (8) inch height requirement.

PAGE 3




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, JUNE 16, 2015 REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT*

10.

Trustee Scales congratulated the police department on its press release regarding a home invasion
and robbery where the home was occupied by its residents. Trustee Scales attended the last two
Planning Commission meetings to understand ways to develop a “win-win” for nearby residents
and the developer of Ember Oaks. Trustee Scales brought forth a request mentioned at last
month’s neighborhood leadership meeting for a streetlight at the intersection of Tihart and Marsh
Roads to assist with increased bicycle traffic along Marsh Road. He reported his attendance at a
meeting held at the Meridian Senior Center where Representative Sam Singh provided information
on a variety of topics relevant to seniors. Trustee Scales also reported his attendance, along with
other members of the Board, at the retirement party of Ray Severy, the Director of Public Works
and Engineering, who served the Township over the last 14 years.

Trustee Scales noted meetings with owners of taxi cab companies in the area revealed owners
prefer to have an age limit of 23 for their drivers due to the insurance costs and added insurance
risk. These meetings were held in response to Trustee Veenstra’s concern that individuals 18 years
of age were being denied the ability to be a taxi operator.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Treasurer Brixie moved to approve the agenda as submitted. Seconded by Trustee Scales.

VOICE VOTE: Motion 6-0.

CONSENT AGENDA
Supervisor LeGoff reviewed the consent agenda.
Treasurer Brixie moved to adopt the Consent Agenda. Seconded by Trustee Styka.

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Scales, Styka, Veenstra, Supervisor LeGoff, Treasurer
Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus
NAYS: None
Motion carried 6-0.

A. Communications
Treasurer Brixie moved that the communications be received and placed on file, and any
communications not already assigned for disposition be referred to the Township Manager
or Supervisor for follow-up. Seconded by Trustee Styka.

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Scales, Styka, Veenstra, Supervisor LeGoff, Treasurer
Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus
NAYS: None
Motion carried 6-0.

B. Minutes
Treasurer Brixie moved to approve and ratify the minutes of the June 2, 2015 Regular
Meeting. Seconded by Trustee Styka.

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Scales, Styka, Veenstra, Supervisor LeGoff, Treasurer
Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus
NAYS: None
Motion carried 6-0.

C. Bills
Treasurer Brixie moved that the Township Board approve the Manager’s Bills as follows:
Common Cash $1,723,641.98
Public Works $ 323,306.29
Total Checks $2,046,948.27
Credit Card Transactions $7,822.48
Total Purchases $2,054,770.75
ACH Payments $ 684,056.78

PAGE 4




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, JUNE 16, 2015 REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT*

Seconded by Trustee Styka.

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Scales, Styka, Veenstra, Supervisor LeGoff, Treasurer

Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus
NAYS: None
Motion carried 6-0.

(Bill list in Official Minute Book)

D. Firework Permit — Meridian Township 4™ of July Display
Treasurer Brixie moved to approve the Fireworks Permit for the Meridian Township 4™ of
July Celebration on July 4, 2015 by pyrotechnic operator Night Magic Displays. Rain date
will be July 5, 2015. Seconded by

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Scales, Styka, Veenstra, Supervisor LeGoff, Treasurer

Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus
NAYS: None
Motion carried 6-0.

11. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY (See Agenda Items #13A, #13F)

12. HEARINGS (None)

13. ACTION ITEMS

Supervisor LeGoff opened Public Remarks.

Neil Bowlby, 6020 Beechwood Drive, Haslett, offered grammatical critique to language contained in
Agenda Items #13B and #13F.

Leonard Provencher, 5824 Buena Parkway, Haslett, spoke in opposition to the selection of the Fahey
Firm as Township counsel because of past “biases” expressed by the chief lawyer relative to certain
medical marihuana issues which may surface in the general state election by referendum. He
expressed doubts that the lawyer can separate his personal values from representing the Township
with a clear legal voice. Mr. Provencher expressed appreciation that the Township fought for the
retention of five (5) PEG channels as contained in the Comcast Uniform Agreement.

Supervisor LeGoff closed Public Remarks.

A. Okemos Road Redevelopment Agreement
Trustee Veenstra moved to authorize the Township Manager to sign the attached purchase
agreement with Evergreen Companies for the purchase of the former Central Fire Station (2150
Clinton Street) and the MARC (4675 Okemos Road). Seconded by Trustee Scales.

Treasurer Brixie offered the following friendly amendment:

Add “and addendum” after “Agreement”

The friendly amendment was not accepted by the maker.

Board and staff discussion:

Addendum sets a ceiling of $75,000 on the amount of “defects” in the building to be repaired by the
Township

Addendum was attached to the Buy and Sell Agreement and is, therefore, included in the Agreement
The original motion covers any addendum as addendums are part of the Agreement

Request for Proposal (RFP) included a condition on the maximum commission of 5%

Developer has committed to a cash deal

PAGE 5




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, JUNE 16, 2015 REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT*

Necessity of including the paragraph regarding new mortgage if the buyer is paying cash: (Questions for
the Attorney (See Agenda Item #10))
Is the paragraph about a new mortgage superfluous and ought to be deleted?

A. The agreement does provide for cash. The second provision about the mortgage also provides that
the payment will be in cash, but it gives the purchaser the opportunity to get a mortgage by the time
the closing comes about. If he doesn’t have the money otherwise, it gives the Township the right to
cancel. The closing is October 1%, so the cash wouldn’t be exchanged until the closing, in any event.
That’s an opportunity to give the purchaser a chance to get the financing put in place to pay in cash,
which he has agreed to do.

Q. I believe the closing is by October 1%, not necessarily on October 1%; it may be sooner.
A. Tt may be later, as he has an opportunity to extend that, too.

Continued Board and staff discussion:

e Township purchased the Meridian Area Resource Center (Marc) property several years ago for
$500,000, approximately half of the land included in this purchase
Net price of $525,000 is a good sale price given the appraisal of the property

¢ Proposed use on the property will be an attractive development for downtown Okemos and will
hopefully stimulate other redevelopment near the intersection of Okemos and Hamilton Roads

o Language in the contract includes a $35,000 credit to have the owner show the first physical

improvement by no later than December 31, 2015 and remove the old fire station building no later

than April 30, 2016

Appreciation the Township was able to obtain a full price offer for the subject property

Township will obtain a great local restaurant in the downtown Okemos area

Proposed development has generated excitement among nearby residents

Proposed project will “kickstart” the downtown Okemos area

Need for penalty provisions for non-compliance of deadlines: (Questions for the Attorney (See Agenda

Item #10))

Q. One of my big concerns, and I know it is the concern of many citizens, is that we not have another
property in downtown Okemos which just sits there, not being developed even though someone has
purchased it or has proposed that they are going to develop it. I don’t see any penalty for violation of
Paragraph 9 of the Addendum, which is that they will actually begin no later than December 31, 2015
or completed by December 31* of the following year. Is there no penalty in this that I could find?

A. There is none.

Q. There is nothing in here about getting an apartment building built; it could just end up being an empty
field behind the restaurant. There was nothing at all that I could find; am I correct?
A. Yes.

Continued Board and staff discussion:

Penalty provisions should be included for non-compliance

A condition regarding construction of an apartment building should be included in the agreement
Appreciation to the redevelopment committee members for their hard work

Concern with additional punitive conditions

Offer on the table exceeded all other offers by several hundred thousand dollars

$35,000 credit will dissipate if deadlines are not met (language included in addendum 1%)
Agreement met the concerns previously expressed by the Board

Purchaser does have plans to build on the back of the property

Property owner intends to save the large tree on the property

Ability of a Board member to abstain from voting

Ability of a trustee to abstain from voting: (Questions for the Attorney (See Agenda Item #10))
Q. I'don’t have a literal conflict of interest, but my son worked for one of the other bidders, so it is an
appearance of a conflict of interest. I would ask the attorney whether I can abstain or not.

Continued Board discussion:
¢ Recusing oneself from a vote v. abstaining

PAGE 6




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, JUNE 16, 2015 REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT*

Q. As a member of the Board and having an obligation to vote, as you declare a conflict of interest,
then you declare it to the members of the Board and they vote on whether or not that is a conflict.
Am I correct?

A. T think that a trustee who feels he has a conflict of interest can abstain from voting,

Continued Board discussion:

e Request for the parliamentarian to research this question

e Board member suggestion to temporarily table this issue for the attorney to review the procedure
for someone to recuse themselves

s If the Board is satisfied there is no conflict, the Board member will vote on this issue

Without objection, a straw vote was taken on whether Trustee Styka should vote on the Okemos
Road redevelopment agreement, the results of which were a majority was in favor.

TOWNSHIP ATTORNEY COMMENT: Let me just add if I could. There is a Michigan Supreme Court
case, back in 1939 or so, that says a spouse can vote on another spouse’s contract.

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Scales, Styka, Veenstra, Supervisor LeGoff, Treasurer
Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus
NAYS: None
Motion carried 6-0.

B. Investment Policy
Treasurer Brixie moved [and read into the record] NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE
TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby approves the
updated Meridian Township Investment Policy. Seconded by Trustee Scales.

Board discussion:

e No language in the investment policy that the Township should only deposit money in banks and
credit unions which are insured

e Specifics in the law were not included because the entire law is very lengthy, but depository only in
insured institution is covered under the law

TOWNSHIP ATTORNEY COMMENT: The Deposit of Public Monies Act specifically requires it to be
in an insured institution, the principal office or branch office of which is in the state.

e Insured institution vs. insured funds
o There is a $250,000 limit on Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured money
e This policy is sent to every institution with which the Township invests

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Scales, Styka, Veenstra, Supervisor LeGoff, Treasurer
Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus
NAYS: None
Motion carried 6-0.

C. Agreement for Legal Services —~ Fahey Firm
Trustee Styka moved to authorize the Township Manager to sign the attached legal services
engagement letter with Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes PL.C. Seconded by Trustee Scales.

Board discussion:

Length of agreement is for three (3) years

$5,000 monthly retainer will be reviewed by both parties after six (6) months

List of included and non-included charges is not a comprehensive list

Firm does not charge for computerized legal research

Steve Schultz to act as Township Attorney

Although the attorney will not have regular office hours at the Municipal Building, the Township has
the ability to have legal counsel attend meetings on an as needed basis

PAGE 7



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, JUNE 16, 2015 REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT*

Clause for termination included in the agreement

All non-discrimination language included

If outside counsel is necessary for specialized legal services, they would be under the guidance of
Mr, Schultz

When the Township is sued, the Township’s insurance company provides legal representation
Appreciation for the firm’s presentation to the Board when it was interviewed

Appreciation to the representation provided by the Hubbard Law Firm’s for the past decade
Appreciation for Judge Dewane’s service as the Township’s interim attorney

Board member concern with the firm’s action on an issue before the Township in 2012

During the interview process, the firm indicated it will represent the Township’s interest if it is in
opposition to the firm’s own beliefs

Appreciation to the legal services committee for their hard work

Concern the monthly retainer does not include attendance at any depositions

Litigation would be over and above the retainer, as charged by the Township’s former legal counsel
Suggestion for the legal services committee to convene in six (6) months to review the cost of the
monthly retainer

$5,000 monthly retainer does not take actual billable hours into consideration

Cap of $200 per billable hour

Board member belief this firm made false statements during the proposed rezoning of the adjacent
property from RR to PO and the ensuing referendum

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Scales, Styka, Supervisor LeGoff, Treasurer Brixie,
Clerk Dreyfus
NAYS: Trustee Veenstra
Motion carried 5-1.

. Appointment of Alternate Members to the Zoning Board of Appeals
Treasurer Brixie moved to appoint Henry Kwok and Ken Lane to the Charter Township of
Meridian Zoning Board of Appeals as an alternate. Seconded by Trustee Scales.

Board discussion: -

e Mr. Kwok is a business owner who returned to the Township to run the family business
e Mr. Lane is with the law firm of Clark Hill

o Preference to allow the Clerk to substitute a correctly worded motion

¢ Board member preference to divide the question into two separate motions

Clerk Dreyfus offered the following friendly amendment:

e moved to appoint Henry Kwok as Alternate #1 and Ken Lane as Alternate #2 to fill
vacancies on the Charter Township of Meridian Zoning Board of Appeals for terms
ending December 31, 2017,

The amended motion was accepted by the maker and seconder.

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Scales, Styka, Veenstra, Supervisor LeGoff, Treasurer
Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus
NAYS: None
Motion carried 6-0.

. Comcast Uniform Agreement

Director of Communications Deborah Guthrie summarized events which have transpired relative to the
Michigan Uniform Video Service Local Franchise agreement between Comcast and Meridian Township
over the last few months. She noted the uniform franchise agreement was delivered by Comcast on May
12" with a 30 day deadline for response. Through negotiations, the Township was able to obtain a 1%
PEG fee (equates to $100,000/year in revenue) and a letter of authorization to allow public, educational
and government (PEG) channels to be on the program guide system.

Board discussion:
e  Appreciation for all the hard work by Director Guthrie

PAGE 8




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, JUNE 16, 2015 REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT*

Cable Commission was fully behind staff

Sacrifice of a HD station to retain five (5) PEG channels

Franchise Agreement can contain any language agreeable to both parties

Uniform Agreement did not allow for any discussion of equipment, service drops, etc

Previously, there were no PEG fees obtained by the Township

Inquiry if the uniform agreement provides for a reduction of the monthly bill paid to Comcast by the
Township

Comcast does not provide the software for the program guide software

Third party vendor who manages the channel guide will charge the Township an unknown fee

F. Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Procedures and Guidelines
Clerk Dreyfus move to adopt the submitted documents (Meridian Township FOIA
Procedures and Guidelines, Summary of Meridian Township Procedures and Guidelines,
and FOIA Request - Detailed Fee Itemization Form) as components of Meridian
Township’s Freedom of Information Act written policies. Seconded by Trustee Veenstra.

Board discussion:

Clerk overview of the new state amendments passed this year

According to state law, the Board must adopt procedures and guidelines

More specific itemization of costs were written into state Jaw

Changes were made to what a municipality could legally recover in terms of cost

Changes were made to how labor charges are calculated

Michigan Townships Association (MTA) and the Michigan Municipal League (MML)
provided templates which were then customized for Meridian Township

Judge John Dewane and the Township’s new legal firm have both reviewed the documents
before the Board

Law offers a provision for modification in the future

State law goes into effect July 1, 2015

Board member concern the public has not had an opportunity to comment on these policies
Question on status as an action item v. discussion item

Recommendations from counsel regarding the FOIA procedures and guidelines: (Questions for

the Attorney (See Agenda Item #10))

In reading this, it says that the procedures and guidelines were reviewed by the law firm and
our current attorney. Are there are any recommendations that you had that are not included
in here.

I was asked to do one opinion on one specific item which I did and it is included in there.
That had to do with whether it was lawful to have the Township Manager act in an appellate
capacity. The only other thing that I encountered was the reference, when I initially read it,
to excluding people who were incarcerated. That is not what the statute says. The statute
says people under sentence of imprisonment. There is a big difference there, because you
can be in jail on bond and/or you can’t pay your bond; you are not sentenced, but you are
still incarcerated. So that was cleaned up and that was the only comment I had.

The other things mainly had to do with the fees and that is just what’s in the statute.

Continued Board discussion:

Concern with the appropriateness of including language mentioning the FOIA coordinator as
the developer of the FOIA Request Form as part of the policy (Paragraph 2 of Section 2)
Appreciation to the Clerk for his work on this issue

Appreciation for the first paragraph in the public summary of the procedures and guidelines
Board member request for the word “verbal” to be substituted by “oral” in all instances
Language being critiqued was taken directly from state statute

Use of language consistent with state law: (Questions for the Attorney (See Agenda Item #10))

Q. I would ask Judge Dewane to confirm that the Michigan act does use the term verbal, not

written, and as a result, our policy should follow that format in order to be implemented.

PAGE 9




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, JUNE 16, 2015 REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT*

A.

I can’t recall off the top of my head, but if it uses verbal, we should use verbal. It is what the
Legislature said.

Continued Board discussion:

First drafts were distributed by MTA to Clerks in May

If the policy is not adopted by July 1%, the Township could not charge FOIA fees until
adoption

Many FOIA requests will qualify for no charge under the new law as many of them are under
15 minutes of research time

If the Board chooses, it can wait until the July 7* Board meeting to adopt the new FOIA
Procedures and Guidelines with minimal financial consequence

Procedures and Guidelines were customized for Meridian Township using a compilation of
material from the MTA, MML, and the City of Kalamazoo

Board member preference for Board members to have been provided with the old policy for
comparative purposes

There was no previous written policy

Guidelines previously used to handle FOIA requests were taken directly from the FOIA
statute

Offer by the Clerk to provide Board members with a copy of the current FOIA response form
sent to the requestor by the Clerk’s office

Request for the Clerk to provide Board members with a list of changes

Most of the changes deal with the fee structure

New Freedom of Information Act Request Detailed Fee Itemization was included in the Board
packet

Township previously charged .10 per sheet for copying and the minimum hourly rate for the
person capable of fulfilling the request times the estimated number of hours, requiring a 50%
deposit if the cost calculated exceeded $50.00

Separation of contracted labor from non-contracted labor is new and changes the hourly
multiplier rate

When using specialized contract labor, the Township can charge up to six (6) times the
minimum wage

Board member concern that people might make new labor-intensive FOIA requests if the
Board does not adopt the procedures and guidelines tonight

Addressing transparency for the public by including information offered by the Clerk in the
next Board packet

Commitment by the Clerk to email Board members the current FOIA request form and a
printout of the Powerpoint presentation given by a legal firm contracted by the Michigan
Association of Municipal Clerks (MAMC)

Incarcerated individuals prohibited from submitting FOIA requests: (Questions for the Attorney

(See Agenda Item #10))

Q.

On the third page, right above Section 3 there is a paragraph which says, “A person serving a
sentence of imprisonment in a local, state or federal correctional facility is not entitled to
submit a request for a public record.” I don’t understand that, as a person sitting in prison
may need some kind of record to try to prove his innocence. What on earth is the rationale to
say people serving a prison sentence can’t make a FOIA request?

A. Again, that’s what in the statute. That is what the Legislature provided.

>0

Does anyone know why they put it in the statute?

Yes, because if you’ve ever been in the position of the Clerk (it probably doesn’t happen in
Meridian Township, but it happens in many municipalities), prisoners who have nothing else
to do are constantly making FOIA requests. They have no money and they go under the
indigent provision,

Township Manager serving as the head of the public body: (Questions for the Attorney (See

Agenda Item #10))

PAGE 10




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, JUNE 16, 2015 REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT*

Q. My second question would be to you, Judge Dewane. You said one of the legal issues
usually asked is whether someone could appeal the denial of a FOIA request (I think the
statute says) to the head of the public body, which I thought would have been the Supervisor.
Meridian Township adopted a policy that it was the Manager. How did you rule on that
question?

A. Ifyou read only the FOIA statute, that’s the conclusion you come to. But if you read in
conjunction with the FOIA statute the Township Manager provision in the Charter Township
statute, you’ll see that the Township Manager can be vested with any power that could
lawfully be performed by anybody else.

Continued Board discussion:

¢ Board member concern with transparency in order for Township residents to understand the
ramifications when significant changes to Township policies and procedures are adopted
Current FOIA request is on the Township website
Policies and guidelines being voted on was uploaded to the Township website on Friday as
part of the packet and was available for public perusal prior to tonight’s Board meeting

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Styka, Veenstra, Supervisor LeGoff, Treasurer Brixie,
Clerk Dreyfus
NAYS: Trustee Scales
Motion carried 5-1.

14. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS
Supervisor LeGoff opened Public Remarks.

Teri Banas, 5606 Creekwood Lane, Haslett, President of the HBA, gave a brief history on the
property located at 6201 Lake Drive and voiced her support for Township acquisition of this tax
foreclosed property. She noted the HBA has offered to help improve the gardens currently on the
property and create a redesign contest for the parcel.

Leonard Provencher, 5824 Buena Parkway, Haslett, requested the Board commence the 2015 Citizen
Survey process right after Labor Day to have greater participation by Township residents.

Neil Bowlby, 6020 Beechwood Drive, Haslett, addressed items regarding the 2015 Citizen Survey,
among them the number of people who did not respond and civic involvement. He posed several
suggestions for customized questions (.e.g., pension liability funding, marihuana, possible dog
ordinances, etc,) He drew attention to the importance of how the customized questions are framed.

Supervisor LeGoff closed Public Remarks.

A. Tax Foreclosed Properties
_ Treasurer Brixie summarized the two (2) parcels of land noticed by Ingham County Treasurer
Schertzing which were foreclosed for unpaid property taxes as outlined in staff memorandum
dated June 11, 20185,

Ingham County Treasurer Schertzing explained action taken by Ingham County to date on the
parcel located at 6201 Lake Drive. He stated the structure, asphalt and any hard surface will be
removed by the county at its cost ($6,000-$7,000) within 30-60 days. Treasurer Schertzing noted
this parcel will be included in the bundle of tax auctioned properties around the county designated
as blighted. He stated it can be turned over to the Township prior to year’s end.

Board discussion of the parcel at 6201 Lake Drive:

e  Water to the property has been turned off at the curb

e Township met with members of the HBA and the Lake Lansing Property Owners Association
(LLPOA)

e LLPOA submitted a letter in unanimous support of the project between Ingham County and
Meridian Township

¢ Suggestion to have the ICRD abandon the road to bring more greenspace to the area

PAGE 11




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, JUNE 16, 2015 REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT*

15.

16.

Only one drive is being serviced on Lake Drive
ICRD concern with the acute angle on Reynolds Road relative to installation of a right turn
lane
¢ Bundle in which the parcel would be included will not likely be purchased during the auction
process
Subject parcel belongs in the public trust
Township has the right of first refusal and could obtain the parcel by paying back taxes
Suggestion to let all the taxing authorities share in the tax burden
Once the subject parcel has been sent to auction twice, it will be turned over to the Township
at no cost unless the Township objects
e Appreciation to the Ingham County Treasurer for suggesting the process by which the
Township can obtain this parcel
» Appreciation for the collaborative effort of the Ingham County and Meridian Township
Treasurers

B. 2015 Township Citizen Survey
Assistant Township Manager/Director of Public Works Derek Perry provided the 2012 Citizen
Survey results as requested by the Board at its June 2, 2015 meeting.

Board and staff discussion:

» Past four citizen surveys have been conducted in the month of May

¢ Board member belief local firms can provide this type of survey service

o Suggested custom question which can be asked could be whether citizens support an increase

in the local road tax

Preference to keep with the existing surveyor for benchmarking purposes

Suggestion to schedule some informal public gatherings to glean information by asking the

same questions

Board member preference to change firms conducting the survey this time

Survey has limited response rate and the 330 respondents offer skewed responses

General questions are too generic

Four (4) customized questions specific to Meridian Township are not enough

Information technology is very different than what existed in 2003, the first year a citizen

survey was conducted

Many aspects of the township have changed since 2003

* Board member support to expend some additional funds to use MSU for a survey specifically
customed for Meridian Township, using detailed questions which drill down and get to the
“heart” of the matter

o New benchmarks would be created which would all be specific to Meridian Township
The new survey process could use generic questions which compare to the benchmarks used
in the national survey and then have specific questions for Meridian Township

e Topic for discussion could be the time frame used between surveys

PUBLIC REMARKS
Supervisor LeGoff opened Public Remarks.

Neil Bowlby, 6020 Beechwood Drive, Haslett, stated whatever method is used for the citizen survey
will produce bias. He suggested some incentive be provided (e.g., sweepstakes) to solicit increased
return of responses. He objected to medical marihuana being mentioned in a recent press release that
speculated on why the reported home invasion had occurred.

Supervisor LeGoff closed Public Remarks.

FINAL BOARD MEMBER COMMENT

Treasurer Brixie responded to the previous speaker regarding why she believed the home invasion
took place at that specific residence (medical marihuana operation), She believed the inclusion of
identifying the residence as a medical marihuana operation in the press release was a service to the
Township and all the neighbors. She asked if there was Board interest in placing the medical
marihuana issue on a future Board agenda.

PAGE 12



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, JUNE 16, 2015 REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT*

Trustee Styka was puzzled as to why zoning regulations with respect to medical marihuana have not
come before the Board for final action, as the Board spent a great deal of time on this issue. He
believed because the home invasion included the use of a firearm and residents were held at gunpoint,
it is a different scenario than a simple home invasion and the public needed to be aware and wary.
Trustee Styka also believed it important for medical marihuana providers to be aware of the reason
for the home invasion and take necessary precautions.

Clerk Dreyfus stated the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act (MMMA) has strict provisions on
confidentiality and believed it a violation of the act for anyone to publicly speculate whether someone is
a caregiver, user or provider. He asked for a legal opinion from the new legal services firm if the
police department is allowed to reveal whether or not a home or person is a caregiver, provider or user
under the MMMA. Clerk Dreyfus added the medical marihuana issue was debated by the Board over
many meetings, and a subcommittee was formed which provided a reasonable compromise accepted by
the Board and then sent to the Planning Commission. He believed the Planning Commission has not
taken action on the medical mariluana issue to date,

Trustee Scales requested the Township Manager urge the Planning Commission to move the medical
marihuana issue up on its agenda.

Trustee Veenstra inquired as to why the Township would only get four local questions on the citizen
survey when there were six (6) on the last survey in 2012. He believed citizens are most concerned
about the condition of roads, and suggested one of the questions should be to ask if residents favor an
increase in the gas tax. Trustee Veenstra suggested one of the new questions to be asked could be
regarding the use of recreational marihuana. He did not believe it necessary to spend much time on a
discussion of the square footage allowed in order to grow 12 marihuana plants, believing it covered
already by state law.,

17. ADJOURNMENT

Supervisor LeGoff adjourned the meeting at 9:15 P.M.
ELIZABETH LEGOFF BRETT DREYFUS, CMMC
TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR TOWNSHIP CLERK

Sandra K. Otto, Secretary

PAGE 13




9.C

Charter Township of Meridian éé@%
Board Meeting
7/107/2015

MOVED THAT THE TOWNSHIP BOARD APPROVE THE MANAGER'S
BILLS AS FOLLOWS:

COMMON CASH $ 1,122,841.49
PUBLIC WORKS 172,714.17
TOTAL CHECKS: $ 1,295,555.66
CREDIT CARD 'I"RANSACTIONS 11,769.05
TOTAL PURCHASES: $ 1,307,324.71

ACH PAYMENTS $ 464,734.94




07/01/2015 09:53 AM INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
User: CHAR EXP CHECK RUN DATES 07/07/2015 - 07/07/2015
DB: Meridian JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID
BANK CODE: GF - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK
COMMON CASH

Vendor Name

Description Amount Check #
1. 4IMPRINT
T-SHIRTS FOR HOMTV INTERNS-— NIGHT MEETINGS 728.04
2. 54-A DISTRICT COURT
CASH BOND 150.00 89994
3. ADP INC.
6/12 PAYROLL PROCESSING FEE 1,834.66
4, ALLEY T SCREEN PRINT & EMBROIDERY
STAFF T-SHIRTS 249.40
5. ALLGRAPHICS CORP
SOFTBALL JERSEYS FOR HASLETT 308.00
SOFTBALL JERSEYS FOR OKEMOS 980.00
FITNESS PROGRAM SHIRTS/BASEBALL CAPS 300.00
SAND VOLLEYBALL CHAMPION SHIRTS 309.00
TOTAL 1,897.00
6. AMERICAN RENTALS
TENT/CHAIR RENTAL-MEMORIAL DAY EVENT 310.00
7. ARTISTIC BRONZE INC
PLAQUE FOR FRIEND OF THE PARK TREE 115.00
8. ASAP PRINTING
FORMS AND PAMPHLET PRINTING 145.50
WILLIAMSTON FLAG FOOTBALL FLYERS 191.95
WILLIAMSTON CHEER FLYERS 152.96
WILLIAMSTON TACKLE FOOTBALL FLYERS 152.96
SOCCER FLYERS 294.42
FLAG FOOTBALL FLYERS 294.42
HYRA SOCCER FLYERS 224.23
HYRA FLAG FOOTBALL FLYERS 224.23
TOTAL 1,680.67
9. AT &T
JUNE SERVICE 39.69
10. AT&T MOBILITY
JUNE SERVICE 52.27 89976
11. BANNASCH WELDING INC
TRUCK REPAIR/WELDING 385.14
12. BARYAMES CLEANERS
POLICE UNIFORM CLEANING 744.75
13. BEST BEST & KRIEGER
LEGAL FEES-HOM-TV 270.00
14. BEYER ROOFING CO
RE-ROOF THE SERVICE CENTER 157,503.00
15. BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN
JULY PREMIUM 99,639.18 89980
JULY PREMIUM 2,837.51 89981
TOTAL 102,476.69
16. BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT
JUNE STREET LIGHTS 528.74
17. BS&A SOFTWARE
PAYROLL & TIMESHEET SOFTWARE 12,595.00
18. CATHERINE ADAMS
MAY MILEAGE REIMB 37.09
19. CBI INC
HNC COPIER MAINT-MAY 23.12
20. CENTRAL STATES ALLIANCE
CONF SPONSOR REVENUE REC'VD BY MCT DUE CSACM 6,635.00
CONF REG-HOM-TV STAFF 1,095.00
TOTAL 7,730.00

21. CHRISTI KRAUS
PAYROLL WITHHOLDING-DEC MEMORIAL FUND 35.00 89986




07/01/2015 09:53 AM INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
User: CHAR EXP CHECK RUN DATES 07/07/2015 - 07/07/2015
DB: Meridian JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID
BANK CODE: GF - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK
COMMON CASH

Vendor Name

Description Amount Check #
22. CINTAS CORPORATION #725
MECHANICS UNIFORMS 24.66
MECHANICS UNIFORMS 24.66
TOTAL 49.32
23. CITY PULSE
FARM MRKT ADS/SPEC EDITION 341.10
TWP NOTICES 140.98
TOTAL 482.08
24 . COMCAST CABLE
JULY SERVICE-MUN BLDG 164.61
JULY SERVICE-HNC 129.58
TOTAL 294.19
25. CONSUMERS ENERGY
PATHWAY LEASE 563.08
26. COTY KENNETH
REIMB-VOLUNTEER LUNCH EXPENSE 41.93 89977
27. CRANDELL BROS TRUCKING CO
SAND FOR VOLLEYBALL COURTS/N MERIDIAN ROAD PARK 3,000.00
SAND FOR VOLLEYBALL COURTS/ N MERIDIAN ROAD PARK 2,000.00
SAND FOR VOLLEYBALL COURTS 4,008.20
BEACH SAND FOR VOLLEYBALL COURTS 1,000.00
BEACH SAND FOR VOLLEYBALL COURTS 2,002.60
TOTAL 12,010.80
28. DAVID BAILEY
INSTRUCTOR'S FEE-PITCHING CLINICS 120.00
29. DBI
OFFICE SUPPLIES 94.95
OFFICE SUPPLIES 27.55
OFFICE SUPPLIES 61.03
OFFICE SUPPLIES 60.14
OFFICE SUPPLIES 20.12
OFFICE SUPPLIES 129.99
TOTAL 393.78
30. DEBRA ELLIS
REFUND SUP FEE-NOT REQUIRED 200.00
31. DELTA DENTAL
JULY PREMIUM 13,159.44 89987
32. DISCOUNT ONE HOUR SIGNS
GRAPHICS - POLICE INTERCEPTERS 450.00
PARK SIGNS 143.90
TOTAL 633.90
33. DLZ MICHIGAN INC
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR NEW FIRE STATION 5,050.00
34. DOUGLAS SIGNS
BLDG PERMIT FEE REFUND-1982 GRD RIVER 100.00
35. DOUGLASS SAFETY SYSTEMS LLC
FIRE EQUIPMENT/GEAR 549.26
36. ELECTION SOURCE
OPTECH INSIGHT TABULATOR ANNUAL MAINTENANCE 2,858.00
37. FEDEX
SHIPPING CHRGS 376.44
SHIPPING CHRGS 18.43
TOTAL 394.87

38. FIRE SERVICE MANAGEMENT
FIRE GEAR CERTIFICATION/REPAIRS 92.50




07/01/2015 09:53 AM INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
User: CHAR EXP CHECK RUN DATES 07/07/2015 - 07/07/2015
DB: Meridian JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID
BANK CODE: GF - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK
COMMON CASH
Vendor Name

Description Amount Check #
39. GIGUERE HOMES INC.
PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE/2565 SOPHIEA 750.00
REFUND-PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE/2638 SOPHIEA 750.00
TOTAL 1,500.00
40. GRANICUS INC
JULY MAINT-MANAGED SERVICE/HOM-TV 725.00
JULY -OPEN PLATFORM/GOV SERVICE-HOM-TV 325,00
TOTAL 1,050.00
41. HALT FIRE INC
WATER VALVE REPAIR KIT TRUCK 501 1,034.43
42. HANG TUFF FASTPITCH
INSTRUCTOR'S FEE-PITCHING CLINIC 120.00
43, HANNEWALD LAMB FARM
FARM MRK VENDOR - 6/20/15 20.00
44, HASLETT COMMUNITY EDUCATION
BASEBALL/SOFTBALL CLINIC-SPACE RENTAL 189.00
45. HASLETT PUBLIC SCHOOLS
2ND QTR MAINT REIMB 4,434.39
46. HERBERT L CONFER JR
FARM MARKET VENDOR- 5/30/2015 22.00
47. INGHAM COUNTY HEALTH DEPT
CAMP LICENSING FEE - HNC 220.00
48, INTEGRITY HEATING & AIR LLC
REFUND-PLUMBING PERMIT FEE 125.00
49, JEN MALINOWSKI
HNC CAMP FEE REFUND 60.00
50. JOHNNY MAC'S
BELTS FOR SOFTBALL AND BASEBALL TEAMS 252.00
SOCKS FOR BASEBALL AND SOFTBALL TEAMS 1,733.45
BASEBALL/SOFTBALL EQUIPMENT 249.50
BASEBALL/SOFTBALL SUPPLIES 184.90
TOTAL 2,419.85
51. KAMPS INC
PLAYGROUND SAFETY SURFACE 2,015.00
52. KIT RICH
MAY MILEAGE REIMB 67.85
53. KODIAK EMERGENCY VEHICLES
BRAUN CHIEF XL TYPE III AMUBLANCE ON 2015 CHEVY G4 179,540.00 89984
54. KOLACHE KITCHEN
FARM MARKET VENDOR - 6/13/15 8.00
55. KUSTOM SIGNALS INC
ANTENNAS-POLICE VEHICLES 108.00
56. L3 COMM MOBILE VISION INC
CAMERA REPAIR-POLICE VEHICLE 125.00
POLICE EQUIP REPAIR 153.00
TOTAL 278.00

57. LANSING SANITARY SUPPLY INC

TISSUE DISPENSERS FOR PARKS 244.25
58. LANSING UNIFORM COMPANY

STANDARD POLICE UNIFORM PURCHASE 990.50
UNIFORMS-FIRE DEPT 551.20
UNIFORMS-FIRE DEPT 12.00
POLICE UNIFORM PURCHASE 121.00
POLICE UNIFORM PURCHASE 714.00

TOTAL 2,388.70

59. LEAK PETROLEUM EQUIPMENT INC
FUEL ISLAND REPAIRS FOUND DURING ANNUAL INSPECTION 4,749.60




07/01/2015 09:53 AM

User: CHAB EXP CHECK RUN DATES 07/07/2015 - 07/07/2015
Meridian JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID

DB:

BANK CODE: GF - CHECK TYPE:
COMMON CASH

Vendor Name

PAPER CHECK

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

Description Amount Check #
60. MARK EBENER
FARM MARKET VENDOR - 6/20/15 35.00
61. MARK'S LOCK SHOP, INC.
KEYS AND PADLOCKS 42.00
62. MASON STATE BANK
REINVESTING IN MASON STATE BANK CD 495,254.60 89991
63. MATTHEW BENDER & CO INC
MI MCLS UPDATES 310.31
64. MEGAN SLIVA
FITNESS INSTRUCTOR'[S FEE 112.00
65. MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP PETTY CASH
PETTY CASH REIMB- SERVICE CENTER 343.11
PETTY CASH REIMB 313.97
TOTAL 657.08
66. MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP RETAINAGE
RETAINAGE-MOORE TROSPER 545,20
67. MICHIGAN DEMOLITION
INSTALLATION OF SAND VOLLEYBALL COURT 10,000.00
68. MICHIGAN POLICE EQUIPMENT CO
AMMUNITION 9,351.00
69. MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY
DARE CONF REG-JUHRS & SCACCIA 200.00
70. MICHIGAN.COM
FARM MRKT ADS 123.50
71. MOLLY HUNSBERGER
FITNESS INSTRUCTORS FEE 48.00
72. MOORE MEDICAL LLC
EMS OPERATING SUPPLIES 167.91
EMS OPERATING SUPPLIES 1,383.02
EMS OPERATING SUPPLIES 112.81
C BATTERIES-FIRE DEPT 26.07
TOTAL 1,689.81
73. MOORE TROSPER CONSTRUCTION
2015 CONCRETE REPAIR CONTRACT 4,906.80
74. MOSQUITO SQUAD OF GREATER LANSING
TREATMENT AT NANCY MOORE PARK 375.00
MOSQUITO CONTROL - MARKET AND ADMIN BUILDING 175.00
TREATMENT AT NANCY MOORE PARK 375.00
MOSQUITO CONTROL FOR MARKET AND ADMIN BUILDING 175.00
TOTAL 1,100.00
75. NOKOMIS LEARNING CENTER
JULY P'MT/PARKING LOT LIGHT COSTS 70.09
76. NORTH GRAND RIVER COOPERATIVE
AMBULANCE LINEN 378.10
77. OFFICEMAX
PRINTER INK 81.62
RECYCLED MULTI-USE WHITE COPY PAPER 1,773.43 89978
TOTAL 1,855.05
78. OKEMOS COMMUNITY EDUCATION
SOCCER FIELD RENTAL 1,200.00
79. PITNEY BOWES
POSTAGE METER LEASE P'MT 822.00
80. PRO AIR
SERVICE CALL-DECOMMISSION COMPRESSOR 90.10
81. PROFESSIONAL BENEFITS SERVICES INC
JULY ADMIN/PREMIUM 8,742.60 89983
FLEX ADMIN FEE-JULY 126.00

TOTAL

8,868.

60



07/01/2015 09:53 AM

User: CHAR

DB:

Meridian

Vendor Name

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 07/07/2015 - 07/07/2015

JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID
BANK CODE: GF - CHECK TYPE:

COMMON CASH

PAPER CHECK

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

Description Amount Check #
82. PRO-TECH MECHANICAL SERVICES
A/C REPAIRS HARRIS CENTER 330.00
HVAC MAINTENANCE SERVICES 2,933.75
A/C REPAIRS HNC,N.FIRE STATION 310.00
TOTAL 3,573.75
83. PURE GREEN
ATHLETIC FIELD WEED AND FEED 1,725.00
84. RESERVE ACCOUNT
TWP POSTAGE 2,500.00
85. RON ST GERMAIN
INSTRUCTOR'S FEE-PHOTOGRAPHY CLASS 866.25
86. SAFETY SYSTEMS INC
ANNUAL ALARM SERVICE AGREEMENT-VILLAGE 389.00
ANNUAL ALARM SERVICE AGREEMENT-MUN BLDG 378.00
ANNUAL ALARM SERVICE AGREEMENT-HNC 389.00
ANNUAL ALARM SERVICE AGREEMENT-PS BLDG 532.00
ANNUAL ALARM SERVICE AGREEMENT-FIRE STN 567.00
ANNUAL ALARM SERVICE AGREEMENT - SRVC CTR 775.00
TOTAL 3,030.00 |
87. SAMIA'S MEDITERRANEAN GOURMET LLC
FARM MARKET VENDOR - 6/13/15 40.00
88. SANDRA STONE
FARM MARKET VENDOR - 6/13/15 34.00
FARM MARKET VENDOR - 5/30/2015 23.00
TOTAL 57.00
89. SAXON INC.
BUSINESS CARDS-FIRE DEPT 61.57
90. SIGNATURE FORD INC.
FORD POLICE UTILITY INTERCEPTOR 27,257.00
91. SOLDAN'S FEED & PET SUPPLIES
CANINE SUPPLIES FOR TWO DOGS 46,99
CANINE SUPPLIES FOR TWO DOGS 32.99
CANINE SUPPLIES FOR TWO DOGS 46.99
TOTAL 126.97
92. SPARTAN COUNTRY MEATS LLC
FARM MARKET VENDOR - 6/20/15 32.00
93. SPARTAN DISTRIBUTORS
TORO REPAIR PARTS 131.93
94. STAMP RITE INC
NOTARY STAMP 35.50
95, STATE CHEMICAL SOLUTIONS
PARK MAINT SUPPLIES 98.09
96. STATE OF MICHIGAN
STORMWATER CERTIFICATION-YOUNES 35.00 89973
97. SUPERIOR SAW
REPLACEMENT SAW BLADES AND CHAINS 378.41
98. SUPREME SANITATION
PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL-NEWTON ST 40.00
PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL-WILLIAMSTON 42,50
PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL-WILLIAMSTON MS 160.00
PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL-KINAWA 80.00
PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL-HILLBROOK 80.00
PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL - TOWNER 40.00
PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL-HNC 80.00
TOTAL 522.50
99. SUZANNE THREADGOULD
FARM MARKET VENDOR - 5/30/2015 17.00




07/01/2015 09:53 AM INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
User: CHAR EXP CHECK RUN DATES 07/07/2015 - 07/07/2015
DB: Meridian JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID
BANK CODE: GF ~ CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK
COMMON CASH

Vendor Name

Description Amount Check #
100 TDS

JUNE SERVICE 1,354.34
101 THE HARKNESS LAW FIRM PLLC

LEGAL FEES-UTC 6,768.73
102 THE LINCOLN NAT'L LIFE INS CO

JULY PREMIUM 2,%10.31 89982
103 THE POLACK CORPORATION ‘

MAY METER CHRG~-7 COPIERS 967.45 893979

METER CHRGS - 7 COPIERS 1,272.24

TOTAL 2,239.69

104 U.S. BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE

COPIER(7) MAINT CONTRACT 954.00

105 UNUM LIFE INSURANCE CO OF AMERICA
* PAYROLL WITHHOLDING- LIFE INS 536.46 89974

106 URBAN LAND INSTITUTE

ANNUAL DUES-KIESELBACH 220.00
107 VAN ATTA'S FLOWER SHOP

FRIEND OF THE PARK TREE-HISTORICAL VILLAGE 354.99

FLOWERS/GARDEN CLUB ~-TWP PARKS 93.98

PLANTS FOR TWP PARKS 168.25

FLOERS/GARDEN CLUB PROJECTS 98.55

FLOWERS FOR TWP PARKS 11.22

FLOWERS/GARDEN PROJECT 57.56

PLANTS/SHRUBS FOR TWP PARKS 83.57

TREE-NANCY MOORE PARK-WILL BE REIMB BY GRANT 742.41

PLANTS FOR PARKS 48.58

TOTAL 1,659.11

108 WEST SHORE FIRE

SCBA MASK STRAPS 203.16
109 WILBUR HOCHSTETLER

FARM MARKET VENDOR - 6/20/15 196.00
110 WILL JOHNSON

SIGN PERMIT FEE REFUND-1830 GRD RIVER 500.00
111 WILLIAM CRAFTS

INSTRUCTOR'S FEE-PITCHING CLINIC 120.00

TOTAL - ALL VENDORS 1,122,841.49




07/01/2015 09:56 AM INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
User: CHAR EXP CHECK RUN DATES 07/07/2015 - 07/07/2015
DB: Meridian JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID
BANK CODE: PW - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK
PUBLIC WORKS

Vendor Name

Description Amount Check #
1. BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN
JULY PREMIUM 16,324.31 25878
JULY PREMIUM/VISION 342.90 25879
TOTAL 16,667.21
2., CARL SCHLEGEL INC
SAND - WATER DEPT 342.00
3. CHAMPION WOODS, LLC
JULY SETTLEMENT P'MT 4,100.00
4. DALE AMES
REFUND-OVERP'MT OF FINAL UTILITY BILL 31.90
5. DELTA DENTAL
JULY PREMIUM 1,525.58 25881
6. JAMES CESPEDES
REFUND-OVERP'MT OF FINAL UTILITY BILL 114.39
7. MATTHEW FOREMAN
REIMB-MDEQ TEST EXPENSE 70.00
8. MAULDON BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION LLC
CONSTRUCT TOWAR GARDENS LIFT STATION 130,346.00
9. MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP RETAINAGE
RETAINAGE-MOORE TROSPER 840,50
RETAINAGE - MAULDON 5,554.00
TOTAL 6,394.50

10. MIDWEST GAS INSTRUMENT SERVICE

IMPACT SENSOR CARTRIDGE 313.42
11. MOORE TROSPER CONSTRUCTION

2015 CONCRETE REPAIR CONTRACT 7,564.50
12. ROBERT GEITH

REFUND-OVERP'MT OF FINAL UTILITY BILL 21.44
13. SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO

HYDRANT PAINT 208.88

HYDRANT PAINT 208.88

TOTAL 417.76

14. SME

DENSITY TESTING-TOWER GARDENS 3,842.95
15. SPARTAN PROPERTIES LLC

REFUND-OVERP'MT OF FINAL W/S BILL 51.42
16. STAMP RITE INC

PRE-INKED STAMP 78.75
17. TDS

JUNE SERVICE 154.98
18. THE LINCOLN NAT'L LIFE INS CO

JULY PREMIUM 396.66 25880
19. TRI TITLE AGENCY

REFUND-OVERP'MT OF FINAL UTILITY BILL 210.71
20. ZACHARY ARCHIBALD

MDEQ EXAM FEE REIMB 70.00

TOTAL - ALL VENDORS 172,714.17




Credit Card Transactions - June 11 - 30, 2015

Transaction Da Transaction Merchant Name

Transaction Amount

Account Name

2015/06/16
2015/06/11
2015/06/16
2015/06/18
2015/06/29
2015/06/23
2015/06/19
2015/06/17
2015/06/15
2015/06/19
2015/06/18
2015/06/18
2015/06/18
2015/06/13
2015/06/17
2015/06/17
2015/06/21
2015/06/22
2015/06/16
2015/06/29
2015/06/25
2015/06/22
2015/06/23
2015/06/24
2015/06/29
2015/06/25
2015/06/13
2015/06/12
2015/06/11
2015/06/26
2015/06/15
2015/06/11
2015/06/25
2015/06/24
2015/06/24
2015/06/19
2015/06/19
2015/06/22
2015/06/12
2015/06/11
2015/06/27
2015/06/26
2015/06/12
2015/06/24
2015/06/16
2015/06/12
2015/06/11
2015/06/11

244 AUTO VALUE EAST LANSI
AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS
AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS
AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS
AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS
AMAZON.COM

B&H PHOTO, 800-606-6969
BANNERSONTHECHEAP.COM
BED BATH & BEYOND #369
BEST BUY 00004168

BEST BUY 00004168
BESTBUYCOM731911001348
BESTBUYCOM731911001348
BIGGBY COFFEE #121
BIGGBY COFFEE #121
BLANKS USA

BOYNE HIGHLANDS LOD
BOYNE MTN LODGING

CHILI'S S.W. DETROIT

CIMA INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CITY LIMITS

CMP DISTRIBUTORS INC
COMCAST OF LANSING
COMCAST OF LANSING
COMPLETE BATTERY SOURCE
CRACKER BARREL #517 OKEMO
CRUCIAL.COM

DEQ DW TRAIN AND CERTIFY
DICK'S CLOTHING&SPORTING
DICK'S CLOTHING&SPORTING
DISCOUNT ONE HOUR SIGNS |
DISCOUNT ONE HOUR SIGNS |
DISCOUNT-TIRE-CO MIL-11
DOMINO'S 1206

EAST LANSING PARKING
FACEBOOK GFYCD7EM92
FACEBOOK HFYCD7EM92
FEDEX 497300230
FEDEXOFFICE 00004069
GAN*SUBSCRIPTION

GFS STORE #1901

GFS STORE #1901

GFS STORE #1901
GRAFF-CHEVROLET-OKEMOS
HAMMOND FARMSLANDS
HAMMOND FARMSLANDS
HAMMOND FARMSLANDS
HAMMOND FARMSLANDS

$15.39
19.95
47.48
117.92
101.51
161.87
309.99
19.66
79.99
24.99
39.99
(42.39)
42.39
33.42
11.53
56.55
287.21
93.55
29.34
805.95
153.00
71.55
9.44
126.28
20.62
30.05
59.99
95.00
119.96
(3.59)
149.75
12.00
250.00
33.90
2.60
0.56
20.00
18.96
38.16
25.00
(118.24)
186.91
86.21
101.94
39.75
209.60
230.56
85.00

RICH WHEELER
KATHERINE RICH
KATHERINE RICH
CHRISTOPHER DOMEYER
DEREK PERRY
CHRISTOPHER DOMEYER
DARKUS BEASLEY
ROBIN FAUST
WILLIAM PRIESE
DARKUS BEASLEY
ANDREA SMILEY
ANDREA SMILEY
ANDREA SMILEY
DEBORAH GUTHRIE
DEBORAH GUTHRIE
MARTHA TOWNSEND
DAVID HALL

KEN PLAGA

DARKUS BEASLEY
KEN PLAGA
MICHAEL DEVLIN
ANDREW MCCREADY
KRISTI SCHAEDING
ANDREA SMILEY
DENISE GREEN
FRANK L WALSH
ERIC MILLER

JOE VANDOMMELEN
GREG GROTHOUS
GREG GROTHOUS
ROBERT MACKENZIE
WILLIAM PRIESE
TODD FRANK
ANDREW MCCREADY
FRANK L WALSH
LUANN MAISNER
LUANN MAISNER
WILLIAM PRIESE
ANDREA SMILEY
BRANDIE YATES
MICHAEL DEVLIN
MICHAEL DEVLIN
CAROL HASSE

TODD FRANK

JOE VANDOMMELEN
KEITH HEWITT
ROBERT MACKENZIE
ROBERT MACKENZIE




2015/06/19
2015/06/19
2015/06/25
2015/06/29
2015/06/25
2015/06/23
2015/06/11
2015/06/16
2015/06/22
2015/06/18
2015/06/25
2015/06/12
2015/06/12
2015/06/12
2015/06/23
2015/06/12
2015/06/17
2015/06/25
2015/06/29
2015/06/19
2015/06/19
2015/06/23
2015/06/22
2015/06/15
2015/06/11
2015/06/15
2015/06/15
2015/06/12
2015/06/13
2015/06/20
2015/06/15
2015/06/12
2015/06/12
2015/06/26
2015/06/11
2015/06/19
2015/06/11
2015/06/16
2015/06/17
2015/06/25
2015/06/29
2015/06/11
2015/06/23
2015/06/19
2015/06/28
2015/06/18
2015/06/11
2015/06/25
2015/06/26
2015/06/15
2015/06/12
2015/06/22
2015/06/29
2015/06/19
2015/06/19

HAMMOND FARMSLANDS
HAMMOND FARMSLANDS
HAMMOND FARMSLANDS
HASLETT TRUE VALUE HDW
HASLETT TRUE VALUE HDW
HASLETT TRUE VALUE HDW
HASLETT TRUE VALUE HDW
HASLETT TRUE VALUE HDW
HASLETT TRUE VALUE HDW
HASLETT TRUE VALUE HDW
IN *SIGN A RAMA

JETS PIZZA OF HASLETT
LEOS SPIRITS AND GRUB
MARATHON PETRO103556
MARATHON PETRO127472
MEIJER INC #025 QO1
MEIJER INC #025 QO1
MEIJER INC #025 Q01
MEIJER INC #025 QO1
MEIJER INC #025 Q01
MEIJER INC #0256 QO1
MEIJER INC #025 Q01
MEIJER INC #025 QO1
MEIJER INC #025 QO1
MEIJER INC #025 Q01
MEIJER INC #0256 QO1
MEIJER INC #0256 QO1
MEIJER INC #025 Q01
MEIJER INC #025 QO1
MEIJER INC #025 Q01
MEIJER INC #025 Q01
MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE
MICHIGAN PIPE

MISSION POINT RESORT
MOUNTAIN GRD LODGE
MOUNTAIN GRD LODGE
MSU DEMMER CENTER
NFPA NATL FIRE PROTECT
OC PIZZA 7071

OFFICEMAX CT*IN#581503
OFFICEMAX CT*IN#637886
OFFICEMAX/OFFICEDEPOT #61
OFFICEMAX/OFFICEDEPOT #61
OFFICEMAX/OFFICEDEPOT #61
OKEMOS HARDWARE INC
OKEMOS HARDWARE INC
OKEMOS HARDWARE INC
OKEMOS HARDWARE INC
OKEMOS HARDWARE INC
OKEMOS HARDWARE INC
OKEMOS HARDWARE INC
PAYPAL *MICHIGANEME
PAYPAL *VANBURENCON
QUALITY DAIRY 31280027
QUALITY DAIRY 31280027

83.84
230.56
377.28

47.45

7.09

91.09

30.77
138.49

2.79

35.96

22.50

51.00

42.54
100.00

43.32

14.55

10.51

14.47

44.54

18.94

8.58

16.61

23.16

70.00

20.00

34.73

29.49
101.98

46.32
109.00

44.30
105.00
156.00
439.29
185.92
185.92

60.00
150.00

43.37

73.08
168.99

21.99

67.17

38.99

5.99
20.43
9.99
5.96
17.96
3.98
4.49
250.00

21.49

52.80

18.63

ROBERT MACKENZIE
ROBERT MACKENZIE
ROBERT MACKENZIE
JIM ANDERSON
CHRISTOPHER DOMEYER
PETER VASILION

RICH WHEELER

RICH WHEELER

TAVIS MILLEROV

DAN PALACIOS
CHRISTOPHER DOMEYER
WILLIAM PRIESE
FRANK L WALSH
TODD FRANK

DAVID HALL
CATHERINE ADAMS
CATHERINE ADAMS
CATHERINE ADAMS
CATHERINE ADAMS
KATHERINE RICH
MICHAEL DEVLIN
CHRISTOPHER DOMEYER
ROBIN FAUST

JANE GREENWAY
GREG GROTHOUS
GREG GROTHOUS
GREG GROTHOUS
CAROL HASSE

PETER MENSER
KENNITH PHINNEY
WILLIAM PRIESE
CAROL HASSE

JOE VANDOMMELEN
BRETT DREYFUS
CAROL HASSE

DEREK PERRY
CATHERINE ADAMS
TAVIS MILLEROV
DEREK PERRY

CAROL HASSE

CAROL HASSE
CHRISTOPHER DOMEYER
CHRISTOPHER DOMEYER
DEREK PERRY
MATTHEW WALTERS
JIM ANDERSON
WILLIAM RICHARDSON
PETER VASILION

JAY GRAHAM

ROBERT MACKENZIE
PETER MENSER

KEN PLAGA

YOUNES ISHRAIDI
JANE GREENWAY
JANE GREENWAY




2015/06/15
2015/06/25
2015/06/16
2015/06/25
2015/06/23
2015/06/17
2015/06/22
2015/06/15
2015/06/19
2015/06/25
2015/06/17
2015/06/19
2015/06/18
2015/06/12
2015/06/18
2015/06/25
2015/06/11
2015/06/18
2015/06/25
2015/06/19
2015/06/19
2015/06/22
2015/06/26
2015/06/19
2015/06/25
2015/06/11
2015/06/23
2015/06/22
2015/06/25
2015/06/26
2015/06/26
2015/06/25
2015/06/23
2015/06/26
2015/06/12
2015/06/18
2015/06/16
2015/06/20

QUALITY DAIRY 31280027
SHERWIN WILLIAMS #1339
SOLDAN'S FEEDS & PET S
SOLDAN'S FEEDS & PET S
STAR LINE

STATE DEQ WORKSHOPS
STATE DEQ WORKSHOPS
SUNBELT RENTALS #315
SYMPLICITY CORP
TARGET 00003657
TAVERN AND TAP

THE BOULEVARD INN
THE HOME DEPOT 2723
THE HOME DEPOT 2723
THE HOME DEPOT 2723
THE HOME DEPOT 2723
THE HOME DEPOT 2723
THE HOME DEPOT 2723
THE HOME DEPOT 2723
THE HOME DEPOT 2723
THE HOME DEPOT 2723
THE HOME DEPOT 2723
THE HOME DEPOT 2723
THE HOME DEPOT 2723
THE HOME DEPOT 2723
THE HOME DEPOT 2723
THE HOME DEPOT 2723
THE HOME DEPOT 2723
THE HOME DEPOT 2723
THE HOME DEPOT 2723
TONY MS LANSING
TRACTOR SUPPLY #1149
USPS 25698008630809271
W.S. DARLEY & CO.
WAL-MART #2866

WW GRAINGER
WWW.NEWEGG.COM
ZORO TOOLS INC

30.45
107.49
53.72
64.72
18.00
25.00
25.00
128.60
25.00
75.00
117.40
378.48
124.75
12.36
98.88
26.91
198.00
23.25
10.22
64.40
219.00
53.70
25.16
192.40
78.52
71.94
146.55
35.64
4.99
51.90
58.76
134.99
5.95
82.86
79.88
276.55
123.98
188.10

$11,769.05

GREG GROTHOUS
DENNIS ANTONE
CATHERINE ADAMS
CATHERINE ADAMS
BRETT DREYFUS
YOUNES ISHRAIDI
YOUNES ISHRAIDI

KEITH HEWITT

BRANDIE YATES
GRETCHEN M GOMOLKA
DEBORAH GUTHRIE
FRANK L WALSH
KATHERINE RICH
DENNIS ANTONE
DENNIS ANTONE
DENNIS ANTONE
CHRISTOPHER DOMEYER
CHRISTOPHER DOMEYER
CHRISTOPHER DOMEYER
PETER VASILION

PETER VASILION

PETER VASILION

PETER VASILION

JANE GREENWAY

JANE GREENWAY

KEITH HEWITT

DAVID LESTER

ROBERT MACKENZIE
ROBERT MACKENZIE
KENNITH PHINNEY
TAVIS MILLEROV
ROBERT MACKENZIE
GRETCHEN M GOMOLKA
WILLIAM PRIESE

PETER MENSER

JIM ANDERSON

ERIC MILLER

WILLIAM PRIESE




ACH Transactions
June 11, 2015 - June 30, 2015

Date Payee Amount Purpose
6/15/2015 MCT-PW $ 707.50 Twp W/S Bills
6/17/12015 Consumer Energy 173.57 Gas/Electric Bills
Elan Financial 19,413.36 Paym't of Twp Credit Card Purchases

6/19/2015 Consumer Energy 897.29 Gas/Electric Bills

6/22/2015 Consumer Energy 12,632.00 Gas/Electric Bills

6/23/2015 Consumer Energy 2413 Gas/Electric Bills

6/24/2015 ADP 380,068.56 6/26/2015 Payroll

6/26/2015 ICMA 50,818.53 Payroll Deductions

Total ACH Payments $ 464,734,994




9.D.
MEMORANDUM

TO: Township Boar

S (DY N
Derek N. Perry, As&fstant Township Manager

Director of Public Works &M
Y v O

Younrles Ishraidi, P.E., Chief Engineer

DATE: July 1, 2015

RE: Newton Road Public Road lmprovements
Special Assessment District #43
Resolutions 1 & 2

Newton Road is a local road, approximately 3142 feet long, running from Lake Lansing Road
north to Saginaw/BL-69/M-78. The developer is responsible to pave Newton Road along the
Sierra Ridge subdivision frontage, approximately 2125 feet, as a requirement of the plat. The
developer is planning on paving in 2015.

The additional footage to pave Newton Road, from Lake Lansing Road to Saginaw/BL-69/M-78,
(excluding Sierra Ridge Subdivisions) is approximately 1020 feet. The total estimated project
cost is $86,000. Approximately $20,000 will be paid by the Township’s pathway millage for the
proposed 3’ paved shoulders. As such, the total estimated assessments will be $66,545.

There are fourteen (14) parcels in the district, including residential, commercial, and Township
owned parcels. The estimated assessments would range from $3,033 to $9,025. Meridian
Township has three (3) parcels along Newton Road, which include the Newton Road Water
Tower, Newton Road Park, and a Land Preservation parcel. Meridian Township's portion would
be $23,022.

Attached are resolutions 1 and 2. Resolution #1 calls for creation of a plan and cost estimate.
Resolution #2 tentatively declares the Township Board’s intention to make the public
improvement and sets a date for a public hearing.

Proposed Motion:

"Move to approve Newton Road Public Road Improvements Special Assessment District
No. 43 Resolution No. 1, and orders plans and an estimate of costs to be prepared; and
move to tentatively approve Newton Road Public Road Improvements District No. 43
Resolution No. 2, tentatively declaring the Township Board's intention to make the public
road improvements: grade, gravel and pave Newton Road from Lake Lansing Road north
approximately 500'and from Saginaw/BL-69/M-78 south approximately 500'; and sets the
Public Hearing for August 4, 2015 for the purpose of hearing objections to the
improvement and the special assessment district of Newton Road Public Road
Improvement Special Assessment District No. 43."

Attachments

Township Board
7-7-14




NACNETIC

04—-252-004
NEWTON PROPERTY PARTNERSHIH

S | 12422 JOLLY RD STE 200
g MERud(f/diﬁER A °|OKEMOS
S re /| Ml 48864

OKEMOS Vi
Ml 48864 - -~

JEHOVAH WITNESSES CONGREG
6003 HARVEY ST g
HASLETT 04-327-008 | &

g(é;ﬁf‘%”_%} e p G S FEDEWA BUILDERS INC
DIMONDALE 5570 OKEMOS RD
EAST LANSING

Mi nfBBZ'I ] ]
Ml 48823 3
04—-400-015

380

SUMBAL,
4252 SSUGAR MAPLE
48504 043270065 |

4232 SUGAR MAPLE
OKEMOS
MI 48864

04-328-001
MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP
5151 MARSH RD
OKEMOS
MI 48864
/
/
/?/OGQW a5
An 6,? 04-376-008
L N EYDE CONSTRUCTION CO
P O BOX 4218
EAST LANSING
M 48826
\\ ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
i
04-376-007 EAgT LANSING
EYDE CONSTRUCTION CO i 48826
P O BOX 4218
EAST LANSING
M 48826 i
EATB:"AN, MIKE
Sos1 Newrion 04-376-009
RO o
EAST LANSING T~ )
M 48623 04—376-010
. L
CLAYTON, EDWARD F & 8
Rpr LATE LSO ;?f: o 04—400-003
G hsazs £18 | MERIDIAN CHARTER L -
04-376-006 it TOWNSHIP :
S0 5151 MARSH RD
e 10 | OKEMOS
ko [0 M1 48854 P
AST LANSNG 2
;42323 _
— oDy
EAKE L/—\ﬁ@@ Lr\! !D. CRU
| | aanil

NEWTON ROAD PAVING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #43




NEWTON PUBLIC ROAD IMPROVEMENT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 43

RESOLUTION NO. 1

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County held
at the Meridian Township Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864-1198, Phone (517) 853-
4000, on Tuesday, July 7, 2015 at 6:00 p.m.

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

The following resolution was offered by
and supported by

WHEREAS, the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan,
acting on its own initiative, pursuant to Act 188, Public Acts of Michigan, 1954, as amended, deems it
advisable and necessary for the public health, safety, and welfare of the Township and its inhabitants to make
the following public road improvement: '

Grade, gravel and pave Newton Road, from Lake Lansing Road north approximately 500', and
from Saginaw/BL-69/M-78 south approximately 500'; and

WHEREAS, as a requirement of the Plat for Sierra Ridge Subdivisions, the developer is required to
grade, gravel, and pave Newton Road along the Sierra Ridge property; and

WHEREAS, Meridian Township would like to extend the public improvement of Newton Road, from
Lake Lansing Road north to Saginaw/BL-69/M-78; and

WHEREAS, Meridian Township would assess the adjacent properties of Newton Road (excluding
Sierra Ridge Subdivisions) for the remaining portions of Newton Road not constructed by the developer, to
service the proposed special assessment district area described as: (SEE ATTACHED PROPOSED
ASSESSMENT ROLL)

WHEREAS, the Township Board desires to proceed with this public road improvement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, AS FOLLOWS:

1. The Township Chief Engineer is hereby ordered to prepare plans showing the improvements, the
location thereof and estimates of the cost thereof, pursuant to the project as previously set forth in this
resolution.

YEAS:

NAYS:

STATE OF MICHIGAN)
) ss.
COUNTY OF INGHAM)
I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham
County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of proceedings taken
by the Township Board at a regular meeting held on Tuesday, July 7, 2015.

Brett Dreyfus, Township Clerk




NEWTON ROAD PUBLIC ROAD IMPROVEMENT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 43

RESOLUTION NO. 2

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham
County, held at the Meridian Township Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml
48864-1198, Phone (517) 853-4000, on Tuesday, July 7, 2015 at 6:00 p.m.

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

The following resolution was offered by
and supported by

WHEREAS, the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian deems it advisable
and necessary for the public health, safety, and welfare of the Township and its inhabitants to
construct the following described public road improvements:

Grade, gravel and pave Newton Road, from Lake Lansing Road north approximately 500'
and from Saginaw/BL-69/M-78 south approximately 500"

and to defray the cost thereof by special assessment against the properties specially benefited
thereby; and

WHEREAS, the developer is required to grade, gravel, and pave Newton Road along the
Sierra Ridge Subdivisions property as a requirement of the plat; and is planning on paving in
2015; and

WHEREAS, the developer's paved portion would lead to unpaved portions of Newton
Road at both ends, of approximately 500' each; and

WHEREAS, the Township Board has caused to be prepared by the Township’s Chief
Engineer, plans showing the improvement and location thereof and an estimate of the cost

thereof; in accordance with a resolution of the Township Board pursuant to Act 188, Public Acts of
Michigan, 1954, as amended; and

WHEREAS, the same has been received by the Township Board; and
WHEREAS, the Township Board desires to proceed further with the improvements;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, AS FOLLOWS:

1. The plans showing the improvement and location thereof and an estimate of the
cost thereof be filed with the Township Clerk and be available for public examination.

2. The Township Board tentatively declares its intention to make the public road
improvements previously listed in this resolution.




Newton Road Public Road Improvement
Special Assessment District No. 43
Resolution No. 2

Page 2

3. There is hereby tentatively designated a special assessment district against which
the cost of said improvement is to be assessed, consisting of the lots and parcels of land
described as:

(SEE ATTACHED PROPOSED ASSESSMENT ROLL)

4, The Township Board shall meet in the Meridian Township Municipal Building, 5151
Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml on Tuesday, August 4, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. at which time and place the
Township Board will hear objections to the improvement and to the special assessment district
therefore. All objections must be filed in writing.

5. The Township Clerk is hereby ordered to cause notice of such hearing and the fact
that the Township Board is proceeding on its own initiative to be published twice prior to said
hearing in a newspaper of general circulation in the Township, the first publication to be at least
ten (10) days before the time of the hearing, and pursuant to Act 188, Public Acts of Michigan,
1954, as amended, shall cause said notice to be mailed by first class mail to all record owners of,
or parties in interest in, property in the special assessment district, at the addresses shown on the
current tax records of the Township, at least ten (10) full days before the date of said hearing.

6. Said notice shall be in substantially the following form: (see attached)

7. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions of
this resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded.

ADOPTED:

YEAS:

NAYS:
Resolution declared adopted.

STATE OF MICHIGAN)
) ss.
COUNTY OF INGHAM )

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Charter Township of Meridian,
Ingham County, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of
proceedings taken by the Township Board at a regular meeting held on Tuesday, July 7, 2015.

Brett Dreyfus, Township Clerk




NEWTON ROAD PUBLIC ROAD IMPROVEMENT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 43

NOTICE OF HEARING

TO THE RECORD OWNERS OF, OR PARTIES IN INTEREST IN, THE FOLLOWING
PROPERTY CONSTITUTING THE PROPOSED SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT:

(SEE ATTACHED PROPOSED ASSESSMENT ROLL)

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian,
acting on its own initiative, pursuant to Act 188, Public Acts of Michigan, 1954, as amended, has
determined to make the following described public road improvements:

Grade, gravel and pave Newton Road, from Lake Lansing Road north approximately 500'
and from Saginaw/BL-69/M-78 south approximately 500',

and to defray the cost thereof by special assessment against the properties specially benefited
thereby.

Plans and estimates have been prepared and are on file with the Township Clerk for public
examination.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the Township Board will meet Tuesday, August 4, 2015, at
6:00 p.m. at the Meridian Township Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan
48864-1198, for the purpose of hearing objections to the improvement and the special
assessment district therefore. The Township Board is also interested in hearing those that favor
the proposed project.

Appearance and protest at the hearing in the special agssessment proceedings is required in order
to appeal the amount of the special assessment to the state tax tribunal. Your personal
appearance at the hearing is not required, but you or your agent may appear in person at the
hearing and protest the special assessment. To make an appearance and protest, you must file
your written objections by letter or other writing with the Township Clerk before the close of this
hearing. The owner or any person having an interest in the real property may file a written appeal
of the special assessment with the state tax tribunal with 30 days after the confirmation of the
special assessment roll if that person appeared and protested the special assessment at this
hearing.

The Township Board may proceed with the improvement and special assessment district unless
written objections from owners of land constituting more than 20% of the total road frontage are
filed with the Township board at or before the hearing.

"FOR PURPOSES OF THIS HEARING, THE AMOUNT TO BE ASSESSED AGAINST YOUR
PROPERTY IS ESTIMATED TO BE $ .

Dated:

Brett Dreyfus, Township Clerk
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN




NEWTON ROAD PUBLIC ROAD IMPROVEMENT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #43

ASSESSMENT ROLL

Parcel # & Street Address/Legal Desc Property Owner Name & Address Proposed Special Assessment Amount
3302-02-04-100-005 MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP $5,385.00

M-78 & Newton 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864
Legal Desc

M4-26-2 That pt of S 104 A. of NW %4 of Sec 4, S of Hwy M-78, on NW FRL %4 of FRL Sec 4, T4N, R1W.

3302-02-04-252-004 NEWTON PROPERTY PARTNERSHIP $5,385.00
6276 Newton 2422 Jolly Rd, Ste. 200, Okemos, Ml 48864
Legal Desc: ’

M4-22 that pt of SW V4 of NE ¥z S of M-78 Hwy, exc beg at inter of cen line of E bound rdwy of M-78 state hwy & NS % line of Sec 4-N 59 deg
40'E 300 ft- S 35 deg 44'30" W 433.44 ft to pt on NS % line of Sec 4 a distance of 200 ft from beg N 200 ft to beg also exc beg at inter of cen
line of E bound rdwy of M-78 state hwy & cen line of Towner Rd-S 59 deg 40' W 300 ft S 72 deg 07'20" E to E 1/8 line of Sec 4 N along E 1/8
line to cen line of Towner Rd W'ly along said cen line to beg - also except com at cen of Sec 4, S 88 deg 13' 47" E along E-W % line of Sec 4,
1079.47 ft to pt of beg: N 01 deg 24'16" E 1156.35 ft to pt on S'ly R/W line of Hwy M-78, N 71 deg 57' 55" E along said R/W line 231.81 ft, S
01 deg 24'16" W 1234.90 ft to pt on E-W % line of Sec 4, N 88 deg 13'47" W 218.60 ft along said E-W % line to pt of beg, Sec 4, T4N, R1W.

3302-02-04-327-005 L LEE HAMMOND $4,082.00
Newton 5834 M-99, Dimondale, Ml 48821
Legal Desc v

MP 1840, Lot 3, Mitchell Acres

3302-02-04-327-006 AHSAN & IFFAT SUMBAL $3,458.00
M-78 4232 Sugar Maple, Okemos, M|l 48864
Legal Desc:

MP 1843, N %% of Lot 6, Mitchell Acres

3302-02-04-327-007 AHSAN & IFFAT SUMBAL $3,984.00
6217 Newton 4232 Sugar Maple, Okemos, M| 48864
Legal Desc

MP 1843-1, MP 1844, S 5 of Lot 6 & Lot 7, Entire Mitchell Acres




NEWTON ROAD PUBLIC ROAD IMPROVEMENT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #43
ASSESSMENT ROLL

Parcel # & Street Address/Leqal Desc Property Owner Name & Address Proposed Special Assessment Amount
3302-02-04-327-008 JEHOVAH WITNESSES CONGREG

2231 M-78 6003 Harvey St, Haslett, Ml 48840 $3,030.00
l.egal Desc:

MP 1838 & 1829, Lots 1 & 2, Mitchell Acres

3302-02-04-328-001 MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP $9,029.00
M-78 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864
Legal Desc:

M4-28 Beg on N-S % line at pt N 1 deg 40'10"E 1323.0 ft from S % cor of Sec 4, N 88 deg 19' 04"W 1335.13 ft along N line of SE % of SW %
to E line of W %2 of SW %4 of Sec 4, N 1 deg 13'20"E 394.19 ft along said E line to SE'ly R/W line of M-78 Hwy, said R/W line being 70 ft SE'ly
of cen line of E bound lanes, measured perpendicular to said cen line, N 34 deg 06' E 133.46 ft along said RAW line to S'ly line of Mitchell

Acres Plat, S 88 deg 18' 08" E 1266.63 ft along said S'ly line to said N & S Y4 line, S 1 deg 40" 10" W 506.5 ft to P.O.B. on SW V4 of Sec 4,
T4N, R1W.

3302-02-04-376-005 ANGELA M. MCGUIRE $3,743.00
6024 Newton 6024 Newton Road, East Lansing, Ml 48823
Legal Desc:

M4-42-1 Com in N & S Y4 line at pt 187 ft N of S ¥4 post -W 177 ft - N 210 ft- E 177 ft -S 210 ft to beg on SW % of Sec 4, T4N, R1W.

3302-02-04-376-006 EDWARD F CLAYTON & SUSAN LUKS $3,333.00
2292 Lake Lansing 2292 l.ake Lansing Road, East Lansing, Ml 48823
Legal Desc:

M4-42 S 397 ft of E 464 ft of SE ¥4 of SW 4 of Sec 4 exc com 187 ft N of S V4 post, W 177 ft N 210 ft E 177 ft-S to beg Sec 4, T4N, R1W.

3302-02-04-376-007 EYDE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY $4,742.00
Newton & Lake Lansing P.O. Box 4218, East Lansing, Ml 48823
Legal Desc:

M4-42-2 SE Vi of SW Vi exc. S 397 ft of E 464 ft Thereof on SW % of Sec 4, T4AN, R1W. exc beg on S li of Sec 4 at pt 464 ft N 88 deg 20' W of
S % cor of Sec 4 N 88 deg 20'W 200 ft on S line of Sec 4 N 01 deg 40" 10" E 233 ft S 88 deg 20' E 200 ft S 01 deg 40' 10" W 233 ft to Beg &
also exc beg on N & S % li of Sec 4 at pt 397 ft NO1 deg 40'10" E of S % cor of Sec 4 N 88 deg 20'W 233 ft NO1 deg 40'10" E 200 ft S 88 deg
20' E 233 ft S 01 deg 40'10" W 200 ft on N & S % |i of Sec 4 to Beg & also exc beg on S li of Sec 4 at pt 1124.8 ft N 88 deg 20' W of S V4 cor
of Sec 4 N 88 deg 20' W 200 ft on S li of Sec 4 to SW cor of SE % of SW cor of Sec 4 N 01 deg 13' 20" E 233 ft on W line of SE ¥ of SW V4 of
Sec 4 S 88 deg 20' E 200 ft S 01 deg 13'20" W233 ft to Beg Sec 4 T4AN R1W. Exc beg on N-S In at pt N 1 deg 40' 10" E 863 ft from the S %
cor of Sec 4 th parallel with the N In of SE % of SW % N 88 deg 19' 04" W 500 ft th parallel with the N-S 74 In N 1 deg 40" 10" E 460 ft to N In
of said SE ¥ of SW 1/4 , Th alg NIn S 88 deg 19' 04" E 500 ft to N-S % In th S 1 deg 40" 10" W 460 ft to beg Sec 4 T4N, R1W.




NEWTON ROAD PUBLIC ROAD IMPROVEMENT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #43
ASSESSMENT ROLL

Parcel # & Street Address/Legal Desc Property Owner Name & Address Proposed Special Assessment Amount
3302-02-04-376-008 EYDE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY $8,200.00

Newton P.O. Box 4218, East Lansing, Ml 48823
Legal Desc:

M4-42-2-4 That pt of the SE % of SW % of Sec 4, Beg on N-S Y line at a pt N 1 deg 40'10"E 863 ft from the S % cor of Sec 4 th parallel with
the N line of SE ¥4 of the SW 72 N 88 deg 19'04" W 500 ft th parallel with the N-S Y2 line N 1 deg 40'10"E 460 ft to N line of said SE ¥4 of SW
Y, th alg N line S 88 deg 19'04"E 500 ft to N-S Y line, th S 1 deg 40'10"W 460 ft to Beg Sec 4, T4N, R1W, Meridian Township.

3302-02-04-376-009 EYDE CONSTRUCTION CO $1,783.00
Newton P.O. Box 4218, East Lansing, Ml 48823
L.egal Desc:

M4-42-2-2-1 Beg on the N-S % line of Sec 4 at a pt 397 ft, N 01 deg 40'10" E of S ¥ corner of Sec 4, th N 88 deg 20' W 233 ft, th N 01 deg
40'10" E, 200 ft; th S 88 deg 20' E, 233 ft; th S 01 deg 40’ 10" W, 200 ft on the N-S % line of Sec 4 to pt of beg exc the S ¥4, Sec 4, T4N, R1W.

3302-02-04-376-010 MIKE & ARVILLA BATEMAN $1,783.00
6031 Newton 6031 Newton Road, East Lansing, M| 48823
Legal Desc:

M 4-42-2-2 Beg on the N-S ¥ line of said Sec 4 at a pt 397 ft, N 01 deg 40" 10" E of S % cor of Sec 4, th N 88 deg 20' W, 233 ft; th N 01 deg
40'10"E, 200 ft; th S 88 deg 20 min. E 233 ft; th S 01 deg 40 min 10 Sec W, 200 ft on the N-S %4 line of Sec 4 to pt of beg. exc the N 1%, Sec 4,
T4N, R1W.

3302-02-04-400-003 MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP $8,608.00
6025 Newton 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864
Legal Desc:

M4-44-1-2 Beg at S ¥ cor of Sec 4, th E along Sec line 482.9 ft, th N at rt angles to sec line 520 ft, th W pll to Sec line 481.6 ftto N & S ¥ sec
line, th S along % sec line 520 ft to pt of beg, Sec 4, T4N, R1W.

TOTAL $66,545.00




11-A
13-A

- MEMORANDUM

TO: Township Board
FROM: A
Mark Kieselbach .
Director of Community Planning and Development
/ /ﬂ%ﬂ%@//{/mﬂ/
Martha Wyatt
Associate Planner/Landscage Archltect
DATE: July 1, 2015
RE: MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Development) request to develop a mixed use’

planned unit development at 2655 Grand River Avenue

Campus Village Development has submitted a proposal to establish a mixed use planned unit
development (MUPUD) on the property located southwest of the intersection of Grand River
Avenue and Park Lake Road. The site, addressed as 2655 Grand River Avenue, consists of three
parcels and is currently known as Meridian Pointe. The existing commercial development was
approved as a shopping center in 1997 under Special Use Permit #96141, with three building
sites, for a total of 107,500 square feet. Foods for Living, State of Fitness, and a Salvation Army
store occupy the existing multitenant building. The third building pad, west of the Salvation Army
store is vacant. The proposed MUPUD combines the existing retail building with new multiple
family housing and mixed use buildings, which will occupy the entire 12.65 acre site. The site is
zoned C-2 (Commercial) and is located in Section 20 of the Township.

The project, called “The Avenue on Grand River’, includes the construction of 10 muliti-story
buildings plus the existing retail building. Eight apartment buildings and two mixed use buildings
are proposed and are designated as Block 1, 2, and 3 on the plans. One mixed use building offers
retail space on the first floor and apartment units on floors two through four (Block 1). The second
mixed use building has an on-site business center/entrepreneurial hub on the first floor and
apartment units on floors two through three (Block 2). A clubhouse/community center is located
on the first floor of one of the apartment buildings (Block 2). Block 3 consists of four, 3-story
apartment buildings arranged around a central courtyard. Block 4 is the existing retail building.
Amenities are provided throughout the development and are intended to benefit the residents and

the public.

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on May 11, 2015 for MUPUD #15014. Based on
the discussion at the public hearing the applicant revised the plans (dated May 27, 2015) which
were reviewed by the Planning Commission at their June 8, 2015 regular meeting.




MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Communities, LLC)
Township Board (7/1/15)
Page 2

At the meeting the Planning Commission noted several concerns about the project, including the
following: a lack of buffering between the adjoining industrially zoned properties on Dawn Avenue
and the apartments on the subject site (in Block 2 and 3); a portion of the proposed amenities are
not designated for use by the public; the number of apartment units should be reduced and more
greenspace should be provided; traffic issues; the proposed impervious surface coverage (81%)-
exceeds the maximum allowed coverage for C-2 zoning (70%); the number of proposed parking
spaces is considerably less that the number of required parking spaces; and some type of barrier
should be provided between the apartment building and the railroad tracks, located south of the

subject site.

At the June 8, 2015 Planning Commission meeting, a resolution to approve MUPUD #15014 was
offered. The motion to approve failed in a vote of 1-5.

Since June 8, 2015 meeting, the applicant has provided revised site plans, dated June 22, 2015
and revised building elevations dated June 23, 2015. Revisions to the site plans are summarized
in the letter from Jeff Kyes, KEBS, Inc., dated June 22, 2015. The layout of the site and number of
buildings remains generally the same with some design changes, as follows: buildings in Block 3
have been reduced in size (east to west), thus reducing the square footage of the buildings; the
number of dwelling units has been reduced from 222 to 198 dwelling units (apartments);
landscaped areas have been added between the west property line and the parking areas
adjacent to Block 2 and 3, ranging from 10 to 12 feet in width; existing vegetation along the west
property line is proposed to be preserved; impervious surface coverage has been decreased from
81% to 79.43% (using all landscaped areas, including parking islands that are smaller than 20
feet by 20 feet in size); the number of parking spaces has been reduced from 545 to 524 spaces;
canopy trees have been added along Grand River Avenue and within the site; a detail drawing of
the protection wall has been provided (to be located along the southwest corner of the subject
site, as a barrier between the buildings and the railroad); and public art has been added as an
amenity (by the bus stop on Grand River Avenue).

The applicant has provided a communication from Harold Sebastian, Dynamic Railroad
Consulting, which discusses federal and railroad requirements regarding safe building clearance
distances and usage of a crash wall structure in instances where a building is located near

railroad tracks.

An updated parking analysis has also been provided by the applicant which compares standard
parking requirements and anticipated parking needs for the proposed mixed use project.

Based on the revised plans, the residential portion of the project is approximately 157,602 square
feet, with 198 apartment units and 400 beds. Approximately 9,473 square feet of new retail space
is proposed in the mixed use building (Block 1). In combination with the existing retail space
(54,547 square feet), approximately 64,202 square feet of retail space is provided. The applicant
has indicated some office space may be available to the public in the business
center/entrepreneurial hub (Block 2) via membership, lease, or other means. The combined total
of all buildings (existing and proposed) is approximately 227,748 gross square feet. The
proposed density is 16 dwelling units per acre (198 dwelling units over 12.65 acres). The
combined total of existing and proposed off-street parking spaces is 524 spaces. Bicycle
spaces are provided in the amount of 225 spaces. '



MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Communities, LLC)
Township Board (7/1/15)
Page 3

Amenities include an outdoor fitness park and outdoor gathering spaces for residents and the
public; public bus stop and shelter on Grand River Avenue; dog park for use by the residents and
the public; covered bicycle parking; clubhouse/community center; recreational resources
(swimming pool, gazebos, and courtyards); pocket parks; entrepreneurial hub/business center;
sidewalk planters, balconies; public pedestrian pathway along the south side of the property line;
LED light fixtures for outdoor lighting; and public art by the public bus stop.

Questions arose at the June 8, 2015 meeting regarding residential (residential building or use)
being located adjacent to an Industrial (I) zoning district. The subject site is zoned C-2
(Commercial) and abuts Industrial (I) along the west property line, in the vicinity of Block 2 and 3,
which are comprised of one, two, and four bedroom apartment units. Standards applicable to the
Industrial (I) zoning district are outlined in Section 86-435 of the Code of Ordinances, where the
minimum required building setback is 100 feet (side and rear yard) where Industrial (l) is adjacent
to a residential district zone line.

The proposed project is located in a commercial district (C-2) and is being reviewed under the
mixed use planned unit development ordinance (Section 86-440). Standards for the underlying
zoning district can be waived as part of the review of a mixed use project. The required side
and rear yard setback for a structure in C-2 is 15 feet, where adjacent to the same or other

nonresidential zoning district.

Based on the submitted plans for The Avenue, the apartment building in the northwest corner of
Block 2, is located approximately 72 feet from the Industrial (I) district zone line (west property
line). The apartment buildings in Block 3 are located approximately 87 feet from the Industrial

(1) district zone line.

A special use permit (SUP #15051) is also required for a group of buildings greater than 25,000
square feet in gross floor area which is being processed concurrently with MUPUD #15014.

Township Board Options

The Township Board may approve, approve with conditions, or deny MUPUD #15014. A
resolution will be provided for consideration at a future meeting.

Copies of staff memorandums and minutes of the Planning Commission’s meetings are
attached.

Attachments

Staff memorandums dated May 8, 2015 and June 5, 2015

Parking Analysis, prepared by Campus Village Communities, dated June 18, 2015
Communication from Jeff Kyes, KEBS, Inc. dated June 22, 2015

Planning Commission minutes dated May 11, 2015 (public hearing) and June 8, 2015
Communications

Revised Building Elevations, prepared by Progressive AE, dated June 23, 2015

Site plans (Cover Sheet and Amenities Plan), prepared by KEBS, Inc. dated May 27, 2015
Revised site plans prepared by KEBS, Inc, dated June 22, 2015

ONoOOAWN =

g:\commun ping & dev\ping\imixed use planned unit development\i2015\mupud 15014 (The Avenue)\staff
reports\mupudTB1



Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #15014
(Campus Village Development)
May 8, 2015

APPLICANT: Campus Village Development
919 West University Drive Suite 700
Rochester, MI 48307

STATUS OF APPLICANT Option to purchase

REQUEST: Construct a mixed use planned unit development project
CURRENT ZONING: -C-2 (Commercial)

LOCATIO'N: 2655 Grand River Avenue

AREA OF SUBJECT SITE: Approximately 12.65 acres

EXISTING LAND USE: Shopping Center

‘FUTURE LAND USE: Commercial

EXISTING LAND USES

IN AREA: North: Commercial
South: Residential
Fast: Residential
West:  Industrial

CURRENT ZONING IN AREA:  North: C-2 (Commercial)
South: RAA (Single Family, Low Density)
, . East: RAA (Single Family, Low Density)
West: | (Industrial)

FUTURE LAND USE MAP: North: Commercial
South: Residential (1.25-3.5 DU/A)

East:  Residential (1.25-3.5 DU/A)
West:  Industrial -



MEMORANDUM

TO: Planning Commission
wow DA R g
“ Martha Wyatt v
Associate Planner/Landscape Architect
DATE: May 8, 2015
RE: - MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Development) request to develop a mixed use

planned unit development at 2655 Grand River Avenue

Campus Village Development, prospective property owner, has submitted a proposal to establish
a mixed use planned unit development (MUPUD) on the property located southwest of the
intersection of Grand River Avenue and Park Lake Road. The site, addressed as 2655 Grand
River Avenue, consists of three parcels and is currently known as Meridian Pointe. The existing
commercial development was approved as a shopping center in 1997 under Special Use Permit
#96141, with three building sites, for a total of 107,500 square feet. Foods for Living, State of
Fitness, and a Salvation Army store occupy the existing multitenant building for a total of 54,547
square feet. The third building pad, west of the Salvation Army store is vacant The proposed
MUPUD combines the existing retail building with new multiple family housing and mixed use
buildings, which will occupy the entire 12.65 acre site. The site is zoned C-2 (Commercial) and is

located in Section 20 of the Township.

The project, called “The Avenue on Grand River’ includes the construction of 10 new multi-story
buildings plus the existing retail building. Eight apartment buildings and two mixed use buildings
(retail and residential units) are proposed and include a clubhouse/community center and an on-
site business center (entrepreneurial hub). The 222 residential units include one, two, and four
bedroom configurations with a total of 412 beds. The residential portion of the project is
approximately 166,066 square feet. Approximately 8,865 square feet of new retail is proposed in
the mixed use building: In combination with the existing retail space (54,547 square feet),
approximately 63,412 square feet of retail space is provided. ‘

The proposed amenities include an outdoor fithess park and outdoor gathering spaces for
residents and the public; public bus stop and shelter on Grand River Avenue; dog park for use by
the residents and the public; covered bicycle parking; clubhouse/community center; recreational
resources (swimming pool, gazebos, courtyards); pocket parks; entrepreneurial hub/business
center; sidewalk planters, balconies; and LED light fixtures for outdoor lighting. Additional
amenities will be discussed in the Staff Analysis section of this memorandum.

Based on the Cover Sheet information the gross floor area of all buildings, existing and proposed,
is approximately 235,640 square feet. A special use permit (SUP #15051) is also required for
buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in gross floor area; it is being processed concurrently
with the MUPUD. The Planning Commission will make recommendations to the Township Board

on both requests.



MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Communities, LLC)
Planning Commission (5/8/15)
Page 2

FUTURE LAND USE MAP

e & ¢ 6 © 5 ¢ 0o 6 @ & @ ¢
Ao @ @ » o |8 06 © © 0 © @& 0 {
A o _o6. o o le o 8 o 6 € & o (
o AR o & 6 o ¢ e o a & {
-4
% e 0 o o
4 a e 8 o o
G = £
" N py 8 e e s
3t ’Ver‘qv ~L o o o
e

1
1T
111

Dawn Ave

["o_1Residential 1.25-3.5 du/a
[~ Residential 8.0-14.0 dufa

@ Commercial

XXX
B Office

Satata¥al!

RY Industrial

Institutional L
b I e B VA A

The properties in the project area are designated on the Future Land Use Map from the 2005
Master Plan as Commercial.

ZONING MAP

e
)
>

Park Lake Rd

o
)
——

Dawn Ave

|




MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Communities, LLC)
Planning Commission (5/8/15)
Page 3

The entire project area is located in the C-2 (Commercial) zoning district. The C-2 zoning district
requires a minimum lot area of 4,000 square feet and 100 feet of lot width. At approximately 12.65
acres, the subject site exceeds the minimum lot area and also exceeds the lot width with
approximately 603 total feet of frontage along Grand River Avenue (includes all 3 parcels).

Physical Features

The subject site was originally developed for a shopping center in 1997 as approved under
Special Use Permit #96141. The final building pad west of the Salvation Army store has been
vacant for the last 17 years. Parking, landscaped areas, and two detention ponds were installed
as part of the original development. A grassy area designated for future parking spaces is located
east of the western entrance drive. A Natural Features Study was not required for the proposed

project as the site is already developed.

Floodplain

Park Lake Rd

Floodway

; . Floodplain
IS AT

ONNNAARN

The project area is located near the Red Cedar River, which has both floodplain fringe and
floodway. Floodplain areas appear to be limited to the banks of the river in this area and seem not

o extend onto the project site.

Wetlands



MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Communities, LLC)
Planning Commission (5/8/15)
Page 4

Park Lake Rd

| [

&

7 ¢Z

2

b

S

A

A\ r [} Wetlands
/ P 1 “

The wetland map is intended only as a guide. The wetland area along the southern portion of the
subject site was reviewed under previous applications associated with the shopping center
(Rezoning #95130 and Special Use Permit #96141). It was determined at that time the wetland

(Township Wetland #20-5) was located in a ditch in the railroad right-of-way and was too small to
be regulated. ' ‘

Soils

\D L
DU T

“Aye

Park Lake Rd

Undban Lzp2apacCotaod

S
Pray
Z e

The following chart summarizes soil information for the site:



MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Communities, LLC)
Planning Commission (5/8/15)

Page 5
SOIL ASSOCIATION SEVERE BUILDING SITE
LIMITATIONS
Urban Land Capac-Colwood Severe: ponding; wetness
Urban Land Marlette Slight limitations
Ceresco Severe: flooding; wetness

Source: Soil Survey of Ingham County, Michigan, 1992.

Greenspace Plan

Park Lake Rd

Gry,
ng Riye, ray
e

Dawn Ave

x’l:!a-:\

? Legend €
== OFF-ROAD PATHWAY
[T -] FRAGILELINKS /

¥/ /] PRIORITY CORRIDOR

LS

N

The Township Greenspace Plan shows the southwest corner of the site as a “Priority
Conservation Corridor’ (PCC). A PCC is a network of ecologically significant open spaces. In this
case the PCC is associated with off-site areas where the Red Cedar River, associated floodplain,
and wetlands are shown. An Off-Road Pathway is shown along the south property line of the -

subject site.

The Township Greenspace Plan, like the Township Wetland Map, is a guide; it is not intended
to serve as a detailed map at the parcel level. Instead it should be used as a general guide in
determining where certain features could be located such as the Off-Road Pathway or Priority

Conservation Corridors.



MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Communities, LLC)
Planning Commission (5/8/15)
Page 6

Streets and Traffic

Grand River Avenue provides access to the site via two existing driveways; the eastern driveway
aligns with Park Lake Road which is a signalized intersection; and the western driveway is a stop-
controlled driveway and aligns with Sparrow Urgent Care, on the north side of Grand River
Avenue (2682 Grand River Avenue). The western driveway provides the only access to parking
associated with Denny’s Restaurant (2701 Grand River Avenue).

Grand River Avenue is four lanes with a center turn lane; it is classified as a Principal Arterial in
the 2005 Master Plan. The posted speed limit is 45 MPH and the roadway is under the
jurisdiction of the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT). A traffic count taken in 2013
by MDOT between Hamilton Road and Brookfield Street indicates an average of 28,000
vehicles traveled Grand River Avenue in a 24 hour period (Average Daily Traffic or ADT). An
average of 7,468 vehicles traveled Park Lake Road in a 24 hour period between Grand River
Avenue and Mansfield Drive per the 2008 Ingham County Road Department (ICRD) traffic
count. Northwind Drive, located approximately 900 feet west of the subject site, forms a T-
intersection at Grand River Avenue and is signalized. Traffic count information for Northwind

Drive was not available from the ICRD.

The applicant’s Traffic Impact Study, prepared by Fleis and Vandenbrink, dated April 13, 2015,
studied the following intersections: Grand River Avenue (M-43) and Park Lake Road; M-43 and
Denny’s Restaurant driveway (2701 Grand River Avenue), which is the western driveway of
subject site; and M-43 and Northwind Drive. The study provides level of service (LOS) analysis
at three intersections for current, background, and future traffic during the AM (7:00 AM to 9:00

AM) and PM (4:00 PM to 6:00 PM) peak weekday hours.

Trip generation for future traffic is provided and is based on data from the Trip Generation
Manual published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE), 9" Edition and the Trip
Generation Handbook 2™ Edition. Using ITE Land Use Codes 220 (Apartment) and 820
(Shopping Center), approximately 1,820 ATD are projected. The AM peak hour generates121
total trips (28 trips in and 93 trips out). Afternoon peak hour traffic generates 161 total trips (101
trips in and 60 trips out). These figures represent the combined totals for the apartment and

retail uses, as summarized in Table 5.

Under future conditions the report notes the northbound right turn movement will operate at a
LOS of E and eastbound through movement will operate at a LOS of F during the PM peak
period at the intersection of M-43 and Park Lake Road. Southbound right turn movement at M-
43 and Park Lake Road will continue to operate a LOS of E during both AM and PM peak
periods. The study suggests a northbound right turn overlap phase and minor signal timing
adjustments be made at the M-43/Park Lake Road intersection in order to improve movements
at that intersection. Per the study, it is anticipated long vehicle delays will continue to occur at
the subject site’s west access driveway (stop-controlled site western driveway) for northbound

traffic in the PM peak period.

The Township’s Traffic Consultant reviewed the traffic study and recently visited the site,
observing traffic volumes at the west access driveway adjacent to Denny’s Restaurant (2701
Grand River). He noted concerns regarding future traffic entering the driveway from the west
(100 vehicles) and east (22 vehicles), along with traffic trying to exit the site.



MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Communities, LLC)
‘Planning Commission (5/8/15)
Page 7

In his opinion, the western driveway should be used solely for Denny’s Restaurant and traffic
associated with The Avenue should use the signalized eastern driveway at Park Lake Road and

Grand River Avenue.

Bus Route 1, Capital Area Transportation Authority (CATA) runs along Grand River Avenue from
the capital to Meridian Mall. A bus stop is currently located on the south side of Grand River
Avenue, near Kildea Kar Kare (2649 Grand River Avenue) for eastbound travel. For westbound
travel a CATA bus stop is located on the north side of Grand River Avenue between 2682
(Sparrow Urgent Care) and 2660 Grand River (Art Van Pure Sleep). As an amenity, the applicant
is proposing to relocate the bus stop and add a bus shelter north of Block 1 on Grand River
Avenue. The location may be subject to review and approval from other entities such as CATA

and MDOT.

The applicant’s traffic study was sent to MDOT however comments were not received prior to the
completion of this memorandum

Utilities

The Department of Public Works and Engineering has indicated municipal water and sanitary
sewer are available to serve the site. Looping of the watermain may be required and will be
reviewed in more detail during site plan review. The site plan shows a schematic layout for
stormwater management which includes filling in approximately 2/3 of the existing detention basin
in the southwest corner of the site fo create parking areas. A more thorough stormwater plan
including calculations will be required during site plan review. Review and approval from the
Ingham County Drain Commissioner’s office may also be required.

The applicant sent copies of the development plans to the Ingham County Drain Commissioner's
office (ICDC) for their review. Written comments from the ICDC were not been provided prior to

the completion of this memorandum.

Staff Analysis
As background information,-approval of the original shopping center (Special Use Permit #96141)

included a condition that restaurants be prohibited from locating on the site through a deed
restriction. A copy of the deed restriction was not found in the files. A parking deferral was
approved by the Township Board as part of SUP #96141 for the deferment of the construction of
30 parking spaces. Currently this area is lawn and is located east of the western entrance drive,

approximately where Block 1 is proposed.

The proposed project is a request to establish a mixed use planned unit development (MUPUD),
at the existing shopping center. The project includes the existing multitenant retail building and
associated parking and ten new buildings, parking and site amenities. The existing and proposed
buildings are designated as blocks on the plans, as described below:

Block 1: Mixed use, 4-story building with approximately 8,865 gross square feet of retail on
the ground floor and 27 apartment units on floors 2 through 4.



MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Communities, LLC)
Planning Commission (5/8/15)
Page 8

Block 2: Five, 3-story buildings. Four detached buildings are set in a quadrangle format with
an interior courtyard. The clubhouse/community center (3,730 square feet) is
located on first floor of the northern building. The courtyard offers recreational
resources (swimming pool, gazebo, grill bar) and covered bicycle parking.

The fifth building is a 3-story mixed use building, located on the west side of
existing retail building. The mixed use and existing retail building are not physically
attached but appear as such. The entrepreneurial hub/business center (1,615
square feet) is located on the first floor and apartment units are located on floors 2
and 3. A combined total of 110 apartment units are provided in Block 2

Block 3: Four, 3-story (detached) buildings are set in a quadrangle configuration with an
interior courtyard. The courtyard provides gathering spaces, grill bar, and bicycle
parking. A total of 84 apartment units are located on floors 1 through 3.

Block 4: Existing retail building with three tenants totaling approximately 54,547 square feet
of retail space.

The combined total of retail space of existing retail space (54,547 sq. ft.) and proposed retail
space (8,865 sq. ft) is approximately 63,412 square feet. The 222 apariments total
approximately 166,066 square feet. Other areas such as the business center,
clubhouse/community center and maintenance areas sum up to an additional 6,126 square
feet. The combined total of all buildings (existing and proposed) is approximately 235,640 gross

square feet.

. {
Different apartment options are offered with 1-bedroom (392 square feet), 2-bedroom (924
square feet), and 4-bedroom (1,215 square feet) units. Sample floor plans are provided.

The MUPUD ordinance generally waives the standard requirements for lot size, yards, frontage
requirements, building, parking, wetland setbacks, maximum impervious surface regulations,
and type and size of dwelling unit, provided the purpose and intent of the ordinance are
incorporated into the overall development plan. The MUPUD ordinance provides flexibility for
the Planning Commission and Township Board to set appropriate standards during the review

process (Section 86-440(f)(1)).
The following waivers are assumed:
Impervious Surface

C-2 zoned sites may be up to 70 percent impervious. The proposed impervious coverage is
approximately 78.86 percent.

L.oading and Unloading space
A dedicated loading and unloading space is required for every building with over 500 square

feet of gross floor area (Section 86-721(b.)). The plans indicate loading/unloading spaces along
the south side of the existing retail buildihg however a loading space is not provided near the

proposed mixed use building in Block 1.




MUPUD #15014 (Campus‘Village Communities, LLC)
Planning Commission (5/8/15)
Page 9

Parking

Per Section 86-755, the standard motor vehicle parking requirements for commercial uses and
multiple-family uses are as follows: :

Motor Vehicle Parking:

Multiple-Family Use ' 2 épaces for each dwelling unit plus 25% for future
parking
Shopping center 4 1o 4% spaces per 1,000 gross square feet

(Between 25,000-400,000 sq. ft.)

A typical 222 multiple family housing project would be required to construct 444 parking spaces
and reserve an area where 111 additional parking spaces could be constructed if the need arose

(555 parking total spaces).

Parking for a shopping center with approximately 63,412 gross square feet of retail space
(existing and proposed) would require a minimum of 254 and a maximum of 286 parking spaces.
The proposed project would require a combined total of 809 parking spaces (residential plus retail
uses). The plan shows 533 parking spaces thus the site is short 376 parking spaces using the
traditional parking standards. Approximately 301 parking spaces are located near the proposed
apartment and mixed use buildings. The number of required motor vehicle parking spaces could
be reduced up to 10% (81 parking spaces) when bicycle parking is provided. A reduction of one
motor vehicle parking space is allowed for every two bicycle parking spaces provided on-site, but
no more than 10% of the required number of motor vehicle parking spaces (Section 86-760).

Parking Design Standards
Parking design standards for required landscaped buffers are outlined in Section 86-756(14).

Where adjoining the same or other nonresidential district a 15 foot wide landscape buffer is
required between the parking area or its associated internal access or service drives: The

following table summarizes the proposed setbacks:

Standard Proposed
Setback Setback (nearest point)
Parking 15 feet North: 5 feet

South: 2.0 feet
Fast: 6.4 feet
West: 0.75 feet

Landscaping

Landscaping should generally comply with the provisions of the Code of Ordinances per Section
86-440(f)(4) of the MUPUD ordinance. Section 86-758 outlines the typical landscape requirements
for off-street parking areas including: landscaped islands at least 10 feet in width, a minimum of
200 square feet of interior landscaping for every ten parking spaces and two interior canopy trees
per ten parking spaces. A preliminary landscape plan has been provided for the proposed
development (areas related to Block 1-3) however information on the existing landscaping is not

provided.



MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Communities, LL.C)
Planning Commission (5/8/15)
Page 10

Regarding the proposed landscaping, the plans do not provide the required square footage of
interior landscaping nor the required number of interior canopy frees as outlined in Section 86-758
(Landscaping). Street trees (Section 86-473) are not shown on the plan however the applicant has
explained to staff street trees will be provided along the frontage of the site and thus a waiver is

not required.

Design Standards-General Restrictions ,
The design standards in the MUPUD ordinance states residential uses shall be located as far
as possible from railroad tracks (Section 86-440(f)(1)c.). If using the standard outlined in
Section 86-470, a 175 foot setback from a railroad right-of-way is typically required. The plans
note the southeast corner of the southern building in Block 3 is approximately 71 feet from
railroad right-of-way. A portion of the eastern building and all of the southern building in Block 3

are located within 175 feet of the railroad right-of-way.

Architectural design . v
Section 86-440(f)(2)b.2. of the MUPUD ordinance states that buildings wider than 50 feet shall be

divided into increments of not more than 50 feet through articulation of the fagade. Scaled building
elevations have not been provided, however it appears this standard has not been met for the

apartment buildings in Block 2 and 3.

The following information summarizes the project’s compliance with other MUPUD ordinance
standards and standards for development in the C-2 district.

Location. The project site is zoned C-2 (Commercial). Any use permitted by right or by special
use permit in the underlying zoning as well as residential uses, is permitted in the MUPUD.

Uses and Density. Single- and multiple-family uses are allowed up to a density of 14 dwelling
units per acre when a site is being redeveloped for a use permitted by right or by special use
permit in the underlying district and on the same parcel of land (Section 86-440(c)(2)c.). The
plan shows a total of 222 residential units spread over approximately 12.65 acres, resulting in an
overall residential density of approximately 17 dwelling units per acre (du/a). The maximum
density for a redevelopment MUPUD may be increased to no more than 18 du/a when a project
offers four or more additional unique and extraordinary amenities. The applicant has provided

more than four amenities.

Amenities. One or more amenities are required for every MUPUD project and should represent
multiple categories from the list: Conservation; Environment; Accessibility; Parks, Recreation and
Culture; Social Interaction; and Site and Building Design. Guidelines for acceptable amenities are
found in Section 86-440(e)(2) of the MUPUD ordinance.

The site plan lis:cs the following amenities grouped by category in Sheet 5:

Conservation: LED site lighting-all exterior lights.

1.
2. Environment: Site recycling of trash.
3. Accessibility: Relocate bus stop near the western entrance driveway; Foot and bicycle

pathways connecting to the Township pathway system; covered bicycle storage on-site.

Parks: Public recreation resources-fitness park; dog park.
Social Interaction: outdoor gathering resourced-pocket parks; seating plazas visible to the

street; private courtyards; public internet; bus stop.

ot A



MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Communities, LLC)
Planning Commission (5/8/15)
Page 11°

6. Site and building design: underground utilities; upper floor balconies; sidewalk planters;
consolidation of multiple parcels into one facility.

Building Height. The maximum building height for a MUPUD project is 45 feet. The height of the
mixed use building in Block 1 is 45’-6” to the parapet wall. This building has a flat roof which is 2-3
feet below the top of the parapet wall so the actual building height is less than 45 feet. The height
of the mixed use building (has a flat roof) in Block 2 is 45-5” to the parapet wall. The apartment
buildings in Block 2 and 3 have peaked roofs and the building height for each building is 38’-2".

Building materials. Sample building materials will be provided at the public hearing. Per the
building elevations, the exterior finish materials will include brick, round face/CMU concrete block,
fiber cement lap and shake siding, and clear anodized aluminum storefront system on the mixed
use buildings and the north fagade of the clubhouse/community center building. Asphalt shingles

are proposed for the roofing on the apartment buildings.

Railings, benches, trash receptacles, or bicycle racks. Accessory items shall be of commercial
-quality and complement the building design and style, per Section 86-440(f)(2)b.5. Bicycle racks
are planned however examples of designs and materials have not been provided for

y

consideration. i

Two 2-stall dumpster enclosures are shown however elevation drawings of the enclosures and
have not been provided.

Bicycle Parking: 1 bicycle parking space for every
10 motor vehicle parking spaces required
(not less than 2, not more than 50)

MUPUD Section 86-440(f)(3)d. states bicycle parking shall be separated from automobile parking
in visible locations. The site plan shows 189 bicycle racks (378 bicycle parking spaces) scattered
throughout the new development area including covered bicycle parking in the interior courtyards

of Block 2 and 3.

Location of parking areas. The MUPUD ordinance encourages parking to be located on the side
or rear of a building, per Section 86-440(f)(3)c. and the site plan is generally in compliance. :

Lighting. The MUPUD ordinance indicates site lighting shall comply with the Outdoor Lighting -
Ordinance, Section 38-371 and street lighting intended to provide illumination for pedestrians on
the sidewalk shall not exceed 15 feet in height. A photometric plan and examples of light fixtures
have not been submitted. LED light poles are labeled on the site plans.

Signs. A sign program is generally required as part of the MUPUD application showing the style,
size, number and location of signs, as outlined in Section 86-440(f)(6) of the ordinance. The
Director of Community Planning and Development may be authorized to approve the entire sign
program, or any part of the sign program, as part of the site plan review process. A formal sign
program has not been submitted however individual wall signs are shown on the elevation
drawings for the proposed retail tenant spaces. The site has two existing freestanding signs, one
at each entrance drive. The signs have slots available for new tenant signage.



MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Communities, LLC)
Planning Commission (5/8/15)
Page 12

Sidewalks.
Sidewalk standards are outlined in Section 86-440(f)(7). In general sidewalks should be a

minimum of five feet in width. Seven foot wide sidewalks are required when a sidewalk is located
immediately adjacent to an off-street parking area or when it is part of the Township’s
Pedestrian/Bicycle Pathway system. The existing 7-foot wide Pedestrian/Bicycle pathway along
Grand River Avenue is shown on the site plan. Internal circulation is provided via 5-foot wide
sidewalks around the proposed buildings with connections to the existing internal sidewalks.
Stripped crosswalks are provided in various locations in the parking areas.

A pocket park with paver patio and connecting sidewalk from the pathway on Grand River Avenue
into the subject site are proposed. This is located near the western driveway and the relocated

bus stop.

The Township Pedestrian/Bicycle Pathway Master Plan shows a cross country pathway south of
the Grand Trunk Western Railroad tracks. The railroad and right-of-way parallels the south
property line of the subject site. In reviewing the plans, the Township Engineering Department has
expressed a preference that the cross country pathway be located within the subject site and be

constructed as part of the MUPUD project.

Other
The Township Development Review Committee reviewed the plans and offered the following

comments.

Fire Department:
A fire suppression system is required for the proposed buildings.

.

o Fire alarm is required.
-]

L

Access for fire and safety vehicles appears to be adequate throughout the site.
Additional fire hydrants may be required dependent on the fire suppression system.

Parks Department:
o Crosswalks should be striped at each end of the linear fitness park.

s The dog park should be enlarged if possible.
¢ A pathway easement should be provided between the railroad right-of-way and the

development.

Planning Commission Options
The Planning Commission may recommend approval, approval with conditions, or denial. A

motion will be provided at a future meeting.

Attachments
1. Application and supporting materials
2. Letter from 'William Savage, P.E., dated April 30, 2015

3. Site Plans dated May 6, 2015, prepared by KEBS, Inc.
4. Building Elevations/Perspective Drawings and Floor Plans prepared by Progressive AE

G:\commun ping & dev\ping\mixed use planned unit developmenf\2015\mupud 15014 (The Avenue)\staff
reports\mupud pc -



Ryl

CHARTER TOWNSHIP QF MERIDIAN
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, Ml 48864
PHONE: (517) 853-4560, FAX: (517) 853-4095

MI{ED USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

Before submitting this application for review, an applicant shall parficipate in the pre-application
conference with the Director of Community Planning and Development to discuss the requirements for a

Mixed Use Planned Unit Development.

Part | .
A,  Applicant Campus Village Development ‘
Address of Applicant _919 West University Drive Suite 700 Kochester, ] 43207
Telephone -~ Work 248-609-0412 E-Mail greg@campusvillage.com  Fax 248-609-0438
Interest in property (circle one); Owner Tenant ~ (Option> Other
(Please attach a list of all persons with an ownership interest in the property.)
B. Site address / location / parcel number _2655 Grand River
Legal description (please attach if necessary) _ Ses Attached Survey
Current zoning _C-2
Project name _ The Avenue on Grand River
C. - Developer (if different than applicant) __Same As Applicant
Address N/A
Telephone: Work __ N/A E-Mail_ VA Fax NA
D. Archltect Engineer Planner or Surveyor responsible for design of project if different from apphcant
Name Xaebs, Inc, ~ Jeff Kyes, P.E,
Address 2116 Haslett Road Haslett, Michigan 48840
Telephone(s) 3517-339-1014 E-Mail jkyes@kebs.com Fax 517-339-8047
E. Acreage of all parcels in the project: Gross _12.57 Net 1257
F Proposed Uses and Site Amenitles:
1. Non-residential uses:
a. Type _Retail | Clubhouse | Enirepreneurial Hub
b. Percent of project area __62%
C. Total square fest for non-residential uses 68,186
d. Usable floor area 54,549
e. Number of employees . TBD
f Hours of operation __ TBD (Based on Tenant mix)
2 Residential Uses:
a. Percent of project area  38%
b. Total dwelling units 222
C. Dwelling unit mix;
i Number of single family detached:  for Rent Condo
ii. Number of duplexes: for Rent Cando
iit, Number of townhouses: - for Rent Condo
i, Number of garden slyle apartments: for Rent 222 Condo
v. Number of other dwellings: for Rent Condo

Page 1



.....

3. Parking:

a. Non-residential uses
b. Residential uses 533
4, Proposed Amenities: Type _See Attached Amenifies Plan
* {General) ' Type
Type
Type

Proposed Amenities: Type
(Density Bonus) Type
Type
Type

The following support materials must be submitted with the application:

1. Nonrefundable fee.
2. Legal Description of the property. (A sealed survey may be required)
3. Evidence of fee or other ownership of the properly or a lefter from the owner authorizing the

request including the owner's proof of ownership.

4. A written description of the project including, but not limited to: a site analysis; the principal factors
which influenced the site plan and architectural elements; and, the proposed phasing program for

non-residential and residential uses, installation and/or construction of amenmes

Fourteen coples {Thirteen (1 3) 24"x36” and one 8%" x11”} of a Site Plan drawn fo a readable

5.

scale containing the following (may be a set of plans for readability):

e Total property, its location in the Township, its relationship to adjacent properties

e  Boundariss of subject properly

= Location and dimensions of all existing and proposed structures

» Approximate Jocation and distance of all structures within 100 feet of the subject property

e Proposed means of vehicular and pedestrian ingress and egress to the subject property

e Public and private roads and streets, rights-of-way and easements indicating names and
widths of streets which abut or cross the site

o Existing and proposed parking spaces and vehicular and pedestrian circulation patterns

o Dimensions of setbacks from streets, property lines and between buildings on the site

o Location of propased amenities

= Location and size of existing utllities including power lines and towers, both above and helow
ground

= Amount and location and calculation of all impervious surfaces

e Verified boundaries of all natural water features and required setback lines

6. A reproducible two foot contour topographic map based on United States Geological Survey
(USGS) drawn at the same scale as the site plan and showing existing relief features on the site. |

- 7. A schematic layout of the proposed storm sewer system.

8. Architectural sketches of all elevations of proposed buildings or siructures, including the project
entrances, as they will appear upon completion. The sketches should be accompanied by
material samples or a display board of the proposed exierior materials and colors.

9. Floor plans of proposed residential units.

Page2 .



triris
o

A Traffic Study (if the project will exceed 100 vehicle Hips during the peak hours of the

10.
roadway(s), prepared by a qualified traffic engineer, based on the most current edition of
Evalualing Traffic Impact Siudies: A Recommended PFractice for Michigan Gommunities,
published by the State Department of Transportation. :

11. Natural Features Study for previously undeveloped properties which includes a written description
of natural features proposed to be retained, removed, or modified. Natural features shall include,
but are not_limited to, watlands, floodways, floodway frings, waterbodies, significant stands of
trees or individual trees greater than 12 inches dbh, identified groundwater vulnerable areas,
slopes greater than 20 percent,

12. Preliminary engineering reperts in accordance with the adopted Township water and sewer
standards, together with a letter of review from the Township Engineer.

13. A sign program lllusirating size and location of each proposed sign type.

14.  Alighting plan (see Chapler 38, Article VII}.

15. Copies of comments from reviewing agencies such as, but not limited to, the following:

" e Ingham County Road Commission
s Ingham County Drain Cammission
e Michigan Department of Transportation (if applicable)
e Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (if applicable)
&« The appropriate school board (as applicable)
H. Any other information specified by the Director of Community Planning and Development which is

deemed necessary o evaluate the application.

Partll

| (we) hereby grant permission for members of the Charter Township of Meridian’s Boards and/or Commissions,
Township staff member(s) and the Township’s representatives or experis the right to enfer onto the above
described property (or as described in the attached information) in my (our) absence for the purpose of gathering
information including but not limited to the taking and the use of photographs.

Yes 1 No (Please check one).

By the sighature(s) attached hereto, I (we) cerfify that the information provided within this application and

accogﬁn_@\njing docurgn%aﬁon is, o the best of my {cur} knowledge, true and accurate
AN J

J L Ne 04/13/2015
Signature@f“Appli?:ant ~— Date
Greg Schaefer
Type/Print Narne

Fee: / @ (0. o . Received by: WMW

Pre-Appiication Meeting Held: ___, / / 97/ / 6
] i
Application Complete: %/ /7/L / 7/

Date: ,'/f/ //97// § N

Date

Date Staff

Page 3




The Avenue on Grand River

The Avenue on Grand River is a mixed use retail and housing development that
combines existing retail with new housing and new retail Into a new vibrant community. The
project will be located at 2655 E. Grand River. Three retail entities, Food for Living, State of
Fitness, and Salvation Army are currently located on the site.  The project will convert a retail
site that has sat vacant for over 17 years info a new community that encompasses all the
aspects of new urbanism. The project combines both horizontal and vertical mixed use
elements into & warm and inviting walkable community. The project incorporates many public
spaces that can be used not only by the site residents, but by all community residents. By
combining residential housing with significant existing and new site retail and public spaces, a
walkable community is created where residents can fulfill their needs for shopping, other

activities and relaxation directly on site.

The project will add 15,040 square feet of new retail and community space and 165,939 square
feet of new housing to the existing 53,616 square feet of refail already on the site. The
residential portion of the development will be comprised of 222 units in one, two and four
bedroom configurations. The majority of the residential units are one and two bedroom with a
bedroom to unit ratio of 1.86 for the entire community. The majority of the new retail space will
be located on the first floor of a new vertical mixed use building located on the northern portion
of the site adjacent to Grand River. Additional new commercial space will be located as an
extension on the west end of the existing retail. The new residential housing will be located
above the new retail, and in two housing clusters centered around inferior court yards on the
west side of the site. The residential units will have high end finishes with granite countertaps,
dark wood cabinets, and faux wood flooring. With the focus towards older students and young
professionals, technology will be emphasized both in the units and the amenities. In addition

the units will be furnished.

The entire site includes many amenities for use by both residents and non-residents of
the community. in the conservation category, all exterior lighting for the community will be LED
fixtures. Site recycling of trash will be undertaken to help preserve the environment. We are
planning to relocate the bus transit stop to the front of the community and make it a gathering
space by adding benches, flower boxes, and public WiF| access. Foot and bicycle pathways
through the community connecting to the existing township system will provide additional means
of accessibility to the project. In addition we will provide significant bicycle storage, including
covered storage, for the residents and retall customers. An additional amenity will be a fithess
park to provide a work-out area with specialized exerclse equipment for the entire community.
Additional outdoor gathering areas, public seating spaces and plazas will be available for
residents and non-residents alike. The project will also feature a dog park for use by the entire
community, which we understand to be a desired public amenity in the Township. The
apartment units will incorporate many state of the art amenities including private courtyards,
underground utilities, balconies, sidewalk planters, swimming pool, gazebos, and many other




features. A community center will provide a work-out facility, computer lab, conference and
meeting rooms, a lounge area, and game room for residents.

A unigue feature of the community will be an entrepreneurial hub, This feature supports
the transitional period of many upper level students, new graduates and young professionals to
establish their business pursuits, The purpose of this concept is to provide an environment and
support facilities for young professionals starting with their own business to excel in their new
venture. Many residenis in college community environments start their own small business in
the later years of their university experience. Our community will be geared to support this
actjvity by providing an on-site business center where residenis can meet with associates, hold
small conferences, utilize business support facilities, and in general grow their business, The
residential component of the project is structured to attract these potential residents by providing
over 75% of its units as one and two bedroom units,

Requested ordinance waivers:

Side yard parking sethack. 18’ required 0.75' proposed.
Rear yard parking setback 15" required 2.0' proposed.
Maximum impervious area. 70% required 77.26% proposed
Internal parking landscape areas and landscaping
Parking: /
Required - Commercial 219 spaces
Résidenﬁal 444 spaces plus 111 spaces that could be built in the future

Total required 663 spaces plus 111 shown that could be built = 774 spaces

Proposed- 533 spaces

We are very excited to bring this project forward for your consideration. We look forward
to working with the township throughotit this process. If you have any questions as you go
through this material please do not hesitate to contact us.



Name: The Avenue on Grand River

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITS CHECKLIST

Mailing Address:

919 West University Drive Suife 700 Rochester, Mmhlgan 48307

Telephone: 248-609-0402 Fax: 248-609-0438 E-Mail:  greg@campusvillage.com

Type of Business (if applicable): Multiple
Owner/Manager:_Campus Village Development v . N
Date:_ 04/13/2015 Signature: | "3 - FATSN

e o e e et R rve S Tt S T e e ST T e e T YR TS TS P Awr VY v ot e e St A g e A MAAC S M ik Shda Ad Sk i ke aaah e AL A b hh

Circle {Y/N) the iterns that may pertain fo your project or facility; then contact the office(s) listed to determine specific
requirements. Return a copy of this checklist to the Department of Communily Planning & Development as part of your
profect or development submitial — even if the approva/s have not yet been obtained. This list includes the most common
permits and approvals related to water and air quality, waste, and the environment. Other permits and approvals,

including Township approvals may also be necessary.

<
@

Will the projéct involve the discharge of any type of wastewater to a storm sewer, drain, lake, wetland, or other
surface water? Contact: MDNRE/Water Bureau @ {517) 335-4176; MDNRE/Land & Water Management @
(517} 373-1170; Meridian Township Dept. of Community Planning and Development @ {517) 853-4580.

Will the project involve any construction work, fill with any material, or soil disturbance in the 100-year
floodplain? Contact: MDNRE Land & Water Managemeni/Floodplain Management @ (517) 335-3181 and
Meridian Township Dept. of Community Flanning & Developmeni @ (1517) 853-4560.

Will the project involve the direct or indirect discharge of waste, waste effluent, wastewater, poltutants, and/or
cooling water into the groundwater or on the ground? Contact: MDNRE/ Waste & Hazardous Materials @

(517) 3352690,

Will the project involve construction or alteration of any sewage collection or treatment facility? Contact:
MDNRE/Water Bureau @ (517) 335-4176. For discharging to surface waters; Contact: MDNRE/Water
Bureau @ (517) 335-4176. For discharging {o groundwater; Contact: MDNRE/Waste & Hazardous

Matetials @ (517) 335-2680,

Will the project or facility store or use chemicals, petroleum products, or salt? Depending on the type of
substance, secendary containment and a Pollution incident Prevention Plan (PIPP) may be required. Contact:
MDNRE/Waste & Hazardous Materials @ (517) 373-8481; Ingham County Health Dept. /Environmental
Health Division @ {517) 887-4312; Meridian Township Fnre Administration @ (517) 853-4700..

Will the project involve the installation, operation, or removal of an underground or abave ground storage tank
containing a petroleum product or hazardous substance? Gontact: MDNRE/Waste & Hazardous NMaterials

@ (517) 335-4035 and Meridian Township Fire Administration @.(5617) 853-4700.

Will the project involve liquefied petroleum gas storage tanks, container filling station, or a compressed natural
gas dispensing station? Contact: MDNRE/Waste & Hazardous Matetials @ (517) 335-4035.

Will the project involve the generation of hazardous waste or medical waste? Hazardous Waste Coniact:
MDNRE/Waste & Hazardous Materials @ (517) 335-9875. Medical Waste Contact; MDNRE/Waste &

Hazardous Materials @ (517) 241-1320 or (517) 335-11486.

Will the project involve the on-site freatment, storage, or disposal of hazardous waste? Contact:
MDNRE/Wasie & Hazardous Maierials @ (517) 335-8875.

Will the project involve the transport of hazardous waste or non-hazardous liquid industrial waste? Gontaci:
VIDNRE/Waste & Hazardous Materials @ (517) 335-2875. -

Will the project involve landfilling, fransferring or processing solid non-hazardous wastes on site? Contact:
MDNRE/Waste & Hazardous Materials @ (517) 335-2690.

Will the project invoive the installation, construction, reconstruction, relocation, or alteration of any process or
process equipment (including air pollution corrol equlpment) which could emit air contaminants? Contact:

MDNRE/Air Quality @ (517) 373-7023.



18. Y @ Will the project or facility involve the storage, mixing, or distribution of pesticides or fertilizers in bulk
quantities? Contact: Michigan Departmeni of Agriculiure/Region 6 Pesticide & Plant Pest Management

@ (517) 335-1830.

.14, @ N Will the project involve a manmade ¢hange in the natural cover (lénd clearing) and/or topography of land,
such as cut/fill activities that may contribute to soil erosion/sedimentation? Contact: Meridian Township
Dept. of Public Works & Engineering @ (517) 853-4440 and MDNRE/Land & Water Management @

(517) 373-1170.

15. Y @ Will the project Involve any dredging, filling with any material, or construction in, across, under, or within 500
feet of a river, siream, creek, ditch, drain, lake, pond, swamp, or wetland{s)? Contact: MDNRE/L.and & Water
Managerment @ (517) 373-1170 and Meridian Township Dept. of Community Planning & Developmeni

(517) 853-4560.

16. Y @ Will an on-gite wastewater treatment system or seplic system be instailed? ,
For subsurface sanitary sewage disposal in quantities of 10,000 gallons per day or less: For any

subsurface discharge or sanitary sewage in quantities equal to or greater than 10,000 gallons per day.
Contact: MDNRE/Waste & Hazardous Materials @ (58'17) 335+2699.

For subsurface disposal of sanitary sewage in quaniities of 6,000 to 10,000 gallons per day: In addition to
obtaining a construction permit from the Ingham County Healih Departiment, submit a state wastewater
discharge notification form. Flow monitoring and reporting are required. Contact: MDNRE/Waste &

Hazardous Materials @ (517) 335-2690.

For indusirial or commercial wastewater (other than sanitary sewage) in any quantity. Coniact:
MDNRBE/Waste & Hazardous Matetials @ (517) 335-2690. .

17. @ N Will the project involve construction of a water supply well or extension of a water supply service from an
existing water system? Contact: MDNRE/Water Bureau @ (517) 241-1374 and Ingham County Health

Dept/Environmental Health @ (517) 887-4312.

18. Y @ Are there out-of-service wells, abandoned wells, or cisterns on the site? (drinking water, irrigation &
montitoring wells). Contact: MDNRE/Water Bureau @ (517) 241-1413; Ingham County Health
Dept./Environmental Health @ (517) 887-4312; and Meridian Township Department of Community

Planning & Development @ (517) 853-4560.

18. Y @ Wit the project involve a subdivision or site condominium project utilizing individual on-site subsurface
disposal systems or individual wells? Contact: Ingham County Health Dept./Environmental Health @ (517)

887-4312.

20. Y @ Will the project involve the on-site storage of sanitary sewage prior to transport and disposal off-site (pump
and haul}? Contact: MDNRE/Waste & Hazardous Materials @ (517) 335-2680,

21. Y @ Has the site/facility ever been subject to a remedial action, limited closure, or other environmental cleanup
response under Part 201, Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act (NREPA)? Is the praperty
currently subject to a response action? Has a Baseline Environmental Assessment (BEA) been completed for
the property? Contact: MDNRBE/Remediation & Redevelopment @ (517) 373-9837 and/or MDNRE/Waste

& Hazardous Materials @ (517) 335-2690.

22. Y @ Wiil the project involve the installation of a seawall or bulkhead? Coniact: MDNRE/Land & Water
Management @ (517) 373-1170 and Meridian Township Dept. of Community Planning & Development

@ (517) 853-4560.

For assistance with permits and approvals from ihe’ Michigan Department of Natural Resources and Environment (MDNRE),
including coordination among MDNRE divisions, contact the Permit Coordination Unit at (517) 373-9244. -
For assistance on environmental issues at the MDNRE, contact the Environmental Assistance Center at (800) 662.927

s ForSpill/Release reporting to the MDNRE, call {517) 373-8481.

Last updaled, June 2010

g\planningVorms\applications\enviro tal perniits checklist.doc




' CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
Revigion Date: March, 2012 HEALTH IMPACT ASSESSMENT

Please provide written responses 1o each applicable question. For those questions which are not applicable,
please indicate so on the form. Attach additional sheets if more space is necessary to respond fu!!y to the
questions. Submit completed form with your project/development application.

Project Name:The Avenue on Grand River, Address/l.ocation: 2655 Grand River Case #
Type of Project; [X] Residential [¥] Commercial [7] Office [} Public

Water Quality Considerations/impacis

YES NO

Meridian Township

What is the source of water for the proposed pro;ect/development?

What is the estimated daily water demand? __TBD

If public water, is there available capacity 1o handle this project In the municipal facilities?

If private well, is the water considered potable {safe)?

Is the project/development within existing municipal service areas?

Are there nearby sources of potential water contamination? IF YES LIST
Are there underground storage tanks? IF YES LIST
Are their gasoline or oil pipelines? IF YES LIST
Is there a nearby known source of contaminated soil? IF YES LIST

Are there abandoned wells on the site? IF YES LIST

Will the water supply require on-site treatment, such as iron removal?

Are there any wetlands on the site? '

If YES what is/are the size(s) of the wetland(s)?
If wetlands are being impacted, is adequate mitigation being proposed?

Is the project located in a known floodplain?

Will the proposed project affect groundwater recharge?

What percentage of the parcel is covered by impervious surfaces? _77.26%

- Does the project affect the averall percentage of imparvious surfaces in the watershed?

Wastewater Considerations/impacis

YES NO
| Does the project/development require an on-site wastewater system?

O 0O If YES, are the soils appropriate to support a septic system?
i [0 s project/development within the service area of the municipal sewage system?

KNO HEREERROOD

¥ OO0 OO0COO0NEOR

n

nv-n1vxv—nln-rl1
-~

| s’

WS 6 ""‘:\‘1
’"::.’3

_«ﬂ"“

oo

“"‘i

"'“"LJ
o A
Sl }
PR, =

:xm
; ky

(WS
‘g
winatts
(X
n\w\ﬂ*::‘

Air Quality Considerations/impacts E}u——j@m‘ L iat
YES NO mmmmmmsmmeashesmmmody s

3 Does the project/development entail demolition activities?

i if YES, has the sife been examined for asbestos and/or lead?

0o O Are there plans for mitigating dust?

1 Wil the project/development resulf in increased stationary air emisslons?

R 1 YES, are emissions controlled contaminants? PLEASE LIST

O O Has the applicant obtained necessary permits?

B [ Wil the project result in increased air emissions from cars?

What is the increase in traffic volume projected for peak hours? _See Attached Traffic Study
O

Is the proposed use compatible with adjacent uses?
K] Isthe site near known areas affected by radon?

Solid & Hazardous Waste Disposal
YES NO

WS

Is the proposed project/development jocated near any facility handling or disposing of hazardous waste?

Will the proposed project/development provide on-site recycling? .

Is there historic evidence of solid or hazardous waste disposal or releases on or adjacent to the site?

Are there plans in place to prevent the release of hazardous materials into the environment in the case of fire?
If YES describe

0 K
0 x
[1 [ Dossihe project entail hazardous waste disposal?

1 . I YESisthe proposed waste handling or disposal activity compatible with adjacent use and/or zorning?
O

Ll X

=O
B

Is the proposed waste handting or disposal activily compatible with the Ingham County Solid Waste

Management Plan?
s the facility near vulnerable resources {(e.g. nursing homes) that may require contingency planning for extra

protection in the event of an on-site fire? IF ANY LIST




I N E- e
Noise Considerations/impacis g
YES NO i “‘Ej‘[iy
[l X Isthe project/development likely to generate noises that will create a nmsamenm nexghbormguusesz? ggggg —
it YES please list type of noise(s) and hours
O X Are thete engineered or non-engineered measures that can be employed to mitigate nuisance noises?

If YES please list
[ Xl Doesthe generated noise violate the noise ordinance?

Social Capital

YES NO
[[1 Doesthe projectidevelopment promote interaction between neighbors?

If Yes please list_Community Events, Shared Common Areas, Business Opportunities
K [0 Isthe physical design of the project harmonious with the overall neighborhood?

Physical Activity and Injury Prevention
YES ' .
Does the project/development provide mobility optiens for those who cannot drive?
Does the project/development have sidewalks that lead to local destinations?
It YES what is the proposed width of the sidewalks? _5' - 7'
Does the project/development have or connect to a trall system for walking or biking?
Doss the project/development contain elements that enhance the fesling of neighborhood safety?
Are local streetlights being provided?
Are houses otfented toward the street to provide "eyes on the sireet?”
Can a child walk safely to school?
Are there sidewalks/pathways along the route to the school(s)?
What is the walking distance 1o the area’s schools?____0.7 Miles
Is the visibility at intersections good?/Can drivers see short children?
Does the route cantain known dangerous intersections?
If YES please list
Are thete crossing guards at these intersections?
Wil the project/development contain a significant elderly population? -
Can the elderly walk to important destinations (i.e. banks, post office, and library)?
Whiat is the walking distance to these destinations?
Are there sidewalks/pathways along the routes to these destinations?
Does the route contain known dangerous intersections?
Does the project contain design elements o calm fraffic such as speed humps, extended comers, raised sireet
crossings, or similar features? IF ANY LIST
Does the project/development present unsafe conditions or deter access and free mability for the physically
handicapped?
For %OJects/development on arterial streets does the plan include pedestrian crossing signals and/or mid-street
islands?
Is public transportation available? If YES where and how close Is the nearest bus stop? __On site
Does the nearest bus stop have a shelter?
Does the nearest the bus stop have a bench?

Health Equity/Food Systems (HOUSING PRCJECTS ONLY)

YES NO .
[TInvalC1  Does the project provide for a diversity of housing types fo accommodate a variely of income groups?

What Is the square footage of the smallest dwelling unit?
What is the estimated market price?
[IN/A[] Does this price represent an “affordable house” given the area median income?
Is the proposed project/development located in an area that provides easy access to healthy foods?
What is the distance to the nearest full serviee grocery store?_ On sits
What is the distance to the nearest convenience store? __ On site
Will dwelling units (multiple family housing projects) be smoke-free?
Does the neighborhood have.a disproportionate number of liquor/parly stores?
is the project/developrment located in a neighborhood or region characterized by concentrated poverty?
Avre affected residents involved in the planning process?
Are disadvantaged populations at greater risk of exposure to environmental hazards?

B

NEN N 0 OO BO00 ORONNERES
OO0 O B RE0 ORE RO0000000 002

O

H100oa
RIRR M

Growth Obijectives/Regional Growih Project

YES NO
Xl [ Isthe project located within the designated growth area of the Tri-County Regional Growth Project?




. UL E

Q F@F‘ﬂﬂﬁ?ﬁ

i
3
{ APR 13 78 {
I / VIA EMAIL
s o)
To: Mr. Greg Schaefer Al IETI RN &S]
’ Campus Village Communities @ = ~7====ssosescsasesanees
Erom: Michael J. Labadie, PE
) Fleis & VandenBrink Engineering
Date: April 13, 2015

The Avenue on Grand River
Re: Meridian Charter Township, Michigan
Traffic Impact Assessment

Introduction

This memorandum presents the results of a Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) for the proposed Avenue on
Grand River residential development in Meridian Charter Township, Michigan. The project site is located on
the southwest quadrant of the intersection of E. Grand River Avenue (M-43) and Park Lake Road in Meridian
Charter Township, Michigan. The proposed residential/commercial development would include 222
residential units and 8,688 square feet of commercial space with site access provided via two (2) existing
access drives off of M-43; one aligned with Park Lake Road and one aligned with the Sparrow Urgent Care

facility driveway.

The Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) has jurisdiction over Grand River Avenue and has
required a TIA for the proposed project in accordance with Traffic and Safety Note 607B. The study scope
includes the intersections of M-43 & Park Lake Road, M-43 & Denny’s Driveway, and M-43 & Northwind
Drive. The purpose of this study is to identify the traffic related impacts, if any, of the proposed development

on the adjacent road network.

Data Collection

Existing vehicular turning movement counts were collected by Traffic Engineering Associates. Intersection

~ turning movement counts were collected during the Weekday AM (7:00 AM to 9:00 AM) and PM (4:00 PM to
6:00 PM) peak periods at the study intersections. F&V collected an inventory of existing lane use and traffic
controls and obtained existing traffic signal timing information from MDOT. The existing AM and PM peak
hour traffic volumes were identified based on the data collected. Peak hour turning movements volumes at
each intersection were utilized for this study and the volumes were balanced upward through the study
network where appropriate. The applicable data referenced in this memorandum are aitached.

Existing Conditions

Existing peak hour vehicle delays and Levels of Service (LOS) were calculated at the study intersections
using Synchro (Version 9) traffic analysis software. This analysis was based on the existing lane use and
traffic control, the existing peak hour traffic volumes, and the methodologies presented in the Highway
Capacity Manual, 2010 (HCM). Typically, LOS D is considered acceptable, with LOS A representing minimal
delay, and LOS F indicating failing conditions. Additionally, SimTraffic network simulations were reviewed to
evaluate network operations and vehicle queues. The existing conditions results are attached and shown in
Table 1.

27725 Stansbury Boulevard, Suite 150

Farmington Hills, MI 48334

P: 248.536.0080

F:248.536.0079

822730 The Avenues Meridian Township TIA FINAL Memo 4-13-15 Www.fveng.com



. -
-

The Avenue on CG. .ad River | Trafiic Impact Assessment
- April 13, 2015 | Page 2 of 6

Table 1
Existing Intersection Operations
AM Peak PM Peak
Delay Delay
Intersection Control Approach  (s/fveh) LOS | (s/veh) LOS
1. E.'Grand River Avenue (M-43) Signalized EB 7.7 A 23.0 C
& Park Lake Road / WB 27.2 C 21.4 C
Site Drive NB 46.6 D 48.2 D
‘ SB 53.6 D 53.9 D
Overall 28.3 Cc 26.8 c
2. E. Grand River Avenue (M-43) Signalized EB 1.9 A 54 A
& Northwind Drive WB 0.5 A 0.6 A
. NB 47.8 D 51.2 D
1 . : Overall | 2.0 A 6.5 A
3. E. Grand River Avenue (M-43) STOP EBLT 12.4 B 8.6 A
& Site Drive / Sparrow (Minor) WBLT 8.2 A 11.0 B
Drive A ' NB 19.9 C 288.7 F
SB 25.4 D 30.7 D

The resulis of the existing conditions analysis indicate that all study intersection approaches and movements
currently operate acceptably at a LOS D or better during the AM peak period. During the PM peak period, all
study intersection approaches and movements operate acceptably except the STOP controlled proposed site
driveway approach to M-43 aligned with Sparrow Drive, which currently operates at a LOS F. However, a
limitation of the HCM Two-Way Stop Controlled (TWSC) methodology is that it cannot completely account for
the effects of upstream signalized intersections. In order to evaluate the gaps created by the adjacent
upstream and downstream signalized intersections, a simulation model is required. Therefore, SimTraffic
was utilized to further evaluate vehicle delays for the M-43 & proposed site drive / Sparrow Drive intersection.

The results of the vehicle delays at the intersection were calculated based on the average of five simulation
runs in SimTraffic and are shown in Table 2. These results indicate that the two adjacent signalized
intersections help to provide gaps in the traffic stream which facilitate driveway turning movements at the
proposed site driveway approach. Additionally, review of network simulations indicates acceptable traffic
operations at the signalized intersections and vehicle queues which are acceptably processed.

Table 2

Existing Intersection Delays (SimTraffic)
AM Peak PM Peak
Delay Delay
Intersection Control ~ Approach  (sfveh) LOS | (siveh) LOS
2. E. Grand River Avenue (M-43) Stop EBLT . 8.5 - 7.2 -
& Site Drive / Sparrow (Minor) WBLT 2.1 - 25.4 -
Drive NB 10.5 - 40.8 -
' ' SB 13.3 - 191 -

8202730 The Avenue Wleridian Township TIA FINAL Memo 4-13-15



o

The Avenue on G _ad River | Traffic Impact Assessment
Aprit 18,2015 | Page 3 0f 6

Background Conditions

In order to determine the applicable traffic growth rate for the existing traffic volumes to the project build-out
year, MDOT historical traffic data for Grand River Avenue were referenced. MDOT data for the study section
of Grand River Avenue indicates that between 2011 and 2013, the Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT)
volumes increased 3% overall in the two year period. Therefore, an annual growth rate of 1.5% per year was

forecast for one year to the project build-out year of 2016.

In addition to background traffic growth, it is important to account for traffic that will be generated by approved
developments within the vicinity of the study area that have yet to be constructed or are currently under
construction. Through conversations with MDOT and Meridian Township, one background development was
[identified within the study area. A Whole Food grocery store is currently under construction along the north
side of M-43 approximately 900 feet west of the subject site and will have signalized site access via the north
leg of the M-43 & Northwind Drive intersection. Site-generated firaffic volumes for the Whole Food

development were obtained from MDOT.

Future peak hour vehicle delays and LOS without the proposed development were calculated based on the
existing lane use and tiraffic control, the projected background traffic volumes, and the methodologies
presented in-the HCM. Additionally, SimTraffic simulations were utilized to evaluate network operations and
vehicle queues. The resulis of the analysis of background conditions are attached and summarized in Table

3.

Table 3
Background Intersection Operations
AM Peak PM Peak
i ' Delay Delay
Intersection Control Approach  (siveh)  LOS | (siveh) LOS
1. E. Grand River Avenue Signalized EB 8.2 A 32.0 C
& Park Lake Road / WB 28.1 C 22.0 c
Site Drive : NB 46.6 D 48.5 D
SB 54.8 D 56.1 E
Overall 29.1 Cc 31.9 Cc
2. E. Grand River Avenue Signalized EB 2.5 A 9.1 A
& Northwind Drive _ WB 1.2 A 1.4 A
NB 44.7 D 421 D
sB 441 D [ 414 D
Overall 3.2 A 9.4 A
3. E. Grand River Avenue STOP EBLT 12.7 B 8.7 A
& Site Drive / Sparrow (Minor) WBLT 8.3 A 11.5 B
Drive NB 211 C 505.1 F
) SB 27.5 D 40.2 E

The results of the background conditions analysis indicate that all study intersection approaches and
movements will continue to operate acceptably at a LOS D or better during the AM peak period. During the
PM peak period, the southbound approach and eastbound through movement at the intersection of M-43 &

Park Lake Road will be reduced to a LOS E and F, respectively.

Eoug

R2272n The Averne Maridian Tovmshio TIA FINAL Memo 4-13-18



- The Avenue on G. .ad River | Traffic impact Assessment
April 13,2015 | Page 4 of 6

At the intersection of M-43 & Proposed Site Drive / Sparrow Drive, the two minor STOP controlled driveway
approaches will continue to operate unacceptably during the PM peak period based on HCM ‘calculations.
The results based on SimTraffic simulations for this intersection are shown in Table 4 below and indicate that
the northbound approach will begin to experience long vehicle delays during the PM peak period.

Table 4
Background Intersection Delays (SimTratific)
' AM Peak PM Peak
Delay Delay
Intersection Control Approach  (s/veh) LOS | (siveh) LOS
2. E. Grand River Avenue Stop "EBLT 6.7 - 7.3 -
& Site Drive / Sparrow (Minor) WBLT 1.6 - 28.5 -
Drive NB 10.3 - 79.3 -
SB 8.0 - 45.9 -

Site Trip Generation and Assignment

The number of AM and PM peak hour vehicle trips that would be generated by the proposed residential and
commercial development was forecast based on data published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers
(ITE) in Trip Generation, 9" Edition and the Trip Generation Handbook, 2™ Edition.

As is typical of most retail land uses, a portion of the site-generated trips are already present on the adjacent
road network and are interrupted to visit the site. These trips are known as “pass-by” trips and account for a
portion of the site-generated trips. Pass-by trips result in turning movements at the site driveways but do not
increase traffic volumes on the adjacent road network. The site trip generation forecast is shown on Table 5.

Table 5
Site Trip Generation
ITE Average AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour
Land Use Code Amount Units Daily Traffic in Out Total In QOut Total
Apartment 220 222 D.U. 1,469 23 90 113 91 49 140
Shopping Center 820 8,688 GFA 371 5 3 8 15 17 32
Pass-by 84% PM S i o 5 6 11
New Trips 371 5 3 8 10 11 21
Total ’ 1,840 28 93 121 106 66 172
Pass-by V ‘ 5 6 11
New Trips 1,840 28 93 121 101 60 161

The peak hour site trips shown in Table 5 were assigned to the adjacent road network based on existing
traffic patterns. These patterns indicate that 70% of site traffic would enter/exit the site to/from the west
during both peak periods. The site-generated traffic volumes to/from the east were distributed through the
intersection of M-43 & Park Lake Roe\td based on existing turning movement percentages.

Additionally, based on the HCM and SimTraffic peak hour delays calculated for the proposed site driveway
approach to M-43 aligned with Sparrow Drive, a capacity restrained traffic assignment was utilized. The site
traffic assignments shown on the attached Figure 4 were determined based on the direction of approach and
departure for the site-generated trips and the locations of site access locations. Capacity restrained
assignrent also considers the principle that traffic will utilize all reasonable paths to minimize the total travel

822730 The Avenue Meridian Township TIA FINAL Memo 4-13-15



r.»' ald
The Avenue on & wnd River | Traffic Impact Assessment
‘ April 13,2015 | Page 5 of 6

times spent by all users in the network (Transportation Engineering and Planning, Papacostas and
Prevedouros, 2001). Therefore, due to the existing high peak hour delays at the proposed site driveway
approach all egress site-generated trips were assigned fo the signalized site driveway aligned with Park Lake

Road during both peak periods.

Future Conditions

The site-generated trip assignments were added 1o the future background traffic volumes to determine the
total future peak hour traffic volumes with the proposed development. Future peak hour vehicle delays and
LOS were calculated at the study intersections based on these volumes, the existing intersection lane use
and fraffic control, and the methodologies presented in the HCM. The future conditions results are attached

and shown in Table 6.

Table 6
Future Intersection Operations
AM Peak PM Peak
Delay Delay
Intersection Control Approach  (sfiveh) LOS | (s/iveh) LOS
1. E. Grand River Avenue Signalized EB 8.7 A 32.2 - C
& Park Lake Road/ . WB 28.0 C 22.3 C
Site Drive NB 48.6 D 52.9 D
SB 53.6 D 54.6 D
Overall 29.9 Cc 324 Cc
2. E. Grand River Avenue Signalized EB 2.5 A 9.7 A
& Northwind Drive WB 1.3 A 1.5 A
NB 447 D 42.1 D
SB 441 D | 414 D
Overall 3.2 A 9.7 A
3. E. Grand River Avenue STOP EB LT 13.3 B 8.9 A
& Site Drive / Sparrow (Minor) WBLT 8.3 A 11.7 B
- Drive NB 22.4 C 720.2 F
SB 30.3 D 52.7 F

The resulis of the future conditions analysis indicate that all signalized study intersection approaches would
operate acceptably at a LOS D or better-during both peak periods; however, several movements would
operate at a LOS E or F. At the intersection of M-43 & Park Lake Road, the southbound right turn movement
would operate at a LOS E during both peak periods, while the northbound right turn movement and
eastbound through movement would operate at a LOS E and F, respeciively, during the PM peak period.

At the intersection of M-43 & Proposed Site Drive / Sparrow Drive, the two minor STOP controlled driveway
approaches will continue to operate unacceptably during the PM peak period based on HCM calculations.
The resulis based on SimTraffic simulations for this intersection under future conditions are shown in Table 7
below and indicate that the northbound approach will continue to experience long vehicle delays during the

PM peak period.




{ :
The Avenue on G,.nd River | Traffic Impact Asssessment
April 13,2015 | Page 6 of 6

Table 7
Future Intersection Delays (SimTraffic)
AM Peak PM Peak
Delay .Delay
Intersection Control Approach  (siveh) LOS | (s/veh) LOS
2. E. Grand River Avenue Stop EB LT 94 - 8.8 -
& Site Drive / Sparrow (Minor) WBLT 2.2 - 38.0 -
Drive NB 12.3 - 69.2 -
SB 17.1 - 39.4 -

Therefore, improvements were investigated fo provide acceptable network traffic conditions, including site
ingress and egress. At the intersection of M-43 & Park Lake Road, an overlap phase should be provided for
the northbound right turn movement. With the overlap phase and minor signal timing adjustments, all
approaches and movements would operate acceptably during both peak periods, except the southbound right
turn movement which would continue to operate at a LOS E during both peak periods. However, review of
network simulations indicates acceptable traffic operations and does not indicate significant vehicle queues

for this movement. -

At the STOP controlled site driveway aligned with Sparrow Drive, results as shown in Table 7 indicate that the
northbound approach will experience long vehicle delays during the PM peak period. However, during both
peak period’s excess capacity is available for the northbound approach at the signalized intersection of M-43
& Park Lake Road. Therefore, during peak periods egress traffic can utilize the traffic signal at M-43 & Park

L ake Road to exit the site.

Conclusions
The conclusions of this Traffic Impact Assessment are as follows:

1. At the intersection of M-43 & Proposed Site Drive / Sparrow Drive, the northbound approach currently
operates at a LOS F based on HCM calculations.

2. Under Background conditions without the proposed development the southbound approach and
eastbound through movement at the intersection of M-43 & Park Lake Road will be reduced to a LOS
E and F, respectively.

3. Under future conditions with the proposed development the southbound right turn movement would
operate at a LOS E during both peak periods, while the northbound right turn movement and
eastbound through movement would operate at a LOS E and F, respectively, during the PM peak
period at the intersection of M-43 & Park Lake Road.

4. With a northbound right turn overlap phase and minor signal timing adjustments, all approaches and
movements at the signalized study intersections will operate acceptably except the southbound right
turn movement at the intersection of M-43 & Park Lake Road which will operate at a LOS E; however,
review of network simulations indicates acceptable traffic operations for this movement and significant
gueues are not observed.

5. The signalized intersection of M-43 & Park Lake Road has excess capacity for the northbound
approach to accommodate egress traffic during the peak periods.

Any questions related to this memorandum, study, analyses, and results should be addressed to Fleis &
VandenBrink.

Attached: Traffic Volume Data
Figures 1-5
MDOT Data
Synchro / SimTraffic Results

SJR:mjl

822730 The Avenue Meridian Township TIA FINAL Memo 4-13-16



PO Box 100
Saranac, Michigan 48881

517-627-6028

Location: Denny's Drive & Grand River File Name : Dei
City/County: Meridian Twp., Ingham Gty Site Code : 04(
Weather: Cloudy Start Date : 4/2,
Counted By: DES _ PageNo :3
Commercial Driveway
Out In Totat
14 13 27
0 0 0
Q 0 0
14 :E 27
8 ] 5 ¢
0 0 0 0
[¢] 0 0 0
8 1] 5 a
:?_i?ht TIru Left Peds

Peak Hour Data

— ] 0 N O o O OO0y
O /e — D] = 4 T_%! o]
59 |9 L a = ood]
= oo owm I ﬁ;’,‘:‘-..a
® EER R North - @ © M
~ n =
2 [mod © ol e—> Peak Hour Begins at 05:00 PN +——38 @ 3
8 -3 O - = Elfond =
=L Mo > o © =
- - — . ©
< © ool Passenger Vehicles I S
5 &~ o . o Nio s o @
= .mj_ Heavy Vehicles % 2
LI P x Bicycles 0O o © o
2 3o & o oo » o I} niGE
© g ® (X [ =N
8 . @ o -1 O
0} o (2} N TSN oy w oe

Left Thru Right Peds
16 0 7 0
0 o} 0 ¥
0 0 0 a
16 ¢} 7 [1]

35 23 58

0 0 Q

0 ¢} 0

35 23l 58

Out In Total
Depny's Drivewav,




PARK LAKE ROAD

SPARROW DRIVE

- _

'/—_GRAND RIVER AVENUE @
¥
N

~ | Ve =

5 3

a =

=z =

= w

b =

z o
=
[73]

NORTH
SGALE:NOT TO SCALE e e s e
FIGURE 1

ROADS

LANE USE

Lg ~ LANE USE AND TRAFFIC
’ CONTROL

THE AVENUE ON GRAND RIVER TIA - MERIDIAN

AL ADTER TTOMMAAICUIID KAt

SIGNALIZED INTERSECTION

UNSIGNALIZED INTERSECTION |




SPARROW DRIVE

W O W
888 " Ao
@J l \‘ «— 1191/996

}\— 171/106

PARK LAKE ROAD

k127/17,5

<+—1033/881

'/— 133/223

“— 10/26

-
SITE DRIVE

NORTHWIND DRIVE

«—— 1181/980

'/‘— 23/40

360/1625 —» «\ /v
12/40W

- 26/76
12/63

O

NORTH
SCALE:NOT T0 SCALE

FIGURE 2
EXISTING TRAFFIC
VOLUMES

THE AVENUE ON GRAND RIVER TIA - MERIDIAN
CHARTER TOWNSHIP, Mi

11/9 9/26
GRAND RIVER AVENUE v >/—
719 J 41175 —/‘
\ 355/1653 —» '\ T /' @ 322/1464 —> '\ /v
10/26 © O I~ 3/26 M ¢ ©
\ Yy 580 Y| 883

jin}
=
14
Q
LLI
E
v
000/000
AMI/PM PEAK HOUR
LEGEND

ROADS

TRAFFIC VOLUMES (AM/PM)

SIGNALIZED INTERSECTION

UNSIGNALIZED INTERSECTION




WHOLE FOODS DRIVE

PARK LAKE ROAD

SPARROW DRIVE

}\— 183/126
'/— 135/226

“— 10/26

& 10/5

o0 O 0
5SS N 129178
@A) l k‘ <“«—— 1239/1071

<+——1069/936

11/9 9/26
GRAND RIVER AVENUE Y ? Y
] 7/9 _/‘ . 47/195 J T
= '376/1734 —»> '\ T /'@ 33771525 —» ‘\ ('
& \ 3/26 MO~
a 10/26 ©eox \‘ oo
g \ W g meo 0B 16 O
= x
2 T
o @
- I "
2
7
0
=
[72]
k 30/60
<+«— 1199/994
'/— 23/41
27/54 A '\ T fv
365/1649 —» g
12/41 \‘
000/000
AN T SOALE AM/PM PEAK HOUR
n FIGURE 3 A AR
g ¥ B AC KG RO U N D TRAFFIC TRAFFIC VOLUMES (AM/PM)
T y SIGNALIZED INTERSECTION
VOLUMES

UNSIGNALIZED INTERSECTION

THE AVENUE ON GRAND RIVER TIA - MERIDIAN
CHARTER TOWNSHIP. MI -



WHOLE FOODS DRIVE
SPARROW DRIVE

GRAND RIVER AVENUE

PARK LAKE ROAD

{0/3] —>

+[0/3]
\ 2071
\

\

\
20071 —» J

NORTHWIND DRIVE
SITE DRIVE

NORTH
SCALE:NOT TO SCALE

FIGURE 4
SITE-GENERATED
TRAFFIC VOLUMES

THE AVENUE ON GRAND RIVER TIA - MERIDIAN
CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MI

11
=
i
[m]
LI
E
[7>]
000/000
AN/PM PEAK HOUR
+1-[000/000]
PASS-BY
EGEND

ROADS

TRAFFIC VOLUMES (AM/PM)

SIGNALIZED INTERSECTION

UNSIGNALIZED INTERSECTION | |




PARK LAKE ROAD

WHOLE FOODS DRIVE
SPARROW DRIVE

}\— 129/178

<« 1072/947

)/_ 135/226

“— 12/34

X 183126

. O O 10
RS RN k10/5
@J l K‘ <+« 1304/1111

v 14/22 v 12/37
GRAND RIVER AVENUE :
©
79— 471195~ T
> \ 3761731 —> | ) T f'@ 33711525 —» | ) d
1 30/100 — ® o 326 — SN B
2\ | 5 =% ~ pan
2 &
:
o )
= 18]
=
14
o
w
E
/2]
N so60
«— 1264/1036
23041
oA | N (7
385/1720 —» o
12141 —
000/000
SCALE:I\:«SFI;—ISCALE AM/PM PEAK HOUR
FIGURE 5

ROADS

TRAFFIC VOLUMES (AM/PM)

FUTURE TRAFFIC
VOLUMES

' THE AVENUE ON GRAND RIVER TIA - MERIDIAN
- ' CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MI

SIGNALIZED INTERSECTION

UNSIGNALIZED INTERSECTION |




May 01 15 02:44p. William F. Savage - - 517338-3833 . . B

TooF

N

Williar F. Savage, P.E. -
Savage Traffic Engimeréng, tne.

Summer Address . Winter Address
6401 Timber Ridge Trail | 6611 Stone River Road, #206

- East Lansing, Ml 48823 " e-mail: MSUSavage@aol.com ‘Bradenton,,FL,342'Q3 A
Phone & Fax: 517-338-3933 . ' S _Phone & Fax: 941-755-4681 .

April 30, 2015

Martha Wyatt, Assaciate Planner/ Land's\capé Architect
Charter Township of Meridian

5151 Marsh Road
Okernos, Ml 48826

RE: The Avenue on Grand River

"~ Dear Martha:

I conducted a morning (7:30 - 8:30 .am on Thursday, Ag&ril 30) at the Denny
Restaurant entrance, to familiarize myself o the traffic at the entrance‘ { fcund '

that there were 7 vehicles entering and 5 vehicles leavmg the restaurant.
Also, there were 10 vehu:les entermg the site, and 8 leavmg (not stoppmg at
Denny’s. . . -
The traf'ﬁc was hght wuth oniy a couple 20 to 30 second delays.

My concern is that when compieted, the 103vehlc[es ehtering from the west

along with 22 entering from the east, along with a number of veh!cjestrymg to
exit the site will be much more than this failing entrance can handle. ’

A solution would be to have Denny’s Restaurant be the sole user of this
entrance, and the rest of the traﬁlc use the stgnahzed entrance at Park Lake 4

:2:

Road.
Sincerely, F
WESavage i R n
. L i |
William F. Savage, P.E. } z MAY- 0 1 200 fff%ii "
s

&
L s s o S Y R €T B



MEMORANDUM

TO: Planning Commission
FROM: M Y M
Martha Wyatt
Associate Planner/Landscape Architect
DATE: June 5, 2015
RE: MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Development) request to develop a mixed use

planned unit development at 2655 Grand River Avenue

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on May 11, 2015 regarding the request from
Campus Village Development to establish a mixed use planned unit development (MUPUD) on
the property located southwest of the intersection of Grand River Avenue and Park Lake Road, at
2655 Grand River Avenue. The mixed use project will occupy the entire 12.65 acre site. The site is
zoned C-2 (Commercial) and is located in Section 20 of the Township.

The proposed project incorporates the existing multitenant retail building with new multiple family
housing and mixed use buildings. Eight apartment buildings and two mixed use buildings (retail
and residential units) are proposed, offering a total of 222 apartment units (multiple family units)
and 412 beds. A clubhouse/community center, an on-site business center (entrepreneurial hub),
retail space, and a diverse range of amenities are offered.

The residential portion of the project is approximately 166,066 square feet. Approximately 8,865
square feet of new retail is proposed in the mixed use building (Block 1). In combination with the
existing retail space (54,547 square feet), approximately 63,412 square feet of retail space is
provided. The applicant has indicated some office space may be available to the public in the
office center (Block 2) via membership, lease, or other means. The combined total of all buildings
(existing and proposed) is approximately 235,640 gross square feet. The proposed density is
17 dwelling units per acre (222 dwelling units over 12.65 acres).

A special use permit (SUP #15051) is also required for a group of buildings totaling more than
25,000 square feet in gross floor area, which is being processed concurrently with the MUPUD.
The Planning Commission will make recommendations to the Township Board on both requests.

Several concerns were discussed at the public hearing. Revised plans have been provided which
include the following design changes as summarized by the applicant:

¢ Added an easement and public pedestrian pathway along the south side of the property

line.
¢ Increased the width of the existing sidewalk along the east side of the entrance drive at

Grand River Avenue, from five feet to eight feet wide to provide improved access and to

become part of the public pathway.
¢ Relocated the public fitness area and pocket park to an area along the pedestrian pathway

(south property line) for improved public access.
+ Revised the project renderings to show all stairwells enclosed and to provide building

detail in previously undefined areas.



MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Communities, LLC)
Planning Commission (6/5/15)
Page 2 .

¢ Revised the design and structure of the barrier wall between the railroad and rear parking
area (southwest corner of the site) to comply with railroad safety regulations.
¢ Added a fence along the west property line. Details on the fence (materials and height)

- have not been provided.
¢ Revised the parking layout in the front of the site to increase the number of parking spaces

(area where the public fithess area was previously located). Twelve additional parking
spaces are provided.
» Moved the refuse recycling center from the southwest corner of the property to a site

further east along the southern property line.

The number of residential units (222 units), square footage for retail and residential uses, and
overall layout of the buildings have not changed.

The applicant has provided a document regarding railroad setback recommendations and barrier
wall design. A railroad safety expert will attend the Planning Commission meeting on June 8, 2015
and may provide additional information at that time, per the applicant. The MUPUD ordinance
states a residential use shall be located as far as possible from the railroad tracks.

A parking analysis has also been provided by the applicant which compares standard parking
requirements and anticipated parking needs for the proposed mixed use project.

Several communications have been received since the public hearing. A letter from the Ingham
County Drain Commissioner’s office, dated May 22, 2015, was submitted with preliminary
comments on stormwater management for the subject site. Copies of letters of support and a
petition signed by several local business owners are included as attachments in this

memorandum.

The Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) has reviewed the applicant’s traffic study
and concurred with the findings that the Level of Service (LOS) is acceptable at the studied
intersections (Grand River Avenue and Northwind Drive; Denny’s Restaurant driveway and Grand
River Avenue; and the eastern driveway of the subject site, Grand River Avenue and Park Lake
Road). MDOT further noted the signalized intersections (Grand River Avenue and Northwind
Drive, and Grand River Avenue and Park Lake Road) will be monitored to see if any
recommended signal modifications will be necessitated by the development.

The MUPUD ordinance states yard, setback, lot size, type and size of dwelling unit, frontage
requirements impervious surface regulations and restrictions are generally waived provided the
spirit and intent of the MUPUD are incorporated into the overall development plan.

The following waivers are being requested by the applicant:

e Section 86-402(17) allows up to 70% impervious surface for a commercially zoned site.
The proposed impervious surface coverage is 80.99%, using all landscaped areas,
including parking islands that are smaller than 20 feet by 20 feet in size.

e Section 86-721(b) requires a dedicated loading/unloading space, 12 feet in width and 25
feet in length, for every building over 500 square feet of gross floor area. The plans do not
provide a loading/unloading space adjacent to the mixed use building in Block 1.



o,

MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Communities, LLC)
Planning Commission (6/5/15)

Page 3

Section 86-755 outlines the standard motor vehicle parking requirements for commercial
and multiple-family uses. Using these standards, a minimum of 809 parking spaces are
required (555 spaces for residential plus 254 spaces for retail). The number of required
motor vehicle parking spaces could be reduced up to 10% (81 parking spaces) when
bicycle parking is provided, thus 728 motor vehicle parking spaces are required. The
revised plan shows 545 motor vehicle parking spaces.

Section 86-756(14) requires a 15 foot wide landscape buffer is between the parking area
or its associated internal access or service drives where adjoining the same or other
nonresidential district. The following table summarizes the proposed setbacks for areas

where new construction is occurring:

Standard Proposed
Setback Setback (nearest point)
Parking 15 feet North: 5.35 feet

South: 10.0 feet
East: 6.4 feet
West: 0.75 feet

Section 86-758 outlines landscaping standards including interior canopy trees and interior
landscaping. Based on 545 motor vehicle parking spaces, 109 interior canopy trees are
required and 46 tree symbols are shown on the revised plan. Staff is not sure what type
(species) of trees are shown or how many existing trees will be preserved.

Section 86-470 requires a dwelling unit to be located 175 feet from a railroad right-of-way.
The plans note the southeast corner of the southern building in Block 3 is approximately
71 feet from railroad right-of-way. A portion of the eastern building and all of the
southern building in Block 3 are located within 175 feet of the railroad right-of-way.

Street trees (existing and proposed) are not shown on the plans, however nine street trees are
required along the frontage of the site (602 lineal feet) per Section 86-473. If not provided on the
landscape plans when reviewed under site plan review, the applicant shall be required to apply for

a variance from the Zoning Board of Appeals.

Unless

building elevations for several buildings are revised to provide the required articulation, as

outlined in Section 86-440(f)(2)b.2. of the MUPUD ordinance, a variance from the Zoning Board of
Appeals is required.

Planning Commission Options

The Planning'Commission may recommend approval, approval with conditions, or denial. The
attached resolution recommends approval with conditions for Mixed Use Planned Unit .

Development #15014.



MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Communities, LLC)
Planning Commission (6/5/15)

Page 4

Attachments

1. Resolution to approve

2. Communication from Dave C. Love, Engineer, Ingham County Drain Commissioner’s office,
dated May 22, 2015

3. Communlcatlon from Mary Seager, D.V.M., 2643 Grand River Avenue, dated May 27,2105

4. Communication from Justin Grinnell, Owner State of Fitness, 2655 Grand River Avenue,
dated June 2, 2015

5. Communication from Kirk Marrison, Manager, Foods For LlVIng, 2655 Grand River Avenue,
dated June 3, 2015

6. Communication from Paul Vlahakis, Vlahakis Companies, 4900 Montrose Avenue, dated
received June 4, 2015

7. Communication Adam Anderson, Advance Auto Parts, 2786 Grand River Avenue dated June
3,2015

8. Communication from Richard McCarius, Tom’s Party Store, 2780 Grand River Avenue, dated
received June 4, 2015

9. Petition of support, dated received June 4, 2015

10. Railroad Barrier Wall article (“Development of Crash Wall Design Loads from Theoretical

Train Impact’)

11. Parking Analysis from the Applicant
12. Revised plans and elevations

G:\commun ping & dev\ping\mixed use planned unit development\2015\mupud 15014 (The Avenue)\staff
reports\mupud pc2



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #15014
. (Campus Village Development)
2655 Grand River Avenue

RESOLUTION

At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian,
Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 8th
day of June, 2015 at 7:00 p.m., Local Time.

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

The following resolution was offered by and supported by

WHEREAS, Campus Village Development has submitted a request to establish an
approximate 235,640 square foot mixed use planned unit development at 2655 Grand River
Avenue, incorporating the existing multitenant retail building with the construction of eight’
apartment buildings and two mixed use buildings, consisting of 222 one, two, and four bedroom
apartment units plus retail space and an entrepreneurial center in the mixed-use buildings, on an

approximate 12.65 acre site; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing at its regular meeting on
May 11, 2015 and has reviewed and discussed staff material forwarded under staff

memorandums dated May 6, 2015 and June 5, 2015; and

WHEREAS, the subject site is appropriately zoned C-2 (Commercial), which allows for a
mixed used planned unit development; and

WHEREAS, the proposed mixed use planned unit development has been designed to be
harmonious and appropriate with the existing and potential future uses surrounding the site; and

WHEREAS, the proposed mixed use planned unit development is in furtherance of
Township Board policy #1.5.2 which encourages diverse housing opportunities; and

WHEREAS, the proposed project will establish residential housing units that exist in
close proximity to commercial establishments and is within walking distance of the university;

and

WHEREAS, the proposed mixed use planned unit development is adequately served by
essential public facilities and services, such as police, fire, stormwater drainage, and existing
roadways; and :

WHEREAS, the proposed mixed use planned unit development is adequately served by
public water and sanitary sewer; and

WHEREAS, the number and type of amenities are consistent With the standards of
Section 86-440 of the Code of Ordinances.



Resolution to Approve
MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Development)

Page 2

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE |
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Mixed Use Planned
Unit Development (MUPUD) #15014, subject to the following conditions:

1. The recommendation for approval is based on the Cover Sheet, Utility Plan, and
Amenities Plan, prepared by KEBS, Inc., dated May 27, 2015, and building elevations
prepared by Progressive AE, dated May 27, 2015, subject to revisions as required.

2. MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Communities), a request to establish a mixed use
planned unit development with the existing retail building and ten new buildings,
consisting of mixed use and residential buildings, with a fotal of 222 one, two, and four
bedroom apartment units, shall be contingent on the approval of Special Use Permit
(SUP) #15051 (Campus Village Development).

3. Approval is subject to one or more amenities. The applicant proposes the following
amenities as identified on the Amenities Plan (Sheet 5). LED lighting; site recycling of
trash; relocate transit stop to front of the property; foot and bicycle pathways connecting
to the Township pathway system; covered bicycle storage on site; fithess park as public
recreation; dog park; outdoor pocket parks; seating plazas visible to the street; private
courtyards; public internet; public internet-bus stop; underground utilities; upper floor
balconies; sidewalk planters; and consolidation of multiple parcels into one.

4. Waivers shall be granted for those sections of the Code of Ordinances as follows:
Impervious surface coverage (Section 86-402(17)); setback for a dwelling unit from the
railroad right-of-way (Section 86-470); loading/unloading space (Section 86-721(b));
number of parking spaces (Section 86-755); landscaped buffers adjacent to parking
areas and access drives (Section 86-756(14); and interior canopy trees and interior

landscaping (Section 86-758).

5. Any future building additions or expansions to the buildings will require modification to
the MUPUD #15014 and SUP #15051.

6. Building materials should include, but are not limited to, wood, brick, clapboards, glass, -
and stone. Other materials, such as vinyl, aluminum, and other metals should be
avoided. The character and quality of the building materials and general architectural
design of the buildings shall be consistent on all four sides of each building.

7. The final building elevations and building materials shall be subject to the approval of the
Director of Community Planning and Development.

8. Unless the building elevations are revised, the applicant will be required to receive a
variance from the Zoning Board of Appeals for non-compliance with Section 86-
440(f)(2)b.2., stating, “Buildings greater than 50 feet in width shall be divided into
increments of no more than 50 feet through articulation of the facade.”

9. Windows shall cover no less than 50 percent of nonresidential street level facades.




o

Resolution to Approve
MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Development)_

Page 3

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

The residential and mixed use buildings which comprise MUPUD #15014 shall
accommodate no more than 412 tenants. No more than one person may occupy each

bedroom. _
All utility service distribution lines should be installed underground.

The final design of the two recycling enclosures shall be subject to the approval of the
Director of Community Planning and Development.

Site accessories such as railings, benches, trash and recycling receptacles, exterior
lighting fixtures, and bicycle racks shall be of commercial quality, and complement the
building design and style. Final design and location shall be subject to the approval of
the Director of Community Planning and Development.

Landscaping shall generally comply with the provisions of the Code of Ordinances,
including the mixed use planned unit development standards as outlined in Section 86-
440(f)(4) and other applicable sections of the Ordinance pertaining to landscaping.

A minimum of nine street frees shall be provided along the frontage of the site (Grand
River Avenue) or the applicant shall be required o request a variance from the Zoning

Board of Appeals.

Site and building lighting shall comply with Article VII in Chapter 38 of the Code of
Ordinances and shall be subject to the approval of the Director of Community Planning
and Development, including the height of any new parking lot light pole. 4

A final sign program shall be submitted as part of site plan review and shall be subject to
the review and approval of the Director of Community Planning and Development.

All mechanical, heating, ventilation, air conditioning, and similar systems shall be screened
from view by an opaque structure or landscape material (if at street level) selected to
complement the building. Such screening is subject to approval by the Director of
Community Planning and Development.

The applicant shall obtain all necessary permits, licenses, and approvals from the
Michigan Department of Transportation, Ingham County Drain Commissioner, and the
Township. Copies of all permits and approval letters shall be submitted to the
Department of Community Planning and Development.

The utility, grading, and storm drainage plans for the site shall be subject to the approval
of the Director of Public Works and Engineering and shall be completed in accordance
with the Township Engineering Design and Construction Standards.

A copy of the site plan information that exists in a computer format for the development
project and construction plans shall be provided to the Township Engineering staff in an

AutoCAD compatible format.




Resolution to Approve
MUPUD #15014 (Campus Village Development)

Page 4

ADOPTED: YEAS:

NAYS:

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
) ss

COUNTY OF INGHAM )

[, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the
Charter Township Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the
foregoing is a true and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the
Planning Commission on the 8th day of June 2015.

John Scott-Craig, Chair
Planning Commission

G:\commun plng & deviping\mixed use planned unit development\2015\mupud 15014 (The Avenue)\staff
reports\mupud 15014 pc res approve




" Patrick E. Lin( 2mann

Ingham County Drain Commissioner

Caita Flotanee Clos
PO Box 220 Depuiy Deai Commssionar
707 Buhl Avenue

Mason, MI 48854-0220

Paul C. Pragt
Doty Drain Comnrissioner

Bavitd C. Love
Ohisf of Enginesring acd Inspaction

Phone: {517) 676-8395
Fax: (517) 676-8364
http://dr.ingham.org

Shaldon Lews
- drdnuniskative Assistant

o]

May 22, 2015

John Scott-Craig, Chair

Meridian Township Planning Commission 5197 T N ER T
5151 Marsh Road , e
Okemos, M| 48864

Re: The Avenue on Grand River
Meridian Charter Township — Section 20
Conceptual Site Plan Review Drain Office #15036

Dear Mr. Scott-Craig:

We are in receipt of conceptual plans dated 4/13/15 for The Avenue on Grand
River project located south of Grand River Avenue and north of the C N Railroad
tracks in Section 20 of Meridian Charter Township. The developed portion of the
site has an existing stormwater management plan based on an earlier
development. There are two existing detention basins that pretreat and detain
some of the rainfall events. This site drains directly to the Red Cedar River along
and within the Canadian National Railroad right-of-way, which is private property.

This conceptual review is offered as a courtesy Meridian Charter Township only
and should not be construed by the project owner or others as formal submission
to the Ingham County Drain Commissioner for site plan or drainage review.

The Ingham County Drain Commissioner (ICDC) offers Meridian Charter
Township the following conceptual review comments on the stormwater system

for this project:
1. The site is not located in the 100-year floodplain.
2. No County Drains are affected by this project.
3. The plans must be submitted to the Drain Commissioner’s Office for

drainage review.
4. The site is located in a Phase Il area and the stormwater discharge should

be held to adequate pretreatment standards to protect the receiving

waters of the Red Cedar River.
5. Low impact development design techniques are being proposed and are

strongly encouraged for this site.



6. Three copies of the construction drawings must be submitted to our office,
along with the necessary fees and a stormwater management plan
(including runoff calculations for the existing site and proposed
redevelopment) for the Drain Commissioner’s approval. The drawings will
be reviewed for conformance to the Drain Commissioner’s Standards with
regard to the additional runoff generated by the proposed improvements
on the site.

We appreciate the opportunity to comment on this plan.

Sincerely,

David C. Love
Ingham County Drain Engineer

cc:  Campus Village Communities
Greg Petru, P.E., KEBS, Inc.




- Y G e e . B A AT

_ minEaliislatay

! “W .

w | SN ) .
| | i

| IR

| RTIRORI

o . NODIV
o Jesulbug abpug
bug4d ‘uspAe] susjiesy

© AREMA 2014




in the case of new residential development. It provides

a buffer from railway operations; permits dissipation

of rail-orienied emissions, vibrations, and noise; and
accommodates a safety barrier. Residential separation
distances from freight rail yards are intended to address

the fundamental land use incompatibilities. Proponents

are encouraged to consult with the railway early in the
development process to determine the capacity of the site
to accommodatie standard seibacks (see below). On smaller
sites, reduced setbacks should be considered in conjunction
with alternative safety measures. Where the recommended
setbacks are not technically or practically feasible due,

for exampile, to site conditions or constrainis, then a
Development Viability Assessment should be undertaken

by the proponent to evaluate the conditions specific 1o

the site, determine its suitability for new development,

and suggest options for mitigation. Development Viability
Assessments are explained in detail in Appendlx A.

3.3.1 Guidelines

* The standard recommended building setbacks for
new residential development in proximity to railway
operations are as follows:
“»» Freight Rail Yard: 300 metres

»» Principle Main Line: 30 metres

»» Secondary Main Line: 30 metres

»» Principle Branch Line: 15 metres

»» Secondary Branch Line: 15 metres

»» Spur Line: 15 metres

» Setback disiances must be measured from the
mutual property line to the building face. This

will ensure thdt the entire railway right-of-way is
protected for potential rail expansion in the future.

e Under typical conditions, the sethack is measured as
a straight-line horizontal distance.

» Where larger building setbacks are proposed {(or




SUPERSTRUCTURE GONSTRUCTION SHALL PREFERMRLY DE OF
CONTNUDUS SPANS, WHERE SIMFLE SPANS ARE USED THEY
SHALL BE SECURELY ANCHORED TO THE SUBSTRUCTURE TO

A YOV PREVENT DISPLACEMERY IF sussrgum&ns IS HT,
(v
N LLLLLLLEL L | LNl LI L L L LS L ELLLLL L, LLLL /»’/////////////////J
'.?3 é é K . 1
H DUTSIDE TRAGK CUYSIDE TRACK ki g
3 tn TRACK
FAGE OF ABUTHENT FACE OF ABUTMENT PIER |
7 OR PER Y OR_PIER N coLuMH '
N
A 18-0" MIN, WHERE o | | 26'-0°  MIN, WHERE NO N 1 PO - l
4 CVERHEAD WIRE LINES !t CVERMEAD WIRE LINES N a e '
; {SOMMUSICATION) : l {COMMUNICATION)Y N 4 von sm%gm I
COLUMN P
/] 268°-0" NN, WHERE REQUIRED 1 1 2B'-0" M., WHERE REQUIRED N / 1
7} YR OVERHZAD WIRE LINES l ] FOR OVERHEAD VIRE LINES N =
| SCOMMURICATION) {COMMUNICATION) N i B I
TRACK PROTECTION 4 ro \ bl = 1
§3§“§%A§§$gﬁ5° 2 . ‘ .. 107 OF HIGHEST RAL N p | 700 TR RAML
FUR FOOTINGS 1 HNN'IEETANCE ROAD, 4
BELOW THIS UNE. \:', J— T 1 S o,
120" #1 200 M, é-/- TOE OF FILL HENF. STEEL
MiN 1172 - 2 = " 15 © 127 ¢/€ M.
— " (PRIOR TD BALLAST (PRIOR TO BALLAST EXISYING SLOPE OR i
UFT) ) ~ 2:1 WHICHEVER 15 . n }
WHERE NO MANTENANCE WHERE MAINTENANGE SiEERER (N, 1Yz R) tgow N
“'RoAD REQUIRED TYPICAL _CROSS SECTION ROKD REQUIRED R
NOTES ‘
wase ALL HORIZONTAL D{MENSIONS ARE TO BE TAKEN PERPENDICULAR TO RALYAY TRAGKS. T O A
~= ALL VERTICAL DIMENSIONS ARE TO BE TAKEN FROM THE TOP OF RAML.
~— FOR TRACKS ON CURVE, CONSULT SYSTOM ENGINEER = TECHNIAL SERVIDES,
~ FOR RMLWAY HEQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITIONAL FUTURE TRACK PROVISIONS AND FOR THE
HINIMUM TEMPORARY CONSTRULTION ' CLEARANCES CONSULT SYSTEM EHGRIEER — TECHNIKCAL SERVIGES
— NO WATER FROM DECK OF SYRUCTURE SHALL DRAT DNID RALWAY TRACK BETWEEN TRACK DITCHES.
~= N0 WATER FROM RUAD APPROAGH EMBANKMENT SHALL DRAIN INTO JAILWAY DITGHES WITHOUT PROPER
PROTECTION AGANST EROSION OF SLOPE UR FILLING WITH EINES OF DRCHES.
- APPROAGH SLOPES [F ADJACENT TD TRACKS ARE 10 BE PAVED OR OTHERWISE PROTECTED FROM EROSION.
> ANY DEVIATION FROM THIS STANDARD MUSY RECEWE PRIUR APPROVAL OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER.
PIER _PROTECTION
~— PIERS WITHIN 28'~0" OF CENIER LINE OF ADJAGENT YRACK SHALL BE OF SOUD HEAWY CONSTRUCTIGN OR
SHALL BE PROTECTED BY REINFORGED COWCRETE PRUTECTION WALL EXTENDING 7'~0" ABOVE TOF OF RAL,
WHERE 2 OR MORE COLUMNS COMPOUSE A PIER, A PROTECTION WALL AT LEAST 2'-D" THICK: SHALL
CONNECT THE COLUMMS. WHEN THE PIER GONSISTS OF A SINGLE COLUMN, THE PROTECTION WALL SMALL BE
PARALLEL 10 THE TRAGR, 2'=5* THIGK, EXTEND AT LEAST 7°-~0" GEYOND BOTH SIOES OF THE COLUMN,
END PROJECT 5" BEYOND THE FACE UF THE COLUMN ON THE SIDE ADJACENT TO THE TRACK.
PROTECTION WALL SHALL BE ANCHORED D THE COLUMN AND FODTINGS WITH ADEQUATE REINFORCING SYEEL
~— DESIGN AND LOCATION OF PROTECTION WALLS SHALL BE VERIFIED 